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ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL F. ADUBATO (Chairman): This is an

AssemblyrBankihg and_InsurahcevCommittee meeting. We are delighted to
be in the first city in the State of New Jersey -- Newark. I ask you
all to rise, along with the members of the Committee, to salute the
flag. Please’join with us. ~ (Committee andraudience'join in reciting
 the Pledge of Allegiance) Thank you. ‘By the'way;'l just realized that
| big-flagtis behind us. It's a great flag I hope General Patton
"~ doesn't come out of the wings. , | ‘
. Jolnlng the Committee today is Assemblyman LaRocca, to my
C o left.. He .is also Chairman of the Assembly .Bankingv and Insurance
Subcommittee, which, as you may know, is in the middle of an inquiry
_about banking situations in our State, tASSemblyman Deverin called and,
unfortunately; he is not able to be with us today. Assemblyman Loveys
is;sitting to my right, and Assemblyman Louis Kosco may join us during
the courselof the meeting. I'm not sure; we haven't heard yet.

The purpose of this “meeting is to ‘eiamine the trading of.
penny stock 1n New Jersey and the laws appllcable to those stocks, and
to make legislative recommendatlons ThlS meeting is belng held

fpursuant to an Assembly Resolutlon sponsored by Assemblyman Stephen

",Adubato, Jr. and Speaker Alan Karcher. As the resolution states. "It

is the public policy of this State to assure that the trading of
~securities = is conducted so as to maintain’ the 4highest public
confidence." - This pollcy not only gives peace of mind to investors,
but also benefits corporations, in that it encourages greater
investment in'equity securities “

| There are a number of questlons whlch need to be answered,

and every person who has been invited has been asked to comment on at
least these follow1ng p01nts '

(1) To briefly summarize New Jersey law and regulatlons on

o the issuance of penny stock by start- -up penny stock flrms, partlcularly

fw1th respect to the requirements for.dlsclosure,,and;the.merlt review,
or reglstratlon, of such stocks.
| (2) How adequate are these laws and regulatlons in protecting
the 1nvest1ng public? '

(3) How adequate are the regulatory systems of other states

in th1s regard7



(4) What are - ‘some of the market creatlon act1v1t1es employed

o by penny stock brokers that you con31der - if you do -= to be ‘

'»detrlmental to the 1nvest1ng publlc'7 o , .‘ | “

Sy - (5) How - adequately do New Jersey laws and regulatlons deal

' t»w1th such activities? = L e ] o

AR .(6) “How'v'are these ,tactivities‘~;regulated'y:in"aotherv’
L*lffJurlsdlctlons7 B P RREEIe S o

:‘ (7) What sales practlces employed by - brokers 1n penny stock
’ffofferlngs do you consider to be detrlmental to the 1nvest1ng public?

s (B) “What 1nvestor educatlon program should be adopted"v
1iregard1ng penny stock offer1ngs7 ‘ . o

Before we hear from our w1tnesses, I would llke to make a few
"observatlons concernlng the tradlng of penny stock. Penny stock is the

‘"ename given to the small new companies whlch,sell.shares to the public

"at prices uSually no higher’than $5 00. There are‘Smallvnewbstart—up' v

‘companies that - have proved to be success. storles. A few of these
-companies, - such as the Apple Computer Company, have proven very
:>30ccessful Government regulatlons should never dlscourage 1nnovatlon
~and. product1v1ty, but government should seek to make sure that the hype'

‘fi,and the manlpulatlon are not mlstaken for 1nnovatlon and product1v1ty
:.affGovernment should also have as its obJectlves to suppress fraud, to
" ensure the fear allocation of risk between 1nvestors and promoters, andg
to strengthen investor confidence in capltal markets.  This, in turn,
‘r'would benefit thevvschrities industry and would promote economic
| ‘These are the stated purposes in the areas which we
“respectfully ask the w1tnesses to at least comment on. Thisbdoes;not.

restrict comment it does not 11m1t the scope of comment - The . -

'Committee, as 1 said, was brought here as a result of the resolutlon
sponsored by Assemblyman Stephen- Adubato and cosponsored by the_
>,Speaker, Assemblyman Karcher. ’ ’ ’
. Again, I ‘would llke. the people in thls ‘TOOom " not to llmlt
::themselves “to the outllne I gave. We are here, and you are not .
restrlcted from speaklng about any - facet of thls that you would llke to
~share with us. ' '



We are going to start of f our meeting by‘asking the sponsor

of the resolutlon, Assemblyman Stephen Adubato, Jr , to be our first
witness. Assemblyman Adubato? ' :
- ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO, JR.: Thank you, Assemblyman 'Adubato.
~ This could get confusing. First of all, I want to thank:the Chairman,
of the Assembly Banking and Insurance Committee, as. well as the other
'members, for allowing me the opportunlty to speak. .

Those" of us who are here have come to listen: and to learn,,
: and to form whatever observations we need. to over the 30-day period

provided by the Assembly Resolutlon that the Speaker of the House, Alan

”‘:Karcher,'and I introduced. I believe the thinge that we hear today

will bepextremely‘helpful in letting us move toward whatever solutions
-~ legislative or otherwise -- we need to embark upon to improve our
situaticn here in the State. It is my contention that  you will hear
from a series of witnesses today from several different perspectives,
from' both inside New Jersey and from as far away as Colorado,
Washlngton, and Massachusetts, people who belleve that what goes on in
New Jersey in the penny stock 1ndustry is important, not only in thlS
; State, but that it ‘w1ll have ramifications throughodt'.the entire
~ country. | ' ' | ' '

o In a way, the penny stock issue is a very deceptive issue.
~As the Chairman mentioned,' when we talk -about. penny stocks we are »
referring to stocks which sell for betWeen one penny and $5.00. It is
not unusual, in fact, for'vpeople to invest thousands of dollars in
penny’stock ventures " As our parents taught us, pennies add up, and
penny stocks are no small matter to people who have lost either part or
~all of their life savings on a partlcular penny stock venture.

a We are here‘todav to take a long lookv at the business of
“vtpenny stocks, from their issue by small companles to thelr purchase by
V bhopeful 1nvestors As the Chairman said, we are not here to protect’
t'51nvestors from the natural and reasonable risks of the marketplace We
-are here to look at the ways in which 1nvestors can be protected from.
limited and deceptive information about penny stock . 1ssues. We are
here today to look at small companies and security dealers which may

fall between the cracks of proper, legltlmate requlation. We are not



“ here to 1nd1ct the entire securities 1ndustry and the countless honest

‘,‘brokers and dealers who ea31ly represent the maJority of the securities
profe381on. ’ ’

v Finally, we are here today to find out what the State
‘government is doing, and Af it is d01ng the best Job p0831ble to
'jprotect 1nvestors from fraud and manipulation by the penny stock
 industry. Our aim is to find solutions, 1f necessary, in the form of

vnew legislation or new 1n1t1at1ves by the State government 1n New

':',Jersey. ~Thanks to a recent series of ‘articles by The Newark

7>f{$tar-Ledger, we have all become more aware of the p0831ble abuses in

. the - penny . stock market Those articles detailed ‘a ‘system with

apparently - weak regulations, 1neffect1ve enforcement procedures,
and - manlpulation of stock issues by inSiders, and consumers all too
susceptible to a financial plunge 1nto a vast unknown.

Frankly, since 1 1ntroduced the resolution w1th Speaker
Karcher,‘ approximately } two weeks ago, calling ~for a 30-day
1nvestigation into the penny stock trading industry, I have been

‘overwhelmed by the complexity and magnitude of thls issue. Also, I

. bhave received numerous offers from - people - inside the State of New

Jersey and, as I said before, ‘people from far away from the State, to
assistlinbour efforts to improve our State's ability to address'the
penny‘stock issue. Today‘we will hear fromlpeople who represent'Many
~ sides of that qUestion - officials from -the ’public and private
regulatory agencies, state regulators frombcolorado and Massachusetts,
a former employee of a penny.stock‘company,’and investors who lost a
»significant‘percentage,of their life'savings due to fraudulentrpenny
‘stock practices. Hopefully,_ we will come .away: with a better
understanding of this issue, along with a sense of direction of where
we need to go from here. | o -
‘Thank‘you,’Mr; Chairman.

‘ ASSEMBLVMAN MICHAEL = ADUBATO: Assemblyman Adubato - this is
probably g01ng to get confus1ng during the course of the day, people
‘addressing both of us. For the record, I will Just say that I am the
older one. I want to thank you for bringing this to our attention.

‘ Assemblyman, I would apprec1ate it if you ‘would come up and

J01n us at the Committee table.



‘.

" -As is the ‘protocol with our Committee, we will make an
attempt to hear from the citizens who are not representihg any specific
entity except themselves. We will keep with that\tradition'by calling
the first person to testify, Mr. Kurt Kvist. I hope I ‘am pronouncing
" your -name correctly. Will you please come up to the witness table with
- your wife, Toni? Mr. Kvist is a victim. Please share your experience
“with us, Mr. Kvist. - _ _ |
KURT KVIST: I would like to read a brief statement which I have
. prepared, and will theo follow. it up with questions, I guess. As

ostated, myoname is Kurt Kvist; I am 29 years old; and, I design and
~ sell residential kitchens for a living. o .
| In‘,September, 1983, I purchased 1,500 shares  of Ross
Exploration_for $2,250 from Korbin Securities in East Brunswick. What
~motivated me to withdraw over $2,000 and invest in something I néver
~invested in before, and knew little about, was a strongibelief that
this was a good investment. | o '

_\ While at ‘work, I .heard a radio advertisement for Ross
Exploration. It said that the'company went public last May at ten
»oohts a share, and was now at one dollar andfthree-éighths. It went on
to say that the company just struck a large pool _of 0il in Adair
County; Kentucky, aod that it was the first strike for the company. It
- gave an 800 number for their hot line and_an office number. I called
“and heard very positive things about the compényfs activities. The ad,
the hot line, and the calls to the companyoinspired me to take the next
step and inquire at Korbin Securities.

| It was the phone call with Lou Rosen at Korbin that convinced
" me to actually buy the stock. I was assured that the company was one
. of rapid growth and that I would make 50% on my investment by January
-- in about three months. ByvNovember,9, 1983, the stock was traded at
five-eighté to a dollar. Soon after that, I believe at the end of
December, the company had a five for oneireversed split. -So, instead
 of havingv1,500 shares, I now had 300 shares. It was‘not until after
'January”that‘lvlearned my portfolio value was under $300.

During the decline, the company olamed outside forces on the

stock's price. First it was the warrant holders, then getting an



NASDAQ 1listing. All the time the hot line was telling us about
strikes, finds, new companies, and new leases. ~So, .I hung onto the
‘stock. I have a statement héfe from Korbin Securities,‘dated‘June 29,
which tells me that I have 300 shares of Ross'Exploration at 0.005% of

Ca dollar;,whatever that is worth. I gave up and chalked it up as a bad

- experience until I read The Star-Ledger -article on Sunday, January 20.

- f' N0w:I am ahgry at them. I am amazed at how companies can get awéy with

“fthis, and at the lack of regulations the State has to control the
}marketlng strategles that these companles employ. That is about it.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  There. is probably nothlng we
~ are going to hear today from anyone that will have more of an impact
. than your statement and your experience; I am glad that you took the
time to be heré today.h it is important that you are here so we can
understand.. - I would like to start off by asking Assemblyman Stephen
Adubato if he has any questions. :

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr.
Kv1st, you- séid you became interested in the company -- Ross
‘Exploratlon - through a radio advertlsement - ‘ ‘

’ MR. KVIST: - That's right. :

ASSEMBLYMAN'STEPHEN ADUBATO: You described very briefly what
that advertisement said. Obviously, you were impressed. o |

MR. KVIST: Yes, I was. :

ASSEMBLYMAN ~ STEPHEN ADUBATO: "What else about Ross
Exploration impressed you?‘ Maybe impress is not the right word. From
the point of view of legitimacy, or pefceiving that this particular
entity was a legitimate entity, what made you.think that?

MR. KVIST: I assumed it was legitimate.

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Did you have any expérience in
‘the stock market? _ ' |

MR. KVIST: None whatsoever. I am in residential kitchen
design. I design and draft; I know nothing about securities or'Stocks,
or anything like that. I heard about it on the radio and it sounded as
if this was a company of growth. I had a few bucks and, you khow, what
do you do? You put it in a money'market, or a CD, or something these
days. Well, I figured I was young and maybe I could do something with



this. The ad was very good. 'The information I got‘fromykorbin was
fvery good. I assumed, you know, rldlculously enough that everythlng
was legitimate and aboveboard, that this was. the way thlngs were done,v

and that 1t,was okay. They give. you this hot llne number to_call in

. the ad. 1 had given up calling, but I called it again last night.

R They are stlll saying they are strlklng this, they got another lease of‘
| land, ‘and they hit oil there. o ‘ ‘
' ~ ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: What was the reason they gave
. ~you when the ‘stock didn't go up, because at the time ‘that you
t,1nvested-—‘ ' : SRR ‘, o
| MR. KVIST: '(inter’rupting)‘ They blamed what they called a
"warrant holder." = They had warrants out; there was something going on
with warrants. '
| ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO:' How long did that last?
MR. KVIST: I guess it was into December; it was the end of
December. o , | : '
ASSEMBL YMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: The recordlng -- the 1-800
number -- what did they say last nlght7 They had said they expected to
strike oil the next week. But what was the reason they weren't going
" to strike o0il the next week'7

MR. KVIST: Snow; they had 18 1nches of snow. It was aiways

. that they would tell you something good, they would tell you something

bad, and then they would tell vyou something good. It was like a
sandwich dffect, you know. _

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: How much did you know about
Korbln Securities. | ’ |

MR. KVIST:  Nothing. . .

ASSEMBLYMAN - STEPHEN ADUBATO: You didn't know much about
them? . [
' MR. KVIST: No. !
ASSEMBLYMAN ' STEPHEN ADUBATO: Were you at all aware that ih
1976 Mr. Korbin was convicted by the Federal government.for somethihg
~related to fraudulent manipulation eractices inva penny . stock compahy
called ‘the Bel Air Financial Corporation? » ‘

MR. KVIST: No, not until the artlcle in The Star-Ledger




ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Were you aware that Mr. Korbin,
‘the head of Korbin Securities, the'securities firm which sold you this
. stock, was. suspended in 1979 from the securltles “industry by the SEC
'because of that conviction? '

MR. KVIST _ No, not at all. , e

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Were you aware that Mr. Korbin,
the head of the securities company which SOld.youvthe stock, and the
man “whom - Mr. Rosen works for, Was' censured twice in 1983 by the
"Natlonal A38001at10n of Securltles Dealers; whlch is represented here
: today, for v1olat10ns of security. rules7 : :
' MR. KVIST: I wouldn' t think that type of person would be
"allowed to be in business. I didn't know that there were no laws to
' protect people. ‘ v S : ’

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO Let me ask you this: Have you
ever heard of the Securities and Exchange Comm13310n7v

MR. KVIST: Yes. : ' : ‘ .

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO _ Dkay. Most vlaymen iike
,tourselves, who are not experts in the securltles 1ndustry, assume that
the SEC clears these thlngs, or at least we are okay if people have to
adhere to SEC regulations. The Securltles‘ -and Exchange Comm1351on
permitted‘Mr. Korbin, in 1981, to open up a new brekerage firm after
his ' conviction _in 1976. That  is according to the information we

‘received from The Star-Ledger and from other research we have done. In

fact, in 1984, three‘years after the Secqrities‘énd Exchange Commission
‘allowed Mr. Korbin back into the  industry, they began a new
1nvestlgat10n into Korbin Securltles ~ At any point during the time
- that you held this stock-- Do you still own this stock?
| MR. KVIST: Oh, yes. -
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: For a point of information, how
much was your'originel investment? |
~ MR. KVIST# It was $2,250. _ :
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: That was for 1,500 shares at
appr0x1mately $1.50 per share? |
MR. KVIST: Yes, a buck and a half.
‘ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: How much is that worth right

now?



“MR. KVIST: It's worth $197.00. , 7
ASSEMBLYMAN 'STEPHEN ADUBATO: That $197.00 represents 300
shares at .005% of one dollar? ' |
‘ MR. KVIST: I have that in my paperwork here somewhere. 1
‘ think it's quarterly that they send me thlS stuff.  (Witness looks
’_through his papers.) S |
' ASSEMBL YMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO:  Okay. When did you buy the
“stock, Mr. Kvist? N '
MR KVIST: September 16, 1983.
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: You told me that the stock
‘Began to go down very quickly, and you saw your investment
disintegrating before your eyes. In terms of sales practices, and in
rtermsiof promotlon-- You are in sales, if I am not mistaken, and to
‘SOMe extent you are familiar with these practices. Did anything happen
« in'Jahuary, 1984, when the stock of Ross Exploration was just about at
its lowest?  Did anything happen at that pointe which, in some way,
fpejﬁvenated yodr interest in the stock? . | - |
MR. KVIST: Well, yes. They invited us to a'cocktail dance

' P.they were having. It was a thank you to fhe stockholders. = Again, 1

think the warrant situation was cleared up, and they were'weiting for a
. NASDAQ 1listing, which was supposed to go throughout the country. Then,
' Vonce the rest of the country got a hold of Ross and it was available on
‘a NASDAQ sheet, you know, of course, everyone would be buying and .
selling it, and things would go up. We received an invitation to a
cocktail dance at Lowe's Glen Point East in Teaneck. It was quite
elegant. We went, and we went up to see the offices of Ross
: EXploration, which ‘were quite impressive. -~ We stood there and had
':"cocktalls w1th Clevon Little, Jake LaMotta, Muhammad ‘Ali,' and - Cyd
,f‘Charlsse. '
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: What were they there For?v
7  MR. KVIST: I believe they were stockholders. I found this
‘article from The Star-lLedger about Ross Pascall pumping up, you know--
h ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: (interrupting) Ross Pascall is
.the chief operating--

‘MR. KVIST: (interrupting) He is the owner of Ross

Exploretion.



ASSEMBL YMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Righf, right.

MR. KVIST: This article is dated April 1, 1984, ahd it says,
regarding Pascall Energy: "Ross had no trouble attracting . investors
before. Among. its 6, 000 shareholders aée boxing great'Muhammad Ali, Ed
Kranepbol; formerly of the New York Mets, ahd entertainer Cyd
'Charlsse." These are people that own the stock. They were there to --
whatever. They got Muhammad Ali up  there; ‘he is starting a ’sports

.company here.” I got something on that ffom Korbin. . He said he is
' ygoing to buy Ross' stock and Ross said he was going to buy Muhammad_
Ali's stock. You know, they were up there, and it was like a real "rah
rah" type of ‘a situation. They were pumplng everyone up. ’

"ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Were you impressed by that?

MR. KVIST:  Well, we were impressed to be standing there
having drinks with all of these famous people, thinkingrthat we were a
part‘of something "It was as if we were on the 1n31de, very nalvely,
we thought we were on the inside. ‘ _

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: ' Forgive me for ihterrupting
’yeur'presentation. vit isn't often that I have been known to be lost
for words, but I am. Quite frankly,' 1 think anyone, under those
vc1rcumstances, would be impressed w1th ‘those kinds of people

, MR. KVIST: I have a list here. We 'got home and we tried
~to--  Here is the invitation. We have Jake LaMotta' sv31gnaturee This
whole thing is full of autographs we got that night.

| ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: = Mr. Kvist, just so the people
here "will wunderstand, we are not so much concerned - about these

- celebrities and their business. What we are concerned about are the
sales practices here. '

MR. KVIST: Yes, right, how they'influenced me to hang on, or
‘whatever. =~ , , o - -
‘ASSEMBLYMAN'STEPHEN ADUBATO: My questioh;is about something
.else, nof »celebritiee, “but Mr. Pascall, whoy was there and who was
primarily*the person who was speaking. It was his cbmpany.‘tYou told
me, when we'“spoke before the. meeting,‘_that not only were the
celebrities there, but you mentioned other people who were there‘who

made you think this was more legitimate.

10



MR. KVIST: I overheard a conversation. He said he had every
mayor, and Assemblyman, and, you know, all the government types within
~a 50-mile radius there at the party that night. At least, that was:
what he was claiming to another person. : :

" ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: This was the presidentref the
" company? » T N o : R |

MR KVIST: Yes, he was saying--- . . o

~ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: (1nterrupt1ng) Forgive me for
1nterrupt1ng, but would you repeat that7 The president of the company
 said what? - o - . ~,,_e RS
| MR. KVIST: He was talking to'ebmeone;'ahd he said that there
must be every mayor, and councilman, you know, government types within
'a 50- mlle radius there that night -- people from all over.

 ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Just for the heck of it, ‘did he-
actually use the WOrd "Assemblymen?"

MR. KVIST: I'm not sure ,

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATD Did he say "elected off1c1als7"

MR KVIST: Yes, elected offlclals, but he did say . "mayors"

”rt and he did say "councilmen."

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: I was. not there, by the way
- MR. KVIST: No, you weren't there.
, ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Mr.~Chairman, fbr a point of
clarification, the person we are speakianabout, Ross Pascall, is the
,Cheirman and President of Ross Exploretioh Company of = Korbin
Industries. A little ihformation about Mr. Pascall.is‘in order. He
~was the person who was doing business w1th Muhammad Ali; they were
-901ng to buy each other's shares, etc. ' ' | ,
Mr. Pascall was a penny stock dealer unt11 the 19705, when he
 was barred by the Federal and State governments ~for two years.
Violations »agalnst ‘him were regarding tstock menipulatione‘ and sales
campaigns. He was convicted of ‘promoting stock without a 'broker's
‘;license.v In 1984, they began offering stock in Paseail‘Energy on the
_radio at fifteen cents a share. He grossed $1.6 million’in‘thet ad
campaign. An eariier'offering of Pascall Energy at tenhcehts grossed
$1.5 million. |

11



The reason I raise this point, Mr. and Mrs. Kvist, is that
you are obviously not alone. Let me'ask-y0d this, and I will finish my
"questioning, and 1 want to. thank‘the Committee's indulgence; Are you
at all embarrassed about belng here today? »

g 'MR. KVIST: of course. This 1s a very humbllng experlence,
Ylfa11 right? “When you get rlpped off by someone, you obviously get

-angry, and -you obv1ously want to get even, get revenge, or get your

- money back. ' The latter is what I really want. Sure, of CGUrse,‘I'want

.. _.my_money back, or 1 want the stock to go up - ‘like they claim it is

* 'supposed to. You call this hot line and they pump you up with false

)"'V'bhopes{' If‘you listen to the hot llne,‘youbthlnk they are the "Beverly

Hillbillies." ~Wherever they‘shoot‘a gun off, the oilveomes up. They
bcan'do no;wrpng;'aceording'to their hot line. I didn't think anyone
could just go to a radio station, 5adverfise,' and - say anything they
wanted on the‘air.“’1>did not know there were no controls.

_ nASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Finally, if ybu knew beforehand
“about " the things you read in the newspapers after you made your
,1nvestment and lost your investment-- If" you had that information

“about the management of Korbin Securities and Ross Exploration, would

v'°7rr?you have bought the stock?

MR. KVIST: I would not have bought 1t. _
7 o ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: You would not- have bought the
‘stock? ' ' o ’ ’ '
MR. KVIST: No; of course nof.
, ASSEMBL YMAN ~STEPHEN ADUBATO: Would you have considered

: ~ buying the stock?

MR. KVIST: No, not even a little bit.
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: ,Toni?'
MRS. KVIST: Not at all. |
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Thanke'you Qery MUch, Mr.
Chairman. K ‘ B 3 .
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: - I had one questidn I was going
to ask you; it was just that, and very properiy‘so.' Quite frankly, I
don't know, under the present conditions in New Jersey, ifnthat'would

~even be allowed -- that kind of ‘a disclosure, the fact that these
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» people. have already been convicted of fraud, the fact that it is
obvious they are not. people of 1ntegr1ty Yet, you know,‘it is not
. just 90vernment s respon51b111ty It is the resp0n31b111ty, primarily,

of the people who are: in the stock market, the legitimate people who
.deal with securltles, to police their own house.‘ Ubv1ously, they fail

“”V'mlserably at doing that.

Agaln, I want you ‘to know that I am very apprec1at1ve that
. you are 1nd1gnant that you are angry, and that you are here.
: ' MR KVIST I guess I just don't understand what happened to
‘p,the value of the stock in a company whlch is now expandlng, and which
now has the Pascall Energy. Group R 7
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO Is that a subSidiary,of'Ross»‘
'EXplorat10n7 o . o
MR. KVIST: VYes, it is atsubsidiary of Ross. Here, a company
is growing and,expanding. By what I purchased,ii shoWed initial faith
in these folks; I gave them my money. Now the stock is worth some
‘minuscule pereentage of a dollar. What happened? What is a reverse |
‘split? Why did I go from 1;500 shares to 300 shares? - o

. ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Didn't you authorize that?

7 - eMR. KViST: 'They authorized‘it. "It says here (referring to
paper in his hand): "Notice is hereby given that the directors of Ross
: Ekploratioh consent to a one to five reverse split, effectlve 4:00
P m. Eastern Standard Tlme, December 23.

o ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  Excuse me for interrupting
you. Who consented? : ) '

'MR. KVIST: . It says right here; "The directors of Ross

: ,gExploratlon.ﬂ

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO - In other‘words, you had no say
in thatQ; It was just done. You did not sell it; you did not trade
‘it. It was your stock but they did it. : ,

MR. KVIST: Right. They gave it to me thls way. This.is how .
I found out. o ' ' .
' ASSEMBL YMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Assemblyman Loveys?

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: I have a question. Maybe I should

address this to someone else in the audience other than you, sir. . Is
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this common practice? Can someone tell me if it is common‘practice in
“the industry to decrease in a stock split? Usually, when I hear of a -
stock split, people are elated and happy because they flgure they have
already made some money. - Can anyone answer that quest10n7 _

| ‘ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO Excuse me, Assemblyman Loveys.
(addressing audience) No one is g01ng to answer any questions, so
don't raise your hands. - Just keep your hands down. ~ We have other
‘witnesses here who are experts. Rather than go back and forth, we will

wait for the other people who have come here to testlfy, they will have

o the answers.

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: All'right, I will hold my question.

_ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  If they do not have the
'answers, we will find the answers. But, we are not’going to have an
open forum. | _ ’ v '

MR. KVIST: That is my question, and I question how and‘why
they did it. 1If they did it for a legitimate reason, well, here it is
1985. They are expanding into a resort in the Bahamas, and into
another venture hand-in-hand with another.group of people. I have a
note which they sent us on that.

They are diversifying and they are 901ng 1nto other areas.
‘They are obviously expanding on capital they are ralslng through penny
stock soliciting, but still the value is nothing. I just don't
understand that. '

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Well, you don't undefstand it,
and that is why we are here today. I don't understand how the State of

New Jersey -- and we, as elected officials -- don't know what is going
on. The Governor himself said he was not aware of just how serious a

matter this was. So, certainly if the Governor of the State of New
Jefsey is not aware of what is going on, there is no reason why an
Assemblyman should know what is going on. I think the best policy is
honesty; to say that we did not know it was that serious. This is not
an excuse; it is a reality. That is why this meeting is so important,
and that'is why your testimony is so imeortant so it will be on the
| record‘ " You know, w1thout carrying it through, the one thing I want to
say -- and I don' t want to shoot from the hip -- is that your response
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~ to Assemblyman Adubato shouId be repeated. = That responSe was, if you

had" known the track record of these 1nd1v1duals, you_wouldihave run ;i“V"

u‘.’:away from them very quCler

“MR. KVIST: Yes, I would Now,fI’donAt put'thesevcompanieS»'

I‘]»down,fbut'yoU'have Amway, ~and Mary Kay,*you know,fwith'multj+1evel‘“‘

‘marketing': They use advertlslng and the medla. tThey use marketing*

“Ifstrategles to manlpulate people 1nto thlnklng the way they want them tot o

. :;i'thlnk. They use the med1a as a tool to fulflll thelr own gain.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO 3 Assemblyman LaRocca, do youji

.a;vfhave a questlon’7 S

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA Did youteverjreceive a proSpectus7 e
MR.. KVIST - No.. 1 recelved a prOSpectus for Pascall They
wanted to sell me shares of Pascall. AT T

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA In1t1ally, wher you were sollc1ted dld '
"you ever recelve a prospectus7 - - . '
MR, KVIST: No. | , o
ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA Do you know what a prospectus 137"
v MR KVIST I do now. It tells you about a company, what 1t :
. is worth, and EY on.'. o ‘ : L : e )

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA “Are you sure you never. recelved one”

' Exploratlon.. : L o SRR »

‘ o ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO Thank you both very, very much

... for coming here. Is Dav1d Sheehan here? (afflrmatlve response fromi'
»gaudlence) - '

For those- people who have come: here to testlfy, we are not

MR KVIST I'm P081t1ve that I never recelved one on Ross‘.r

'g01ng to hear all the testlmony. We ‘are go;ng to have another meetlng,y]t

"but we have a full agenda today. You are welcome. to stay in the room;

"fyou are welcome to llsten to the testlmony, but those people who are

H‘, not on the llSt are not 901ng to have t1me to testlfy today. -~ If you

have Just submltted -your name, 1 would not ‘count” on- testlfylng. Thej

M»uchances are slim to none. 1 apologlze to _you, but because of tlmet'

’~’gconstra1nts we have no ch01ce. However, we do 1ntend to have another

meetlng, and we will be happy to have you testlfy then
' : Mr. Sheehan, please go rlght ahead :
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cDAVID’SHEEHAN' Thank you}v'My‘name is David'Sheehan,t I am an attorney

:_1w1th the law firm of Crummy, DelDeo, Dolan, Grlffinger, and Vecchione,s

‘sfnlocated here 1n Newark, New Jersey. What we have done over the last

. seven ‘years 1s operate as- trustee, and counsel to the. trustee, in a

Itnumber of” SIPC liqu1datlons.v SIPC is the acronym for the Securities'

"anilnvestor Protection Corporation, whlch is a blll enacted by Congress.

'v:It is an 1ndustry supported, not - for-profit corporation that protects .

: -f[customers when a broker/dealer goes bankrupt.T‘We go in and liquidate

' fh'that company. The - purpose of the statute 1s to provide protectiOn.for

77u,the customer, for the cash and securities which he has on dep031t w1th E
. the broker/dealer when it is liquidated. , R
1 asked to come here today to speak to thls Commlttee in
--order to prov1de you with some 1nformation,we have encountered,w1th
.reSpect.to the practices engaged in bybsome of the firms we have dealt
- with throUQh the SIPCiliquidation exercise. Essentially, these can be'_
'brokenldown into two areas. One is the'so;called "front office," that
is, the sales’ operation.v Then, inr,addition - iand this is an B
interrelated  matter -- there are the "back of fice" operations of the
“:brokerage firm.. What the individual who initially. testified pointed
out is very true across the board 1n many 1nstances when dealing with
some of these houses. What you have 1s a very unsophlstlcated
| investor,‘someone who -- as was pointed out -- may not even know what a
prospectus is until he receives one.v,He may not know what the nature
of the‘enterprise,is that he is investingvin; For example, on many
occasions we have had customers call us after we have gone in to start
‘liquidating a company. . They call, and we have an obligation under the
statute to forthwith deliver cash and securities to the customer.
Often,ﬂtwo things willihappen. One is, the customer will receive from
.us a warrant;and a common stock, because what he purchased was-a unit.
Often in the industry, what the new issuer will do is sell his stock as
a unit. = That term refers to a common stock and a warrant sold
" together. | | Co '
1 have had customers call me up and say,’"I bought units "
and 1 say, "Yes." Then,they say,‘"But, I didn't get units, I got
vcommon stock and a warrant." What they expected to receive was a piece
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of paper that said "unit" on it.v They didn't even understand what:a
f»uhit meant. In fect, when they purchased sa unit, what they were
getting was cohmon stock and a warrant to be exercised later. Also, on j
~many occasions we have had customers who have received the stock call
us up. They have no idea how to _eontact' the issuer or how to
fsUbsequentiy sell the stoek, and . no idea’ of: the nature of the
‘enterprise"itself, because they ‘feceiVed‘ no communication from the

‘broker at the time the stock was sold evidencing what the nature. of the -

"~ enterprise was. They received no prospectus. They didn't ask for one,

“but ih mehy instances they wouldn't know to ask,"Seg‘theibroker,is
" then seiling the_steck,'ehd,reelly what the customer is'relyihgvoh is

what the broker tells him over the phene., In many instances, what the
: :broker is ‘engaging in is what those in the securities ihdustry call
h;"prospecting," or,cold'calls, calling up customers who‘are not really
customers, individuels,out of phone books‘and‘other‘listings;v They
call them up, get them on the phone, and tell them that they‘have a
,rvefy good'investmenttfor them. The customer gets eieitedvabout it and
purchases’ the securlty, never having recelved a prospectus or any ‘other
tlnformatlon w1th respect to the company.

; Once that unsophisticated 1nvest0r gets 1nt0 the company, the
subsequent problems that develop are the ones‘that we see most often.
‘That investor becomes a captive of the compeny. What happens is, as he
purchases the stock -- and, perhaps he is-soehisticated enough to know
to ask that it be placed in his name, as opposed to his street name --
“he willbthen ask that the stock be. delivered out. Many, many customers
- complain to us that they can never get the stock out. The stoek'stays
. there. They'can't get it delivered out. The reason is, if the stock
jgets delivered»out, the cUstomer'goeS, as they say in the trade, flat.
v"He. not'longer ~has an active aCcount, so the broker. no longer has'
| something to trade with. He doesn't have a position. So, what he

tries to do is not let that stock out. We have often’had customers
"come to us and'say, "We have been trying for months to get our stock ‘
eut, We're so glad that you are in now and we can -get our stock out."

| "What will also happen is, the customer will be touted onto

enother stock. The stock that is already in the customer's portfolio
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will start to decline in value. The_customer'is not too happy with the
current history of his investment, and isn't too interested in making
another purchase. | What happens then is, all of a sudden  his next
customer statement reflects a sale of - his ex1st1ng stock and the

7“purchase of a new securlty, an unauthorlzed trade. The customer then

‘“tu:wrltes to his broker; he’ wrltes to the back office people; and, he

‘ufwrltes to the NASD and the SEC, -which then forward 1t to the broker for

" investigation. = In the meantime, the months drag on,,Whlle the 1nvest0r

"vi sits there with stock he purchased that 1s no longer 1n hlS account

‘and stock which he dldn't authorize purchas1ng is now in his account.
Another thing that happens often is that the customer will
call up, or he w1ll be called and told that he wants to purchase, for
~-example, 30,000 shares of hlS given securlty. One must remember that
often ‘these issues are' to the tune of 400 million shares, so that
_purchasing 30,000 shares isn't altogether'that'significant - What bhe
" gets back is a statement which tells him that what he really purchased

. was 20, 0oo, and there is a cash credit balance. There is no absconding

with the funds, it reflects accurately that he purchased only 20,000
' shares He wants elther the addltlonal 10, 000 shares that he thought
he purchased, or he wants his cash back. What subsequently happens, in
many 1nstances,'1s another unauthorlzed trade, where that cash is then
vdused to buy stock that he did not authorize purchasing.

v ‘What we then find is that the back office starts to creep
into the RR's conversation -- the registered representative, account
. executive, or whatever the term is for the salesman in that given
| company. It starts to creep into the conversation, because as these
~things start to happen, the 'customer‘ will be told: "You're right;
','absolutely right. That stock shouldn't be in your account. 1 don't
understand what is going on in that back office. .Let me check into it
‘and 1 will geti‘back to you." The -back office is the accounting
operation for the securities firm. It keeps'track of all the customer
trades, the trades with other brokerage houses, and the'purchases and.
,sales of securities. What then occurs is, the back office becomes the
' culprit. The back office is inefficient; the books and records are not
~ being kept properly. "As soon as we can straighten them out, your

account will be straightened out."
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The difficulty is that in many instances the back'office is
in a ‘state: of disarray, and the books and records are not being kept-
very well at. all Indeed, in the instances where we have been brought
1n by SIPC -- 1 have dealt with SIPC for a number of years, and I find
this to be so in other cases they have been 1nvolved in -- the state of
'jlthe books and records has been so bad that you cannot necessarlly rely

“on them to satisfy customer claims.  When we went» into  Southeast

”Securlties of Florida, whlchv was located in Hoboken,,ithe bank»
reconc111at10ns»in'thatvcase had not been done for four nonths. There
‘was no idea of what ‘cash was on hand, or what was available to pay out
" to customers for cash credit baiances, until we went in and started to
~do the bank reconc111ations after our app01ntment by the Federal
District Court. ,

That is not an uncommon occurrence when a brokerage house
| reaches that stage of the liquidation process where they are on the eve
| of going into bankruptcy. Those are two aspects of the brokerage firm,

that'is, the firm that engages in these kinds of activities and, as
| Assemblyman Adubato pointed out, we are not talking . about a large
percentage here; essentially, we are talking about the underbelly of
- the industry that engages in selling over-the-counter securities. ~We.
care not talking about major listed houses. These tjpesvof practices
are notbuncommon, and are found as a continual strain throughout all of
them.  The victim wultimately, of course, is the unsophisticated
customer who becomes involved. The whole jargon of the securities
industry is unknown to him -- longs and shorts, margin accounts, due
bills. A whole host of information is unavailable to him because be is
unsophisticated. But, he is being given high pressure sales tactics up
.front to get him into that industry. ~Once he is a part of it, he finds
out it is very difficult to disengage.  Essentially, that, in a Very .
general fashion, is what we have encountered in dealing with the
liqu1dat10ns we have dealt with to date.

I would be glad to answer any questions from the Committee.

B ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Thank you for coming today,
Mr. Sheehan. vAssemblYman Adubato? ' : :
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- ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: ‘Thank'you; Mr,'Chairman. Just
VEry >briefiy, Mr. Sheehan, you,bsaid your firm -specializes ‘in
bankruptcies and liquidations. i ‘ '
MR. SHEEHAN: Among other things, yes. o | -
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN - ADUBATO:  In the case of Southeast
Securities, a New Jersey-based firm dding business in Florida, What
cduld have been done, in your opinion? Once you went in‘thers and you
saw - the bdoks;,and you saw .the way SOutheast wasteing managed, what,
~W;in your opinidn; could government have done, if anything, to have
: prevehted1thét'iiquidation, and‘pfevéntéd‘ths compény'from,going into
'irséeistship? Or, do you see if;‘in'your experience and expsrtisé‘as
- an attorney in this field,'as the natural course of‘bUSiness that this
| company just couldn't maké_it with their product? By the way, Qhat was
their product? |
MR. SHEEHAN: Their product was essentially-new issues. What
‘they .were engaged in was"primarily, delivering ~new 1issues to the
‘“msrketplace. ~They also sold other over-the-counter securities, but
“that was essentially their main product. | - 7 '
| ASSEMBLYMAN  STEPHEN ADUBATO:  Could government have done
.anything to avoid"thatf situation where ‘customers lbst significant
amounts of money? _ ‘ | o | R : ,
MR. SHEEHAN: That is a very difficult question to answer.
_Let me break it’dowh,»if I may, into several parts. One, we live in a
'ffee snterprise system, and the customer should be allowed to purchase
whatever seCurity he wants. I'think that at best what we can achieve
is to provide him with the. tools necessary ts make an intelligent
choice. For example, your first witness did not get a prospectus
 before he was able to‘buy the stock. There:should be a requirement
that~that:kind of information be made available to the customer before
he purchases it.: There should be'further access to information with
regard to the principals of the company itself, the company which is
actually selling the securities, ”so the customers would have some
insight into who they were dealing with. o |
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: That's fair game.
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MR. SHEEHAN: Yes. For example, I think if you call up a
‘major house -- without-naming‘any names, we all know who they are; they
advertise -- you - know YOu are ‘dealing basically with a legitimate
corporation which has been in business for many, many years. 'But,»when
- you deal w1th an over the counter house, you are not necessarily sure
whovtheybare. Perhaps if there were some 1nformatlon avallable to the
:vpublic, 'or 'requlred to be prov1ded that would-- Agaln, the flrst ’

vw1tness indicated he would not have dealt with that company if he had

4known its background. That k1nd of information would arm’ the investor

| s;'w1th the - klnd of 1nte111genoe he needs to make . an 1n51ghtful dec181on.

- ASSEMBL YMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: -~ Thank you, Mr. Sheehan. Thank'
fYou, Mr. Chalrman.~i ' n , -
ASSEMBL YMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: It 1is interesting to note the

lack of 1nformat10n ‘that is shared You know, when I look at the New
~ Jersey statute and regulations for a person who is doing some very
menlal_task in a casino, the kinds of forms he has to fill out, and the
kind of‘information he has to share before he'can be employed in a
- casino, a person s whole hlstory has to be publlc information. It has
to be disclosed. “And, here we are allowing people to invest thelr llfe,

savings, ~maybe, with persons who do not- have to disclose any

o information about ‘anything.

MR. SHEEHAN: = Well, there isv a' registration requirement.

~There are other witnesses here-- ’ o o | - E |

' ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:i (interrupting) Well, we will

- get into the registration requirement, but I don't think that is

'bprotecting anyone. Iimean, it is a requirement, and that's nice, but

't'the 1mportant thlng is, what does it do? R x"- ‘

B MR. SHEEHAN Yes, that's true. In the case of Southeast, in

"several instances -- and the Bureau of Securities was on top of this

== they had salesmen who- weren't even reglstered .as selllng.v They

didn't even bother to register. | | ' D
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Is it a falr statement to say

"that the oaptlve 31tuat10n is something where once they ve got you,

they don't 1let go? ‘ _
MR. SHEEHAN: They don't want to.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MIﬁHAEL ADUBATO: Let's say that the mentality,
in my opinion, based on. what you and other people have told me, is that
‘of a person who is a v1ct1m of a flnance company because he can t get
credlt at a commerclal bank. ‘His only hope is the finance company, SO
- he goes to the flnance company and makes hlS payments, or whatever, andh
fjwhen it gets down to his last payment they say.i,"Don't pay it." Leave
,; an open account." Then they Jjust reklndle him. That may be stretchlng
_k,the p01nt but I think the phllosophy is the same.
~ MR. SHEEHAN: T agree. B - ,

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO When these outflts tout, do
‘?ipthey trade within their own entity as much as p0581ble7
' MR. SHEEHAN: - That is correct; that is often the case. What
you wlll find is that when a brokerage house collapses, as Southeast
"dld the market generally falls apart with respect to_the issues it was
supportlng. | | ' |

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: - Total? - .

v .‘ MR. SHEEHAN: Well, it generally goes very flat, andhit is
very difficult to resurrect it until such time -- interestingly enough
== as the RRs, the registered reps, move out and go on to other
Qcompanies, call up the cUstomers whom they have left.behind at the
"11qu1dated brokerage house, and say, "I am' now. located at a new
company" -~ or whatever it mlght be -- "have my account transferred
‘over to me; I.wlllbtake care  of it." Then they might be able to'
rejuvenate that stock. But, without that Kind of input, what happens

is, the -market act1v1ty supportlng the prlce of the stock, whatever it

o might be at that point, just dlsappears.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Is it a fair analogy, Mr.
Sheehan, to say that if a person were dealing, or buylng stock, and he
had a broker, that broker, when he trades, makes a comm1391on whether a
‘person buys a stock or whether he sells a stock through that broker7

MR. SHEEHAN Absolutely. o _
: - ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Is that a normalfsituation for
' 'independent brokers,‘ people who are legitimate, that vthey make a
commission on both ends for a service? '

MR. SHEEHAN: Absolutely.
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‘ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: In these asltoations; “do ,tbe‘
oeople who are more or less captives.ofvtheseASecorities dealers, or
these types of‘ehtities, make a commission if they sell the stock that
this peraoh bought with their house? Do they getha commiasiOn,on that?

| MR. SHEEHAN: - Oh, sure; absolutely. That is one reasoh,for
vgeneratlng sales and keeplng them captlve.. S - |

'ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Well here is my point; let me
rephrase it. . If a person buys a penny stock -- okay? -- and he ‘makes a
e COmmiSSion, and:the broker makes a commission, if»that is,an~in-houeeb

bfaocount‘and‘they trade that stock, they sell that stock, and they buy'
'another stock that is controlled by that same - entlty, in that mlre,

‘ I do not thlnk there would be a problem w1th anyone. I think- everyone
‘would still be happy

MR. SHEEHAN: That's true. . |

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: But if that person took that
penny stock and wanted to sell it and get out 1 thihkithere'might be a
Problem. ’ : o l N L
MR. SHEEHAN: We found that to‘be a consistent‘comolaint.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATU ~ That is what’lbwanted,to pothon
‘the table. o T |

MR. SHEEHAN: Okay. - » -

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL‘ADUBATO: People are intimidated, and I
mean intimidated. I am.not just talkino about high pressure sales; I'm
talking about intimidation. I'm talking about the fact that people who
want to cash in that stock have a hard time d01ng it. |

MR. SHEEHAN:,_Yes, sir, that is absolutely true;

, ASSEMBLYMAN. MICHAEL ADUBATO: . And, it is all legal,
- asupposedly. - o | S .
MR. SHEEHAN: Well, the difficulty is that we are not talking
about —- I , - o o
_ ~ ASSEMBLYMAN -MICHAEL - ADUBATO: (interrupting) = 1 said
nsupbOsedly." o ' B ’

MR. SHEEHAN: Supposedly, okay. . o
- ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: I say that in jest, because it
is happening. 1 said, "Supposedly it has to be legal." It happens
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everyday; itvhappens eVery minute{' So; 1 am sure it 1is supposedly
legal; otherwiSe, the people in government would do somethlng about
' it. That is my point.

MR. SHEEHAN: Exactly. . S o
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Or,i at least those credlble
‘ people in the 1ndustry ‘would : clean up the1r own house, 1nstead of
;jWalt;ng,for the government to rush in. Then they start crying»wolf:f
‘"Leave us alone. Youlknow; itls a bureaocracy. You're over-regulatlng
us.," I thlnk it 1s 1mportant to put ‘on the record that when people
,don't see anythlng happenlng to these. 1nd1v1duals, when they see that

"*ithey get away w1th what they are d01ng, they supposedly thlnk it is

legal too: "I guess it is  all right, because no one is - d01ng
“anything." R
‘MR‘ SHEEHAN: That could very well be the case. 7
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: AsSemblyman--LaRocca, do you
have ‘any questions? | ' o '
- ASSEMBL YMAN LaROCCA: Aren't there‘State:laws on the books
regard1ng reglstratlon and isn't ther some kind of contrOl over all -
;llssues and securities? R

MR. SHEEHAN: Well, there are, but as I understand it, the

"reglstratlon requ1rements -- of course, there are exemptions "to those

~ —- follow ba31cally the Federal securities laws, which are predicated

“upon disclosdre.» The interesting tbang in this-regard is that if you
read the prospectus, if you actually get one, it will adhere to that
disclosure requirment You'will find that it will say right on the
very Front of it, in bold- print, that if you can't afford to lose all
of your money, don't buy this stock. '

 ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: In your opinion, what is ‘wrong?  We
) appear to have -- not appear -- we do have rules and regulations about
all kinds of disclosures. _ We also have this on a‘State'level and |
st111 all of these thlngs happen. You are experlenced as an attorney.
What would your op1n10n be -as to what the problem 'is? Why do these
thlngs happen‘7 ' . , | : »
MR. SHEEHAN: Quite frankly, 1 think it is a dissemination

problem to a large extent, in this sense: While the prospectus is
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‘hrequired, and it is indeed filed and examined for compiete'disclosure,‘
the question is really whether or not the investor in these types of

securities ~actually receives it and gets the benefit’ of that

information. - That is a very dlfflcult thlng, 1 do not suggest it is

easy to regulate and assure yourself that that is happening. I would

'yisay that while we have all of those regulatlons, and we force the issue
_‘that we are- to disclose all of the documentation - concerning the

'bbackground of the individuals and the flnances of the company, in many

1nstances, the 1nvestor never sees it. . .
| ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: You're saying the problem is not w1th

the law, not with the regulations, but possibly;w1th the Bureau that

‘administers it. Maybe they don't have enough money; maybe they don't

have enough attorneys or investigative staff; er,'pessibly it could be

the 'very nature of the American public, that there is a direct

relationship between gambling in Atlantic City and gambling in Wall

Street. Everyone wants to make a dollar.

-1 am trying to figure out the basis of all these nroblems.
Apparently we have enough laws. I know that I_have a complete staff in
t_my office, and after 48 years of practicing law;-they follow the book.
I hired attorneys from the SEC, both State and Federal, to make sure

that there is dlsclosure, and it is- there. You have all these high
pressure things. ‘

Another comment I can make, just as an aside on that, is that
in handling estates over 48 years of practice, 1 haven't seen one
estate, whether the total gross was $10,000 oj $1U‘million,tthat didn't
have dog stocks in it. ~Every one of them. When I go to file the
inheritance tax return, I have to put down "no value." I have to get a

certificate from a broker to substantiate that with the tax people, so
I do not report it as an asset. = And, it comes back, "No record,“ or
FV"Theynwere liquidated," and so forth. ~So, maybe the problem is with
the people themselves. You can put up a lot of signs saying, "Don't
gamble here," butvpeople will still gamble on the big American dream.
- MR. SHEEHAN: I agree with virtually everything you just

said. I think there is probably a great deal of regulation. There is
a lot of law. There is difficulty with the-public itSelf; you can't
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,protect the;public in certain instances. "But, ‘I think what I perceive
to be the problem, as I ‘said, is more they dissemination of
‘information. I think - the best3examole'Was your first witness this
,morning,‘whO»said,that ifghelhad had that‘information; he would not
"have~invested.¢< I think there is a lulling effect upon the investor
- when he thinks the Securities and Exchange Commission‘is'involved, and
~ the State Bureau of Securltles is involved, that he is protected. He
knows it is a well regulated area; so, therefore, 1f he purchases, he
‘has to be all rlght. . That 1sn t necessarlly true, because -the
g fundamental basis for those laws is dlsclosure S0 that one can make an .
1ntelllgent dec131on. ,
‘The only thlng I can offer to the Commlttee, perhaps, is that
if. we can, through further stafflng on the State or Federal level-- 1
‘flnd that to be a problem. - It is very difficult with the prollferatlon -
of these offices to keep trackvof all of them, to know who. is moving
~ from where to where, and what new issuesvare‘coming out. If we had
further support with the existing laws through'those agencies, I think -
you. might . find that the salutary effect which that leglslatlon was
:1ntended to have, would indeed then have that 1mpact ‘
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  You know, it is interesting
that the Governor, in his statement, said that he wasrnot aware of this
problem justbhased on what he has heard. If I:interpret his statement
correctly, he said that he feels legislation should be introduced in
-New Jersey. So, evidently the Governor doesn't think that our laws are
strong enough. He.said'he would -- I didn't understand»this part --
draft a bill. I know he used to be an Assembl)unan,‘ but ‘he is not
anymore. So, I'm sure he was misquoted. He will not introduce any
bill, unless?he—wants to serve inlboth'positions at the same: time.
I'm sure it was a misquote. But, the Governor himself who is the
Chief Executive OFfieer of this State, already acknowledges that our
laws are lacking. I don't even think that is an 1ssue. I think the
issue is, what are- we going to do about it? ‘It's not that we already
have enough laws' we don't. It is obvious to the Governor,'and 1t is
obvious to me that we need more legislation with teeth in it, as well

as people to enforce it. There 1 would agree totally. As Assemblyman -
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LaRocca said, you can have all the laws invthe land, but if you don't
have people to enforce them, the laws do . not mean anything. |

So, in that respect 1 would concur totally. Also, based on
~the statements of people in public office who are almost in ‘a state of
- ‘shock, they had to admit, as 1 am admlttlng, as the Chalrman of the -
"Assembly Banking and Insurance Committee, as a person who has had the
privilege of'serving in government in an elected officetforr12 years,

‘that they were not aware. That is not a- cop-out; you know. - As the

" - Governor said, he was not -aware that this was- such an. exten31ve

fproblem.’ That is. not - a cop-out, and once we acknowledge that, that is

- . why we are here. Assemblyman Loveys‘7

_ , ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS:  Mr. Sheehan, how many 1nvestlgators are
employed by the State of New Jersey? : ,
| © ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Excuse me for doing that to
ydu, Assemblyman LoveySQ : The‘ person who is in“charge iof that
Division is coming up next the Director of Consumer Affairs. Maybe we
ought to leave that for him. oo .
- ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: That is two questlons I ‘have backed up.

>ASSEMBLYMAN‘MICHAEL ADUBATO: I'm sorry. o

-ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: I have another question; let's see if we
can make it three for three. . o . h: :

» _ ~ ASSEMBL YMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: I'm sorry, but he doesn't know
anyway.. , | ' | ' ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: In your vast experience working with
bankruptcies in these areas -during the past seven years, could you
guess what percentage of those selling stocks in this area we are
“"talklng about? _ ‘

” MR. SHEEHAN: The percentage of-- o
‘ ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: The percentage of those who are creating
some ‘of the'major probiems in this industry.

MR. SHEEHAN: "I would be'guessing; I am not reallyfsure, but‘a
it is a small percentage. :However, Itreally don't know.
- ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Could you just take a guess?
MR. SHEEHAN: My guess would be 5%.

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Five percent.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: That's a good guess.
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MR. SHEEHAN: But that is all. 1t is.
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS Right. I have one other question for

you, Mr.,Sheehan, and I say this partly in Jest Dld you ever buy an
Edsel? '

. MR. SHEEHAN: D1d I ever buy an Edsel7 No.
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Okay. el :
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO You know, I'm not cutting you

e ‘off 1ntent10nally, even though you are a Mlnorlty member.v (laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: I am well aware of that. -
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO ‘Assemblymah ‘LaRocca, do you.

s have any questlons7

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: No, thank you. ’ .

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Okay. Again, Mr. Sheehan, I
appre01ate your taking the t1me from your very busy schedule .to come
‘here to share your experlence, because it certalnly is of great value
to this Commlttee. I want to compllment you as a ~citizen of New
"‘ Jersey who is obviously interested in the people of New Jersey Your

 mere presence shows that, and I apprec1ate it very much '

| MR. SHEEHAN: Thank you. I -
» ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: We would like to have both
" James Barry, Director of the New Jersey DlVlSlOﬂ of Consumer Affalrs,
and James Smith, Chief of the New Jersey Bureau of Securltles,,Joln us
at the witness table. Mr. Barry, as a former colleague who has had the

same privilege I have of serv1ng in the Assembly prior to your present -

'app01ntment I know you realize our dllemma. Thank you for coming here

today. B , ,
 JAMES 3. BARRY, JR.: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. For the record my ‘name
is James Barry. I am the Director of the D1v131on of Consumer

. Affairs. I apprec1ate this opportunlty to testify today on the subject
cof the penny stock market. . ' .

New <Jersey -has two securltles laws -- The Uniform Secur1t1es
Law:of 1967 and The Real Estate Syndication Offerlngs Law. The Uniform
Securities Law is’modeled after the‘Uniform~Securitles Act, one of the
~_model acts adopted by the National Conference of Commissioners onb
Uniform State Laws . k ‘ '
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, New Jersey's Uniform Act differs from the Uniform Securities
Act in,that New Jersey's law does not provide for the registration of
securities which are also registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. This means that there is no flllng or rev1ew of any such
' offerlngs, 1nclud1ng penny stock offerlngs.

I believe there is room for change in the statute. ‘The

' Leglslature could require registration designed to »3331st in the

protectlon of ‘investors. Disclosure reglstratlon with some statutory'>’

"_merlt requ1rements mlght be preferable to dlsclosure alone. - If this
| form of regulatlon were requ1red,. we could repeal the Real ‘Estate
Syndication Offerings Law to av01d duplication. = The Real Estate
-Syndicaticn_'Offerings Law’,how requires disclosure registration for
,offerings by issuers engaged in some aspect of the real estate business
~and would only duplicate securities regulation under  the Uniform
Securities Law. '

It is my understanding that most other state statutes have

provisions for the registration of securities. Some are disclosure

- states and others ‘merit review states. I cannot comment on ‘the

adequacy of spec1f1c state regulat10n° however, I'm sure that other
| speakers here today will be able to assist the Ccmmlttee on that point.

- The creation of companles, penny stock or otherw1se, with no
bona fide business or purpose cannot help but be detrlmental to the

' ‘1nvest1ng publlc. The money.obtalned‘by 'such issuers  is drained fromv,
- the . legitimate capital-raising process. At the present time, such
companies can sell their securities in New Jersey if the securities are

>registered‘with the SEC. Most other states register such offerlngs and

" 'many have the authority to reJect them after a merlt review.

Ideally, markets are created by a bona fide publlc demand.
~ Sales practices employed by broker/dealers that .create markets by
' confusing, misleading;' or intimidating investors create problems.
These practices include hyping a stock, refusing to take sell orders,
and making false promlses New Jersey s law is not very different from
-the laws of other stateslin this regard.

Education is extremely important and is one factor that we

stress at the Division of Consumer Affairs. - An informed investor is

29



the best defense against the sort of prpblems»that this Committee is
looking into. |

The Division attempts to educate the publicyin all areas over
which it has jurisdiction. We have a toll free telephone access
information system consisting of 159 tapes on a variety of subjects,
hilncludlng two tapes on securities. B f '
In addltlon, we distribute 1nvestor alert press releases and

an informatlve brochure entitled, "How to Protect Your Savings From Con

' ”-:Artist Hypnosis." ThiS’material'hasvbeen produced as a result of a

joint effort by the Councilvof Better Business Bureaus and the North
" American ' Securities Administrators Association, of  which we are a
- member. The releases deal w1th varlous problems in the securities and
vsecurltles related industries, 1nclud1ng commodity 1nvestments, tax
shelters, o0il ‘and gas lottery investments, and penny stock.

One of the problems that the Dlv1s10n faces is that investors

who have lost money 1n securities are more often than not embarrassed
by the fact that they have been taken. -They often refuse to file a
complaint or cdoperate; especially if the amount invested is small. In
o addltlon, many salesmen are so good at duping people that thelr v1ct1ms
“don't know that they have been taken. '

_ I am pleased that the Legislature and the medla have devoted
“time and attentlon to . this 1mportant “area of _consumer fraud.
Securities fraud can cost consumers thousands.of dollars and sometimes
their 1life savings.

In the past two years, this form of consumer abuse has ‘grown,

in part because of the improved economic conditions nationally. The
fact that more people have money to invest in a bull market has not

" ‘escaped the con artists who can make a furtune on fraud and deceit
hDuring the same period, the stock market boom has trlggered a 100%
f increase in appllcatlons for broker/dealers and ‘agents.

There mlght always be a buyer for the phony elixir, the
miracle cure, and the worthless stock, but with consumer educatlon, the
toughest 'laws,‘ and effective enforcement, the number of injured

consumers can be reduced significantly.
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I thank you for your interest and stand ready to éssist'you
in any way as you’consider constructive changes in the law that will,
.hopefully, improve protection for New Jersey consumers. | f v

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Mr. Barry, I, for one, am not
taken back by your testimony. I more or less had the opportunity,

,.bepause I - served with you, to. know how :interested‘_you are and .how

dedicated you are to the people of New Jerééy. Your opening salvo

" doesn't surprise me at all. What you said is very clear. Assemblyman
5V'Adubato, do you have any questions? S
| ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Mr. Barry and Mr. Smith, while

”:Y;I was‘ndt in the Legislature when you were there, 1 am pleased that you

~ Jjoined us today, but I am particularly pleased that Mr. Smith is here.

In many ways, Mr. Smith -- and, you know it better than any one of us
-- you are charged, és ”Chief of the Bureau of Securities, with
tne‘responsibility of regulating or enforcing the laws that thnse of us
in'State governmént put on the books. It is clear that New Jersey's
reputatiqn—f Let me ask you this: In terms‘of making it,perfectly
clear as to. what“New Jefsey's reputation is in the penny stock industry

4-‘and I will move to another questlon after you answer -- do _you have

f‘any feellngs, Mr. Smith, about-- . . v

| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  (interrupting) Excuse me,

‘.ASSemblyman. ‘ o

' ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Sure.

, ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Even thoughbyou are a Majority
member,b,we- nave a fair, even hand here. 1f apologizé to both the
;ASsenblyman ‘and Mr. Smith.vv i think we ought _to hear Mr. Smith's
'f testimony firét, and then we can ask them both questions. Okay? So, I

stand corrected. Mr. Smith, would you like to read your statemént?’
JﬂMES McLELLAND SMITH: = Thank you, Mr. Chairmén. My name is James
McLelland Smith. I am the Chief of the New Jersey Bureau of
‘Securities, which is the agency that -administers New Jersey's
usecurltles laws. » |
» At this time, I would like to thank you for- affordlng me this
opportunity to speak before this Committee. In all likelihood, we

would not be here if it were not for the excellent series of penny
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-stock articles written by Robert Cohen. 'Myv remarks today do not
“necessarily refer to thé spebific persons named in those articles, but
. to the topics covered. These articies put the spotlight on a growing
 .pr0b1em with a relatively .small, but . persistent segmentv of the
Secu:ities indﬁstry. I -am referring tda an ' amoral group of
 ,100sely-connected con artists which has infiltrated the so-called penny

~stock market. Like all other con artists, this'gfoup's main goal is to

R fleece the public. They do this by selling worthless or overpriced

paper in exchange for empty promises. Their victims represent all
',walké'ofjlife‘and include,the'sophisticated, as well as the novice.
Withv'the compassion of a -shark, these predators methodically strip
investors of their savings. It doesn't matter to thém_that the money
they take was to be wused for a child's college education or for a
- long-needed vacation. It doesn't eQen matter that they are taking
money ‘representing a widow's sole source of retirement income. Most
victims are so embarrassed at having been duped that.they refuse to
file a complaint. Many don't even‘kndw'that they have been taken.

The tools of the con artist are the telephone,:persistence,
half truths, outright‘iies, and:a‘glib tongue. The bait‘they‘use is
'the_hope of a sure p:ofit. The catalysts are greed, lack of knowledge,

‘f" and a naive belief ~on the part of the“investor that government

regulation of securities protectsrthem completely. ,
“The problem with the penny stock market has two parts: the
companies issuing the securities, generally referred to as the issuers,
—-and the ‘persons selling and making a market in these securities, the
broker/dealers and the agents. Many of these issuers of penny stock
are owned or controlled by people “who have been thrown out of the
securities or commodities business; others have been .sanctioned by
regulatory authorities or are closely related'by business or family to
.. ~those sanctioned. They make themseivés officers; directors, and
| majority shareholders of corporations with legitimate-sounding names.
As insiders,‘they purchase a majority of the shares for a small amount
of money, and offer to sell the minority of the shares to the public at 7
a price per share many times what the insider is paying. The stated

purposes of these companies are as varied as the insider's
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imagioation, The realfpurpose, however, - is simply to take money from
the public without giving anything in return. » " '
- The issuer and broker/dealer are usually’brought together by
' ia consultant who'may‘also'be ‘the person creating theiiSSuer. The
consultant is one of those faceless, behind the-scenes movers in this
subculture 1ndustry who is valued for his. contacts. His charge to the
issuer ‘may be a ~.yearly fee of $25,000 to $60, 000, usually for
nonexistent‘consultant.services.v More often thangnot he will get a
percentage”oflthe insider's stock. This may sound iike a lot, but he
" is worth it because he cao provide the issuer with a broker/dealer that
can- bring the issuance company to the publlc. '
~ The main factor in bringing the penny stock issue to the
_public is the sales force of the broker/dealer. Very often, they are
' no more than boiler shops. Their sales forces very often consist of
heat merchants or graduates of defunct penny stock dealers, or both.
Sometimes the ,saies persons © are novices having arrests for minor
cocaine or marijuaha charges, who,are_givenﬁtheir first jobs inkthe
" securities business. Some are registered and some are not,,but‘most
:are easily-manipulated. 'The'salesbeople are usually»motiyated at sales
meetings where they are told that:they are to concehtrate.on selling a
particular stock. The - experienced salesperson- knows the routine.
First, he sets up the ‘investor with a low-key call'of:introduction,
tellingdhim that he has nothing)now, but when he does, the investor
tmust be prepared to move, and move fast. A week or two later; the
'I1nvestor 1s called again and told that now is the time to invest in the
chance of a lifetime, that they have been holding aside a small
allotment JUSt for him. ProsoectuseS' containing disclosure of alli
‘risks, even if requested, are rarely sent prior “to final confirmation,
if then. Wooden tickets, the sending out of a confirmation when no
sales were ‘authorized, are often used. Investors lucky enough to
‘receive a prospectus, to read it, and to questionvthefsalesperson; will
‘usually be convinced or intimidated into accepting the sale. Aithough
the main purpose of the prospectus is disclosure, it is often of little
‘protection-to the investor in the circumstances I‘haVe just described,

‘and the con artists are fully aware of this.
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".pentrepreneurs ordbroker/dealersrwhotrepresentithe.clear najor

; ; other Federal ‘agencies must .

’Later, in the so called aftermarket similar and

problems occur. Customers are continually lied to. Salesp
: rarely allowed to buy securltles from customers, and. are co
The activiti

of  the

very often, only when such securltles are sold

have just described are not the act1v1t1es

 securities industryL But, the harm that these actiVities

"”erNew Jersey and to New Jersey re31dents cannot be taken llghtly.:
but they tarnish the

_ not only tarn1sh the 1ndustry s reputatlon,
:"reputatlon of our State. ’

| There are Federal and state securltles laws in p]
v"are de31gned to cope with these and similar problems. There'

and Federal»agenc1es‘whose job it is to administer these

‘might be beneficial at this time to take a brief look
and th

‘shared by the

The Securities and Exchange Commission is a fed

: Securitles- reqgulation is _states
government. ’
charged with administering the Federal securities laws.
originally.COnceived in the early 1930s to supplement exis
Each state also has its own secur
Thi

‘believed to be derlved from a 1911 ‘court ‘decision 1nvolvu

Securities’regulatiOns.

fCollectlvely, these laws are know as "Blue Sky Laws " ;5

_securltles law, in which the court noted that the securitie

’1n that case had no more substance than so many feet of blup sky.

state standards, the SEC is a huge agency; by Federal standa
Notwithstanding the fact that the SE

" one of the better run Federal agencies,

one of the smallest.
it cannot do, and
claim to have the ability to do, the whole JOb of regu
It is

and under pressure to operate within budget restralnts,

'securltles 1ndustry or of protectlng the 1nvestor. ur

.j(
It has no ch01ce but to a
to

locally-orlented fraud and abuse to state agenc1es, such as

Federal interests before entering a case and

of Securltles.

The SEC fully expects the states to shoulder a heay
to increase state budgets and personnel to take up the sla
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with this situation, each state must respond to protect its investors.
No one will do it for us. ‘Many states not only review‘offefings for
: discloeure'purposes, but have thelability to reject offerings found to
be unfair, Unjusf, inequiteble, or which tend to work a fraud on
investors. ' This is called "merit'review " f’ | |

- Let us look at the protectlon afforded New Jersey residents.:
New Jersey not only does not have merlt review, it has no. review
:,whatsoever for offerings, 1nclud1ng penny stock offerings filed with
the SEC. The securities laws in New Jersey make it a so- called "free
~ State." Once securities have been Flled w1th‘the SEC ‘New Jersey s law
ifpermlts these securities to be sold w1th0ut filing,. w1th0ut review, - and
A_w1thout clearance of any kind. \ o

| It is my job as Chief of ‘thev Bureau to administer ‘these*
laws. They - are laws which were . designedv to protect investors from
abuses involving securitiee. ~ In addition to coping “with the penny
stock market problems, the Bureau is required to. fegister'
'broker/dealefs, agents, and investment advisers doing business in or
" from the State of New Jersey. This is done by reviewing applications
' for reglstratlon in order to determine wnethe: . oT th such a
- registration is warranted. At the present time, we naveynearly 44,000
’ agenfs, 1,200'breker/dealers,’and 300 investment advieers registered.
This ~represents an approximate 100% increase. in registrants since
1982. = Each year we enswer thousands  of inquiries and process numerous
exemption requests. Each week hundreds of new agentvapplieetions must
be processed. = According to my review of “current etafistics, the volume
of registrations in New Jersey ranks the State about fifth in the
,ynation. Applications  for fegistration as broker/dealers ‘and agents
continue to pour in each week. As the VOlnme”increases, the review

time naturally decreases. More and more problem people are attempting

" to become registered.  Some accurately state their backgrounds, and

~ some do not. . Many boiler shop and bucket shop employees, and many who
- have been trained in companies operating commodity-related scams, are
“now filtering back into the securities industry. We cannot catch or
properly review all of them. With that amount of activity and with New
 Jersey's proximity to New York and Pennsylvania, the problems that

should, but cannot be investigated, grow accordingly.
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For the record, it should bevnotedkthat these pfoblems are
‘not‘limitedvto‘thevpenny stock market.' States' securities agencies,
such ‘as the Bureau ofvSecuritiee, are on the cutting edge of fraud.
Our 1nvest1gat10ns, which 'are 1n1t1atedv by Bureau personnel,

: 3references, and complaint letters, concern all classes of reglstrants,;

"'fias' well ‘as  those flauntlng the reglstratlon requ1rements. _ Some

"complalnts ,are JUStlfled others, are not, but all deserve.
- investigation. In addition to the standard investigations, the Bureau

‘alse 1nvestlgates whatbare known as "exotic" securities, an area that
““the SEC is leaving almost completely to theYStates.v For example, we
:'investigate-pyramid_schemes’and boiler shop eelling schemes'ihvolving
the 'oii and gas lottery, bogus o0il leases, and deferred delivery'
contracts in coal, preciOUS metale,'andestrategic metals. We have been
-successful -in shutting down several of these entltles These and
numerous other scams are looked into by no other State -agency. The
actions we have taken, often in cooperation w1th postal inspectors,
have saved residents of New Jereey and other states many millions of
dellars.. However, mahy times that amount is:being lost because we are
’-funable'to.effectively investigate and’prosecute 0ffendefs ~ Very often,
" one major 1nvestlgatlon brings the office to a near halt. _ '

To reglster agents, conduct 1nvestlgat10ns, ‘answer inquiries,

‘and do all of the things I have mentloned, New Jersey has a staff of 10
 people, plus myself. Give or take one or two, the number of personnel
- has not changed for approximately 20 years. Notwithstanding the
- dramatic increase in registrants and market activity, there are five
clerical personnel, two examiners, and three investigators. - There are
~no accountants, and except for myself, no attorneys." »
What can be done to,alleviate this problem? -First,IWe need
eaUthority to review securities oFfefings prior to the time7they are
“sold in New Jersey. It is ﬁuch'easier‘ahd'cost efficient to prevent
offerings that may tend to work a fraud, than to try to make investors
hold long after. the offerlng is completed and the money dlspersed.
~That segment of the 1ndustry --and I have dlfflculty alluding to them
‘as part of the legitimate industry -- which we are discussing here

ttoday cares little about subsequent inVestigations or sanctions by the
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SEC or New Jersey. The cease and desist orders and the injunctions are
merely an annoyance and, at worst, the cost of doing business.  Once
~they have the money, they have won, and the investors and the

legitimate segnent' of the securities 'industryv needing capital have

" lost.

‘ We mlght also con81der 1ncre381ng money penalties, extending
f'lnvestors' recision rlghts, and giving the Bureau specific authorlty to
require deportment on behalf of investors. In addition, we should take
a close look at recent amendments to New York's law, which were
_ 'ide51gned to outlaw,,illegal pyramid schemes and boiler shops of any
o kind. | | | R
- Second, if . our legal responsibilities arejb increased,
additional staff and legal personnel will also be required. The Bureau
staff should include attorneys and accountants, as do most other state
securities offices. Legalirepresentation'should also be increased and
permanently assigned to securities matters. This  would tassure’ the
familiarity and expertise required to proSecute securities matters --
both civil and criminal_--_qUickly. ‘Not enly“are Bureau investigations
‘ complicated,V‘paper intensive, and time-consuming, but we ‘are often
matched against some of the smartest and craftiest - attorneys in any
field, who are fully capable of using old and new delaylng tactics in . a
war of attrition which delays Bureau action until the 1nvestors have .

(.

- been fleeced.

In order to obtain sufficient staff and legal representation,

it may be necessary to amend the securities law to dedicate Bureau

revenues for 1nvestor protection. There is certainly a moral, as well
~as a practical argument for dedication. As was noted in the penny

'vstock article, the Bureau currently operates on less than 25% of the
reyenues it produces to protect investors. To  pay for 1ncreases,»

additional revenues of $1 million to possibly $3 million would be
‘available in the form of fees, if the statute was amended to require

registration of securitles. _ ‘

7 The need for reform is there, and the revenues can be
“ebtained. All that is needed to .do the job is for indUstry, the
investing -public, and the regulators to cooperate by lending their
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special expertisevto the feform prooese. It is to our mutual adyentage
‘to eliminate, to the extent possible, ali organizations, individuals,
and offerings that work ae, a fraud on investors, and which thereby
tarnish the reputation of New Jefsey; . When deciding‘whether'or not, or
- -how to enact changes in the Securitiestlaw, 1 only ask that you»keep in
v;mind ~the - one oerson whov will have no lobby, ‘but whom the law was
designed to pfoteCt. I am talklng about the 1nvestor.
L If you have any questlons, I will be happy - to answer them.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL - ADUBATO: Mr. Smith, let me exXpress our

: r~grat1tude for your being here today and for sharlng such profound

7:‘1nformat10n._ The Chair would like to go on record as saylng that The
| Star—Ledger and Robert Cohen, whom I have never met, by the way - 1
don't even know if he is in the room-- " Robert Cohen deserves the
gratitude of all of the people in the 'State,‘-" You know, I almost
hestitate, ‘because 1 know when you compliment some reporters, they
don't know. how to'takerit. But, I think this is very well-deserved and
" earned. He‘hes done a service in bringing this to light for all the
elected,officials of this State, including the Governor. = The Governor
t'_wasn't eware -~ none of us were - of the pfoblems that are going on in
thlS area. I, as Chairman of this Committee, publlcly thank Mr. Cohen.

Assemblyman Adubato, do you have any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I
‘want to thank the Chairman for cutting me off before. Mr. Smith, I
woold have gone off on a line of questioning based on the assumption
that you‘were in an awkward situation. You are on the hot seat, and

you are - -the person we rely upon to enforce the laws that those of us in
-State government put in place.

‘ Your testlmony, as the Chairman . of the Commlttee stated,
“has answered every question I thought we might have to drag out of

you.  You have pot it on the tabie; you have been more than frank; and,

"~ you have provided us -- at least me personally as the sponsor of the

‘resolution which called for this review of the penny stock indUstry in
~New Jersey -- with very cleer,feoommendations. You have defined'the ‘
problem. 'f juet want to repeat, you said there were 44,000 people
eligible to do business in this State. _

MR. SMITH: Actually registered, yes.
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ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: They can dorbUsiness in this
State, can't they? ”

'MR. SMITH: That is right.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: They are the iegal ones.

MR. SMITH: That is right. S

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ~ADUBATO: ~  Again, the number of
investigators the Bureau of Securities has is three o : ‘
' MR. SMITH: Again, you are correct. v

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO We are 901ng to hear a little
‘bit later on. from the person who is in an analogous 81tuat10n to you in
the State of Colorado -- the state that is called ‘the penny stock
,"capltal of‘the country. I'm sure they are not proud of that, as we are
‘not proud of our problem. We are also going to hear from the person
who heads the securities' office in the State of Massachusetts. We are
‘goiog to find oot,how,many people they have. I happen to know it is a
“lot more than we have -- many times more than we have. I also know
that in Maesachusetta; they have a lot less people eligible to do
business in that state. v V | ’
' I guess my question is-- It comes more back to us. What is
the average salary of an 1nvestlgator7

MR. SMITH: Approximately $19,000 or $20 000.
ASSEMBLYMAN ~STEPHEN 'ADUBATO: -~ I serve on the Joint

Appropriations Committee, and we - are. going to begin deliberations
" shortly. There 1is an_ argument between the Executive Branch of
government and - the Legislative Branch of government as to how much
our surplus is. On the low end, it is. somewhere around $500 000, and
~on the high end, it is close to $1.billion.

It” seems to me that for us to double the size of your
enforcement efforts in terms of ;nvestlgators, it . would mean adding
~ approximately $57,000 to $60,000 to the State budget{ Just assume --
' forget about changlng the way in which you get money -- we were to do
‘that, and we were to take $60, 000 on the hlgh end of three $20, 000
salaries. What would it mean to your operation in terms of stopping oh
the front end -- meahing, as you said, that people see in thiS'business

that if they get caught doing‘something wrong, they have to pay a fine,
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and that iS'part of business. If we oanYStop‘them from doing business
- ifvtheywneed'to be stopped based oh whatever criteria we determine
is needed to do that -- and if you‘hadathree more'people,iand.it cost
“us $60,000, which is our. problem, what would three more investigators
mean to you, ~regardless of how we got them’7 . "
MR.  SMITH: Obvlously, ‘it would mean at Jleast doubllng the
amount of actlon we have taken. 1 don't want to throw any.cold water
on that suggestion of three 1nvestlgators, but it is kind of a

:compllcated problem 1n that legal a891stance is also necessary. The
,1nvestlgators also need superv131on, which requ1res a higher salary --
someone to direct them. Although 1 am, I guess, the bureaucracy in the
Bureau, I am like the SEC when they go through varlous steps. I cao
move qu1ck1y.. '

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO. - Mr. Smith,  allow me to
interrupt you‘and say that I don't think the Assemblyman'was’saying
that would do the job."The thing he was trying to point out, veryl
“vividly, is that just by $60,000, you could double yoUr’inveetigative‘
force.  He is not saying we don't need accountaots,wie don't need
»lawyers,_aﬁd we doh't need expertise to compete in thievaituation. 1
didn't take/that‘as a recommendation. I took that as an_example of
‘the pittance you are getting now-- L o

MR. SMITH: (interrupting) Yes, I uhderstand that. »

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: (cont1nu1ng) --not as a
solutlon, so don't interpret it as a solutlon Thatils‘notmthe way I
interpreted it. , ' i

MR. BARRY: Mr. Chairman, I just want to add that we are
talking about increasing staff and improving the situation. . I don't
: think that alone can be the answer. If we increase the investigative
- staff, we are going to be ‘able to investigate problemsflike the people
who testified earlier today experienced. They'are already ripped off;
they are already out of money . What'we probab1y.shou1d be doing, along

with_that,»is trying to prevent this problem by reviewing the initial
‘:offerings that are happehing everyday. ,We‘don't want to talk-solely-
Aabout, if we throw some people into the office, we'll correct Jthe |
‘problem. We really have to look at the statute. I know that is what
you intend to talk about. '
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ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: The important thing is, 1f 1

can Just put a circle around it without pulllng it apart-- The circle

“of the presentation was your openlng,two sentences. They have stuck
‘here. They spoke about disclosure and merit review,‘sotno matter how
many staff people you have, if you don't have the‘teeth-e You know, I

_.don't want you to think we lost that anywhere; we didnYt.‘~None‘Of'us
tr here‘lost,that; 1 know that. Believe me, those COmments are not being

feliminated'by the inquiry that is going on now.t | justvwant you to

e understand that.

‘MR. SMITH: If I may be permltted, JUSt on. some of the p01nts
:that were made earller, I would like to make a couple of comments On
the reverse split, I don't thlnk ‘the question was ever answered If
you have -a reverse split-- o ‘ ;

'ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: (interrupting) Would you tell
us what a reverse split 1s7 : ' v : B

MR. SMITH: If you “had 100 shares of a stock thoSe 100
shares would become 10. Normally the price of the share would go--

For example, if it were a penny for 100 shares, it would-then'go to 10

”v'cents. Now, the practlcal effect of somethlng like that is to keep the

stock "high." So, if the price of the stock dropped 81gn1flcantly -
. you had a reverse spllt -- you would br1ng 1t back up. It looks as if
yoor stock is ‘doing either much better or as well. I'm not saying that
~ was the purpose of it, but I just wanted to mention that.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  But, that is the ef fect,
whether or not it is the purpose. , |
'MR. SMITH Yes. Ross Exploratlon was mentloned earller We v
were aware of that, and so far as Pascall Energy is concerned, which
h was a ~subsidiary of ‘Ross and which was doing the_ same, the Bureau
‘initiated a cease and desist order against those practices. We also
took action against Southeast Securities. ) . |
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Through you, Mr. Chairman, when
- did you pose a cease and desist order against Ross -Exploration? o
: | - MR. SMITH: . No; it was on Pascall Energy;_'
_ - ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Okay, on Pascall Energy, which
is, again, a subsidiary of Ross Exploratlon.
MR. SMITH: That is right.
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ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO:  And which; again, has the -same
pérties involved. S : | \
. MR. SMITH: That is right. ) |
} ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Okay. This doesn't do much for
Mr. and Mrs. Kvist becapse they bought in on the first end, which is
.'virtually- worthless. ~Then a subsidiary entity 'opené up, and now

ma}ketS'in'the>Séme way that got Mr. and Mrs. Kvist to buy in on the

-~ radio and New Jersey's airwaves.

‘MR. SMITH:  That was on December 3, 1984.

‘ _ ~ASSEMBLYMAN  STEPHEN ADUBATO;V Right, okay. I just want to
‘>vreiterate*to Mr{,Barry and Mr. Smith that the reason why‘I didn't go
into -questions about the statutes was because dufihg the last few
weeks, in 1ooking at it from my end, I've come to cértain~assumptibns,
"and I was hoping that today would confirm those, deny those, or provide
more information for me. I could not agree more with virtually
everything tﬁat was said by the two of you, particularly by Mr. Smith,
because with all due_reépect to you, former Assemblyman, you were on
the hot seat. You  were‘ the one who was written about in  The
Star-Ledger.  Ybu were the one who was aékéd the questions about how
" these people could be functioning in the State, and how péopie‘like
Mr. and Mrs. Kvist could get ripped off the way. they did..

What I am trying to say is, your testimony has done a great
deal to confirm thé notions that I've come up with since doing ‘my
research in the last few weeks. | o

I only asked about the issue of staffihg to try to point out
the absurdity of the situation -- the absolute utter absurdity of how
we cohld talk in ény way about this being borderline or questionable,
or about méYbe it being a legitimate investment, and maybe you just
:loét your money. I don't think that is what we aré talking about. I
think the State is admitting very openly and éandidly that we can't
deal with this until we change the laws, until we change enforcement
pattérns, until-wé,change disclosure and registration, and, in fact,
‘potentially merit review by stopping people from gding out there and
offering, if they éhould not be out there. Everyone should have the
~ privilege of doing business in this country based on who they are and

what they are offering.
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I couldn't thank yoﬁ more. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.‘
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Assemblyman Loveys?
ASSEMBL YMAN LOVEYS Mr. Smith, how many years have you been
Chlef of the Bureau? e
| MR. SMITH: Approximately 11 years. |
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Have you ever verbally spoken to or

vwrltten to anyone in Administration or anyone in the Leglslature asking

" ;‘for some type of reform of this whole process?

MR SMITH: Yes, over the 11 years, from time to time.

~ ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: From time to time?

MR. SMITH: VYes. | |

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Do you have any idea how many times you
made such a request? o

| MR. SMITH: Seven or eight times; 1 don't remember.

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: To no. avail? Did you ever get a
response from anyone in the Legislature? ,

MR. SMITH: 'No, not that I can recall. »

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: You didn't feel fit to carry through on
’asklng for some type of reform? ’ '

MR SMITH: Maybe I should back up a little bit and explaln
to you what I think my position is. I'm here today by invitation. I'm
not here to tell you what to do; I'm here to-give ‘you whatever
knowledge I can. I look at my position as that of an administrator; my
job is to administer the law. If there is ‘a problem, I mention the
problem, but I don't go directly to you, Assemblyman, or to ybu,
'Assemblyman Adubato, and say, "Listen, this is my problem." I don't
consider that to be my job. If I am asked, I'll tell you the truth and
what I believe without reservation. » ”

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Fine, I'll accept that. At some time in
the near future, if ‘I come to you and ask you what some of your
’recommendatlons might be, would you be most happy to give them to us?
MR. SMITH: ‘I would.
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: I have nobother questions. Thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: I think you have outlined your

position very vividly, and we have it on the record. I'm certain we
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‘will have -other questions and other inquiries. 1 would llke to

rephrase a statement that was made about who 1s on the hot seat.
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATD We are.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: - Mr. Smith, you are not on the
hot seat the elected officials of thlS State are on the hot seat to
: produce.';The fact»that we were unaware-- Qu1te frankly, I wish you
rhadw written me; I don't think you 'ever did,l but: that is not the
issue. The issue is; we are here today as a result of the catalyst of

3 a'newspaperman, in my opinion,'and’as a result of‘Assemblyman Adubato

plcklng it up, with Assemblyman Karcher, not JUSt to have words said -

and then forgotten about. This Commlttee has a track record, I think
vmost people would agree, and when we hold an inquiry, we produce a
result. It isn't somethlng that is put ‘on a shelf and -is then
forgotten - about, as often happens.

I am very honored that this was addressed by the Assembly
unanimodSly and that thlS Committee will do the inquiry. We share
. total‘reSponsibility for what is happeningvhere, just as we must share

| total responsibility for changing it, all of us. = So, you are not on
the hot seat; certalnly, the Dlrector is not on the hot seat. We're on
the hot»seat, and that is why we are here. You know, the seat isn't
hot, by the way. It is very relax1ng - I want to tell you how proud I
am of yodr'openness. You are not surprlslng me, by the way, Director
_Barry is not surprising me, although he did surprise me with his first.
two sentences. That is really the basis of why I think we are here,
to put the disclosure situation on the table, the merit review on the
table, and maybe the staffing, the pedple who should be there.

o Ve will be directly in touch with both of you, and we will be
asking for'your expertise. Legislation will be drafted and we will be
talking to youk about that legislation, with the oooperation of
AsSemblymanf.Adubato, who - is the sponsor of this‘ resolution. The
easiest thing for Assemblyman’Aduoato to have done would have been to
justithrow in a bill, and thatvwould have been okay. However, I think
it is a lot more. responsible for us to do it the way we are doing it.
Rather than JUSt ‘putting in a bill, we will attempt to get the
~ information, and we will do it where we can put the cards on the table,

so to speak.
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Again, I want to thank you both for coming. Assemblyman
LaRocca, I apologize. Did you have any QUestions for either gentleman7

| ~ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: I am JUSt appalled and upset as to howv

thls problem ‘came to everyone' s attention. We had to rely on the
medla, the press, to bring 1t to our attentlon.' There is something
wrong with our system when no - one knows the problem. 1 would”say it‘is,
" common knowledge that New Jersey is a free state and thatrwe'do not

‘lhave merlt rev1ew, but the leadershlp has been lacking to bring this to

VM.the attentlon of the proper people. As Assemblyman Stephen Adubato has‘

said, the. Approprlatlons Committee is there; it is there every year.
No one has ever ‘complained, and’that is one of the places where they
" could have gone to complain, or to the leadership;'the‘Execotive Branch
:m’possibly. They coold have said, "Look, there is avproblem. We can't
handle,it; come to our aid." I am not aware that any of this has been
brooght to the attention of the leadership in the Legislature, nor
- specifically to the"Appropriations’Committee. vSo, from that point of
view, I am thankful for your review of the whole situation. However, I
am still of the opinion that something is wrong somewhere. Thank you.

" ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: That is why we are here. Thank
:you, gentlemen. | | ' |

’ v I would like to change the pace a little bit and - brlng up
Mr. Cocci, who is the President of the National Association of

Securities Dealers. (Two gentlemen approach the witness table.) Which
of you gentlemen is Mr. Cocci? |
FRANK J. WILSON: Mr. Cocci is back in the aud1ence
- ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Ukay, would you please 1dent1fy v
"yourselves'7 ' -

MR. WILSON: I am Frank Wllson, ‘I am Executlve V1ce Pre81dent,
’kand General Counsel of the NASD.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: VWhat iSvyour name, sir?

MR. WILSON: My name is Frank Wilson. With me at the table
1s Mr. John P1nto, ‘who is Senlor Vice Pre31dent Compllance, NASD. - I
" also have wlth me Mr. Ray Cocci, who we don't have a seat for up here.
HHe‘ is ~our Vice President in 'charge of »Congresslonal and State

Relations.
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: ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: So, the title I gave him was in
error? - 7 . - ' ' '
| MR. WILSON: Slightly. o

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: ‘V-You have a nice way of
-eorrecting me; I like that. Please go ahead. , | |
‘ MR. WILSON ' He would like to be Pre51dent but we have
&another guy down there who llkes the job too. - : , ,
ASSEMBL YMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Please go rlght ahead, sir.
-MR.' WILSON: Initially, I would like to express our
‘;appre01at10n for being given the opportunlty to come here today to say

~a few words to the Committee. We have a long statement which we will

submit for 'the record, but I have tried‘ to shortenk that statement

somewhat. I will not be reading it all; I will read a portlon of 1t,
so-if I get a little lengthy or boring, please stop me.
The NASD' S’ purpose, pursuant to an act of Congress, 1s'to

"provide =for self-regulation of the over- -the-counter securities

- markets. We employ over 1,100 people to achieve that‘purpoSe. At this

,tlme, the NASD has 5,700 broker/dealers. That is actually an increase
of about 55% over the last couple of years. 'Those‘5,700~breker/dealer
" members employ in excess of 330,000'securities-registered personnel .

Those 5,700 members also have in excess of 14,000 braheh offices; which
~is up from 11,000 just about a year ago; or some 27%. 1 throw those
numbers out to you just to demonstrate the vastness of this market we
are charged with regulating and the difficulty we have increasing our
staff in a'manner consistent with the increaSes in the size of the

market itself.
We carry out the examination authority of our members by the

exercise of disciplinary and regulatory responsibilities through our
Washington of fice and 14 district oftices around the country.

| In addition, the Association ﬁaintains and operates the
- NASDAQ autohated quotation system. Thls system, which revolutionized
_the  over-the-counter securities market in 1971, provides
over-the-counter securities quotetions of securities listed on a NASDAQ
system for securities professionals‘and inveStors, The share volume on

NASDAQ is second only to the New York Stock Exchahge. Presently,'there
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are approximately 4,700 securities listed on NASDAQ,'1A1OU'of which are
part. of the rapldly developlng NASDAQ national market system, whlch was
'authorlzed by an-act of Congress in 1975.

As we understand it, the purpose of these meetlngs is to
‘allow the Legislature to gather information relatlng to the penny stock

'r‘lmarket in the State of New Jersey. " At the outset, it is 1mp0rtant to

-understand, " in our view atrleast, that there is no 1nherent evil in
Qbringing,to the capital marketplace a low-priced public”offering of

securities. Such offerlngs are Frequently the only means by Wthh the

"“~g 1deas and entrepreneurlal aspirations of development stage companles

"may be fulfllled In your invitation to testlfy, it was stated that
‘the meeting seeks to obtain information relatlng to the adequacy of New
“Jersey law to deal with the penny stock: market, marketmaker and sales
practices in the penny stock marketplace, and public education w;th
respect to penny ‘stocks. The NASD, historically, fhas not taken a
position with respect to the type of regolation -provided by state
Legislatures. Therefore, we hesitate to suggest to you how you should
or should not shape your laws. ‘We will 'focus primarily on our
,uregulatory activities with respect to the over-the-counter marketplace
'fénd,’ in partlcular, the vmore speculative lower:priced :end:‘of that
lmarketplace." | | , ,

As an a31de, however, I would like to suggest that the key to
effective securltles regulatlon is aggressive enforcement of the laws
whlch are on the books. What the law says matters not if enforcement
potential 1is not provided. Thus, inryour deliberations,'we think you
should at least evaluate whether you, as a Leglslature, have prov1ded
‘the resources necessary to enable your 'profe3810nal staff to
vtaggr8331vely and - effectlvely enforce the 1law. We do not have any
J opinion, of course, as to whether that has been done;’however, it would“
appear because of the size of the staff -- as was brought out in-
questioning a little while ago -- that there may be a problem there.

' Any examination of potential abuses in the penny stock market
“must almost inescapably also look to the related concept of a "hot
issue" market. We define‘a hot issue in our so—called free-riding

" interpretation as "Securities of a public offering which trade at a
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premium in the secondary market whenever euch>secdndary market begihs.“
In. geheral,» hot issues involveb the initial public effering of ah
issuer. The reason that the penny stock and the hat issue eoncepts are
_ so closely interrelated is the fact thatvpehlic interest in purchasing

low-priced securitieallwill not loth survive unless potential"for‘
- dramatic gaihs is evidenced in the marketplace. Hot issue markets have

5j become ‘a’ cycllcal phenomenon 1nvolv1ng low;prlced and, 'atf times,

. hlgher-prlced stocks. .

-  The most recent penny stock “hot issue market and one which

,;,.ffiwas typlcal of most such markets occurred in Denver in 1980-1981. aIn

. that market, of the 134 initial public offerings of securities which

' traded at a premlum in the secondary market, 86, or 64 of the issues

had offerlng prices of $5.00 or under per share, and 52 of those 86

'Fsold for $1.00 and under. In addltlon, 67 of the 134 hot offerlngs had
25 or fewer broker/dealers part1c1pat1ng in the dlstrlbutlon, and over
20 of those. involved 10 or less broker/dealers in the distribution.

‘_ ‘ The 1980-1981 Denver hot issue market occurred in a generally
negative market env1r0nment, where ~ the potential existed for
,utilizatian' of improper ‘sales practices 'because substantial selling

3eff0rts were requ1red to create initial interest in new issues among

f»the public. However, once the existence of a hot issue market is

.estabiisheab in the .investlng community, customers actlvely ‘solicit

'broker/dealers demahding a share of the hextvoffering. In addition, a

-relatively limited number of broker/dealer firms involved in the
distribution of low-priced spchlative issues increased the possibility
that- one or more of the participants in the market would be in a

~sufficiently deminant position to exert control over the marketplace in
~order to artlflclally establish ' or ‘maintain prices which mlght be

'f,unrelated to the actual value of the securltles. ’

, I am going to list a few of the kinds of market abuses we

have seen in thls kind of a hot issue market

Best efforts underwrltlngs ‘with heavy retentlon by the
managlng underwrlter, to the extent that it will sell either all or a
substantial majority of the shares to its own customers; '

Dominatian and control of the market utilized to manipulate

the price of the shares in the'aftermarket;
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. T1e in sales where a customer is requ1red to purchase a

M"cold" new issue in order to get a plece of the hot 1ssue,

Tie- -in sales. requ1r1ng customers to buy shares of other L

: 1ssues in the aftermarket at premium prlces if they are to receive a

“t,f"hot" 1ssue allotment ‘ If- you get one,’ you can have some of the

f;fuother. If you don t get one, you can't have the other;

Broker/dealer 7 commission schedules whlch give" extra

‘*ffpcompensatlon for. sales to customers of favored stocks, whlle provldlng

" does go on. . -

7¢no compensatlon for llqu1datlons of those - securltles : o
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO (1nterrupt1ng) Well, sir, that

MR, WILSON Yes, it does go on. _ RO . :
, ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Were you in- the room when Iw'
qasked that questlon7 ‘ TR o P
’ " MR. WILSON: Yes, l was. (Mr. W1lson contlnues w1th llst )
Fallure to deliver prospectuses, o R
Tactlcs de31gned to, avoid the dellvery of certlflcates to.
ecustomers, thereby allow1ng _the broker/dealerv to; malntaln_ the

vcustomer s posltlon. 3 Uther broker/dealers are reluctant to accept a t

:hV~fcustomer's sell rorder w1thout presentatlon of .the' certlflcate,'

well.

‘”vespecallly in securltles of thls type If-you have.GM, somethlng else
might Tesult; " ‘ ' S e o ‘
Use of nomlnee accounts, Sales: to Favored‘VCUStomers, rand
controlled accounts,»7 o , . s ' . o v
| Companies’ going public having little or no operating-.‘
'~”exper1ence. There has been a lot of discussion about this today,
Salesmen maklng forecasts and prlce prOJectlons ‘without a

";reasonable ba31s in fact, and we heard some dlscu531on of that today as .

In addltlon, a w1lllng publlc that views the - market for?

'ylow-prlced speculatlve issues more as gambllng than as 1nvest1ng 1s an’

:”fi;1mportant factor to be taken 1nto account in these hot ‘issue markets.~

"*IThe customers themselves also create regulatory problems., Many tlmes,

"‘customers have little, if . any, v1nc11nat10n to come. forward with

e,complalnts of 1mproper.conductrby brokers, SinCe”theinant to continue
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to participate in‘the’market,»andlwhistle-blowing would preclude that

i participation. ‘Rather than do that, customers‘complain that they. could’

”rﬂ'not obtain. shares in an offerlng or. that thelr orders were fllled for

less than the desired amount L B
e , Also, customers e1ther don't read, or pay little heed"to '
“jprospectuses, regardless of whether the issue  is low-priced - or
thlgh prlced RIS ’,, ey S ,
: ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  That is assuming that they
~ receive a prospectus. , o : S i o

‘MR, WILSON: Yes, assumlng that they get a prospectus and, -as

:v. T sa1d earller w1th respect to thls klnd of a market, you do see cases.

"where the prospectuses are: not dellvered. Other customers follow the

b'.vpractlce of “opening accounts with a large number of brokers 80 they can

part1c1pate in as many hot- 1ssues as p0531ble r So, there is a llttle"
bit of a greed factor involved. _ »

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO I think‘greed:is innate. 1
don t think that anyone denies that. - ' o s B

MR WILSON Also, hot 1ssues develop ‘a momentum of thelr
voWn;frso much so _thatv improper sales practlces and activities by
professionals fWhichvfmay ’have been ‘utilized,' and imaybe,'necessarily:
utilized, to engender initial;'interest' in the issues, may be less
v'necessary as the market progresses and the speculatlve fervor of the
~investing: publlC 1ncreases. Such 1ntense interest was seen in the 1981
Denver market where customers and potentlal customers of broker/dealer
firms were vying for shares of almost any issue whlch was. offered. The
" particular pUbllC danger, of course, in the low- prlce speculatlve"
market is- that at some p01nt in the cycle, the cycle comes to a close,
- the ferver is d1m1nlshed, and the prices for the securlty which . have
reached artificially high,levels‘fall back to the level more nearly

" reflecting their actual worth. Obviously, at this p01nt those holdlng

f,‘_the securltles have suffered substantlal losses.

- One problem which can affect the market 1nvolv1ng low-priced
:schritles, especially when publlc 1nterest is on the rise, is that of
’ free-riding-and'withholding,'an area infwhich the NASD has the primary

‘enforcement responsibility.  Free-riding and withholding result in a
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failure by broker/dealere participating in a public .offering of
securities to make a bona fide public offering by retaining securities
For their own accounts or for those inﬁwhicn_they have a beneficial
interest, or selling those’securitiesfto select individuals, such as
:perhapscfavpred customers, for the purpose of securing future business
' by allowing thcse individuals to partake in the shortfterm profits
available in the aftermarket. ’ , ‘
Free-riding and w1thhold1ng practlces may, in some 1nstances,
,fomn a part of a scheme of. manipulative activity with respect to a
‘rcparticular issue. Any form of that act1v1ty v1olates the Assoc1at10n s
rules. ' :
| | ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: What Vhappens‘ when someone
Violates the rules? . : ' ‘
MR. WILSON: One of our rules is that we--
 ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO (interrupting) - Excuse me for
1nterrupt1ng, if you don't mind. o
MR. WILSON: That's fine; I don't mind at all. If we discern .
a‘yiplatidniof our rules, the matter is initlally put to a district
~Business ptondpct Committee. ~ We have 13 district Bu31ness Conduct
Committees around the country, one for each of our districts. If it
appears‘ that. a violation has occurred, a complaint is filed. The.
respondent is entitled to a hearing and full due :process,_ and
thereafter the committee issues a decision;’ Then, if the respondent is
| aggrieved, he has the right to appeal to the Asspciation's‘Board of
Governcrs, the SEC, and then to. the United States Court of Appeals.
Many times it takes two or three years to get this finished.
ASSEMBLYMANVSTEPHEN ADUBATO: Mr. Wilson, on this 1ssue of
what it is that,NASD does to someone who violates rules, I amvgcing to
go back to the first two witnesses we had today, Mr.’andiMre; Kvist.
-They were given a business card by Mr. Louis,Rosen,”tne'person who sold
‘them the stock in Ross'Exploration, and on the top of the business card
it eaid,vﬁMembers NASD and SIPC." '
~ MR. WILSON: Yes, SIPC. |
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO Now, from the records we have

been able to obtain, Mr. Korbin of Korbin Securities, the firm which
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‘sold this stock was censured twice in 1983 by the NASD for violations
of 1ndustry rules. What typelof activity, if any,'does NASD undertake

"f>to inform: the publlc, to circulate w1th1n the 1ndustry, to do whatever,'

to tell a little bit about some of the people doing business who call
- themselves membersvof the National Association of Securities Dealers?
" 1 guess what I am saylng is, could NASD have helped Mr. and Mrs. Kvist
vv to know more about the people who sold them the stock, and thelr past
:,conv1ct10ns7 ‘
_ MR. WILSON: 'Wéll, every dlsc1p11nary action taken by the
NASD is ‘a matter of public record at the Securltles “and Exchange
Commission. We are required to file these actions with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. In cases where a disciplinary action results
in a suspension of an individual or a firm, or a' bar‘, ‘which is a
technical term which essentially means putting them out of business --
either a member or a securities person -- we issue a press'release on'
the subject. These press releases are almost always picked up by at

least The Wall Street Journal, and generally always by the newspapers

in the locale where the individual is located.

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO:- I have a fbllow -up question.
Does NASD allow people to become members who have been convicted of
Federal'cﬁarges related to fraudulent manipulation of penny stock?

MR. WILSON: No. A person who has been--

. ASSEMBLYMAN  STEPHEN ADUBATO: (interrupting) Let me
interrupt again. Mr. Korbin was convicted in 1976 on Federal charges
for fraudulent manipulation of penny stock in conjunction with a
company called Bel Air Financial Corporation. Mr. Korbin, and his
Senior Vice President, Louis Rosen, have a business card that they hand
out to people, people like Kurt and Toni Kvist. On the top it says,
"NASD": -~ and I happen to know that Mr. Kvist did not know what that
meant until today -- and "SIPC," which I know is some form of--

MR. WILSON: (interrupting) That is the Securities Investor
Protection Corporation.
" ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Is it something like FDIC in
- the bénking business? ‘ '
MR. WILSON: Yes, it is the same as fDIC, only it relates to

the securities industry.
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© ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: In your opinion, is putting

-something like this on a business card intended to give the impression
or to, in fact, document that the person giving out thisvbusiness card
is a legltlmate member ~doing business -- a member of an assoc1at10n of
securltles dealers who are legltlmate7 ‘ : , :_

MR WILSON: I cannot comment on what the 1ntent was behlnd'
h1m puttlng that on the card. Coe _

ASSEMBLYMAN 'STEPHEN ADUBATO: Is he a member of the NASD7'

'MR. WILSON: I believe he is a ‘member. |
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: You are the head of compllance,
tiaren t you? ‘
' MR. WILSON Yes. o ,

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Mr. Pinto, do you know——

MR. WILSON: (interrupting) I would llke to get back to ‘the
original part of your question relatlng ‘to the conviction for
manipulation. I don't know whether that was a conviction or a finding
- of v1olat10n in an administrative prooeedlng “Was that a criminal
~conviction? : v o 4
‘ - ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO ' Yes, a crlmlnal conviction.

You sald no one could become a member of the National A33001atlon

‘MR, WILSUN. Let me develop that. In the Securlt;es Exchange

Act of 1934, there is a provision relating 'to, statutory bars.
: Stetutoryibars include a variety of things, nearly all of which involve
findings against an individual of violations of the securitiee laws. A
person who has been subJected to a statutory bar is not: permltted to
become a member of the NASD when he is subJect to that statutory bar.
. There are provisions in the act’for ways in which that individual can
’fbe»relieved of the ongoing‘effect>of that etatutory bar. In other
words, perhaps a‘hearing is held, or whatever, wﬁereby it is‘conoluded
- that in a sense he has served his sentence and, therefore, is permitted
to come back into the business. ‘

( | Beyond that,vhowever; a firm cannot become a member of the
'NASD' unless it is first registered as a broker/deaier,with the. SEC.
Onoe havino been registered with the SEC as a broker/dealer, we do not

have the aothority»to keep the firm out, except for violations of law.
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ASSEMBLYMAN - STEPHEN ADUBATD M. Wilson, you said before
that the: Natlonal A33001at10n of - Securltles Dealers does not take a

“,*p031t10n on’ the questlon of what states should do 1n terms of

o regulatlon and statutes.

- MR. WILSDN nght SRR
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN - ADUBATO: You sald you thlnk 1t is
.ﬂilmportant that states llke New Jersey enforce the ex1st1ng laws on the

filbooks. You are in a p031t10n to say that In llght of - the testimony

'f*tirecelved from the Chlef of the New Jersey Bureau of. Securltles, and the

lww”d,person who' heads up our DlVlSlOﬂ of Consumer Affairs to protect the

'“f;[consumers of our State, would you ‘want “to change your op1n10n in any

-~ way, glven the fact that the people who are respon31ble on a day-to-day
_basis have pretty much called the ex1st1ng laws in New Jersey less than
- woefully inadequate. Forget about enforcement rlght now.  Would you
~like to clarlfy your statement in any way?

-MR. WILSON: I was going to offer some. observatlons later

'.,;"that would put -a llttle meat on that statement. 1 think perhaps it

1 :"mlght be approprlate—-

) ' ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: ,(interrupting), Mr. Chairman,
g may I ask him to do that now? R S B
| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO 1 think hexis*almost finished
ftwlth his statement. Is that right, Mr. Wilson? | '

MR. WILSON: Yes. e S

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO He is just about finished, so
“we Wlll let him contlnue with his statement. : ‘ o

MR. WILSON: - We can skip the rest of the statement because
,'vI was 31mply going to get into some of the procedures and methodology'
‘used by the Association in dlscharglng our respon31b111ty, as well as
ry:some of the’ numbers of dlsc1p11nary actlons ‘we have taken 1n the past
viyear, whlch I thought mlght be helpful to the Commlttee. ' '
: ‘ However, on the questlon JUSt asked the dlscu381ons I have
heard‘today relate ‘almost entlrely_to sales practices. In our'v1ew,
~ you have adequate laws:to-—‘.Please belieye‘me,‘l am‘not‘an expert on
New Jersey law, even though I grew up here; I live in Washington_now.

I am not an expert on New Jersey securities law by any means. However,
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in?reviewing_your'léw,,itvappeérs that you héve'as‘much authority'tq
prosecute fraud as any state and, as a matter of fact, there are
- provisions 1in :your State ~law which would ‘give aUthority‘ to the

Securities Board'and, I believe, the Attorney General, to go to court

- in any case ~where it is seen that a firm, or an individual, has

violated the law or is about to viblatevthe“law,'or'has'violatgd the
‘public‘interest or is about to violate the public interest, to séek
: injunctign from that conduct. That is your existing law, and I;e ,
| ~ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  (interrupting) Mr. Wilson,
forgive me for interrupting you. Having had the opportunity to serve -
- on this Committee for 12 years, I'm sure you are sincere in what you
are saying. It's unfortunate that, you know, as I said, I have sat on
this Committee for 12 years, and as you are speaking I hear insurance
company gffidials saying that the Commiséioner‘of Insurance has the
gower to change this, and you in government have the power to chénge
that. We are only going by the laws that are there.
: What 1 am trying to say is, we in government do not
. necessarily want to pass laws or. interfere with the private-segtor. In
;»fact, some of us would rather not. But, when your foot ié put to the
fire-- In my opinion, Assemblyman Adubato was on target when he talked
- about ‘the fact that the SEC is doing what it is doing, and about the
» way it functions. It is our responsibility; it is not the SEC's
responsibility. "I think most of us here today agree that New Jersey is
a haven for penny stock; that is our opinion. We intend to do
- something about it. We intend to do something about it because, quite
frankly, the people who are in this industry have not done enough to
keep‘out_the sharks. 1 am‘not‘saying that everyone in the industry is
. a shark, and I am not séying that people should not have a right to
take é risk‘or a right to gamble,.if’they want. As long as they know
“they are gambling, that's fine. As long as they know what they are
getting ihvolved with; that's fine.  So, I would differ with vyour
~ statement. Itiié not just sales practices alone. That is not a fair
:istatement. I would disagree with you, respectfully{ It goes beydnd
sales practicés. It is innate in people in that segment who, by
design, ‘are there to mislead. They are doing it, .I submit, with

intent.
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MR. WILSON 1 th1nk there are a couple of areas where
| changes in the law could be helpful 1 was 901ng,to mention them.‘
| © ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: GOh, okay. Go ahead, Steve.
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Beforebyou do that, Mr.'Wilson,‘

' ,:ithe only follow-up I Iwave is the questlon of. exlstlng laws in New.. |

:feJersey and your feeling that you couldn't really comment on them, but

e)athat you could comment ‘on enforcement Correct ‘me if 1 am wrong, but

" ‘from your vast experlence in deallng with secur1t1es dealers, there are

’i‘no laws on the books in the State of New ~Jersey that in any way would

f1have barred or stopped any of the practlces that ‘were undertaken in the
"case we heard about - here from Mr. and Mrs. Kurt Kv1st 1nvolv1ng Korbin
'Securltles and Ross Exploratlon.v

' MR. WILSON: No, I disagree with that.

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: = Okay, but as far as I know,
there were no laws violated. How do you disagreeiwith that? What was
violated? S . , . '
, MR. WILSON: ~ If 1 heard Mr. Kvist's ‘testimony correctly,
there were misrepresentations ‘made to  him, exaggerated statements
relative to the stock, promlses ‘as to increases in value, and thlngs of
that nature.. They are all manlpulatlve practlces. o _

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO:  Are you saying that this person
who was a member‘of your Association-- Do they pay dues? =

MR. WILSON If they are a member they do.

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Okay. Hopefully, they had
enough money in their stock to pay dues. Now, they're paying dues to

the National Association of Securities Dealers. You have acknowledged‘
that. If'what you heard is correct, then those two people who came

 before us today to talk about their 51tuat10n have a legitimate beef.

“You re saylng that the lawa were violated.

MR. ,WILSON From what I heard, they were violated.
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATU Mr. Chalrman, I know our
'_‘Objective is to come up with legislation in the end to address the
situation. For all intents and purposes,vI'feel that Kurt and ‘Toni
vaist'have gotten beat. Are you saying you wouldvjoin with them to try.
to help them address that particular situation as it has to do with a
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particular dealer° They were'sold stock of Ross. Exploration. ’Based>0n
' your opinion, the oplnlon of the National - Assoc1at10n of Securities
‘:-Dealers, were they v1ct1ms of manlpulation in terms of sales practices?
‘ MR. WILSON.. I said that what I heard here today were
 statements that, in my view, represented actions.WhiCh violated the
. law., Now,:as.to’helping him--l of course;fl;neVer‘met.the gentleman,
 or even heard of him before today.- But, wevndo. have a ‘system of
accepting boOStomer -comolaints. anh of our offices is »equipped to

:handle complaints. ’In‘WaShington;fwefmaintain_a centfalized computer
- base customer complaint file aggregating those‘complaints around the
‘country.‘~ If- You see a concentration by _broker/dealer, by branch
office, or -whatever, generally ,you know- that where there's smoke, -
there's fire. ‘ | :
» ‘An individual, a member of the public, has a right to file a
vcomplaint with us against a member. or against a representative.of a
member. ~ That individual also has a right  to file an arbitration

proceeding with our Arbitration Department located in New York, against

an individual or against a member. There are avenues that an
_individual member of the public can pursue through the Association.

‘Ubviously, I could not predict in any way'now any particularvcase would
come out of eithef the disciplinary process or the ~arbitration
‘proceeding. ' ‘ o
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO ‘Through you, Mr. Chairman, you

would provide the same comments or testimony that you just gave us
‘based on the assumption that that was a true story and that those

practices were illegal. - The sales manipulation practices of Ross
,Exploration, assuming that what was said was correct, were 1llegal.

‘ MR WILSON: 'Yes. As an attorney, however, 1 think you would
have to put a lot more meat on a bare statement before you could find
someone in viclation of the law. :

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: I asked you the question, "Were
“‘the practices that were undertaken by Ross Explofatibn-to sell those
'stocks" -- and 1 went to the‘existing New Jersey laws as to whether
they wefe effective or not. You said that regardless of what the law
is, those practices did not make sense, and you would not condone them
with the NASD.
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| ' MR. WILSON: No, I would not condone them. |

- JOHN PINTU'» Those practlces, had we gotten a customer complalnt as
.Frank JUSt described--  Had we‘gotten a complaint alleglngxwhat was
alleged earlier today,'there wOQld have been an ihvestigation conducted

by whichever of our district offlces recelved that complalnt, which

e would have included on- _site ‘inspection.

| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ~ADUBATO;  Mr. 'Pinto, ‘help us to
“understand. How would a person go “about. that7 o , o
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO:  How would they even know who
‘YQU are? : | T ' ‘,- A C RN , e | |
~ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: How do they know you're there?.
' How does a person know?  How does Mr. CitiZen;‘ the person we are -
talking about, the unsophisticated buyer,‘khoW? I aminot séying you
are ndt there. 'I am not saying you wouldn't be attentive. What I'm
asking is, how does he get to you? : ‘ : |
k | MR. WILSON: That is a good question. It is a good question
‘because, obviously, if you don't know the. vehlcle for the remedy, you_'
7_-cann0t ~pursue the remedy. - Lo
| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Even if'there is a remedy, and
I'm not saying. there 1sn't -- even if it is a great remedy --

MR. WILSON: (interrupting) We get thousands of customer

complainté a year; I think John may have some numbers for last year..

- - S0, some people do vget to us.  There is’ publicity about the

Association. We participate in seminars; we .put on things§ we pbnduct
meetings, .and those kinds of things. It is unfortunate that certain of

- these-- _ ,
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: - (interrupting) Yes, but you

see, the overwhelming majority of the,peoplé who are legitimate, the
people you are dealihg‘with, don't have that hassle. :We're talking
about the people who cause the hassle.
MR. WILSON: I agree with you.

‘ MR;;PINTD: A lot of times‘we have'seén where customers have
a problem, they might not know there is an NASD office located right in
the city,‘but they do knbw,sdmethihg about an SEC Somewhere; They will
contact the SEC, and the SEC, in the norm on sales practices or related
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kinds of customer complaints, will refer those ovei to onev>gf' our
district offices, or investigate them’themselvesv But,bat'the least,
"elther the customer will be directed over to the 'NASD, or the complaint
will be d1rected.‘ Then we will JUSt process it and 1nvestlgate it.
‘.‘ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO Do you know what I wanted to
ask both of you? How does the SIPC -- is that what it is?
~ MR. PINTO: It's SIPC, ‘Securities Investors Protection
ACorporatlon.‘ o SR _
- ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: How does that relate to FDIC
insurénée? 7 ‘ : |
 MR. WILSON: It's similar. N
‘ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Similar in what respect? 1It's
protection for what? :
 MR. WILSON: It is similar in this way: It is protection in
fhe case of the demise of a broker/dealer. Assume that a broker/dealer
went bankrupt, just as a bank would go bankrupt. If a bank goes
bankrupt, FDIC-insures a customer's account up to,‘I believe, $100,000.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: A hundred thousand, yes.

MR. WILSON: bNow; SIPC does the same thing in the casevof a
‘brokef/dealer.‘who has gone bankrupt, insuring cash  deposits up to
$100,000 and securities up to $500;000. | o

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: aAll.right, but what does that
mean? If I buy a security-- | - v

MR. WILSON:  (interrupting) It doesn't protect you there.
It protects only-- '

| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: (interrupting) Wait a minute.
- Before the place goes bankrupt, they have already run. away with the

cash. ;
MR. WILSON: That's right. | o
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: = I mean,. they have done their
thing. I'm trying to figure out -- excuse me -- what the hell you are
protecting. ' -

MR. WILSON: = I have not advanced SIPC as a protection for a

customef in this particular situation. :
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL - ADUBATO: No, no. I'm saying, the

equation was made énd presented, not by you--
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MR. WILSON: (interrupting) Not by me. o |
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  No, but in talking, in
- conversation. I'm not, you know-- ‘ ‘

| MR. WILSON: Okay. S

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: It was _equated w1th FDIC

‘:tf1nsurance, and I don't thlnk that is a good equation.

MR. PlNTO I think 1t was only equated from the perspective

~ that if a bank went out of business, the depositors could look to the

'himFSLIC 'for their moneys;  if a- broker/dealer goes out of bu31ness,

llkerse, they would look. to SIPC for thelr moneys. That is about as
"‘far as the equatlon would go. o o B
' MR. WILSON: As to the k1nd of losses we are talklng about
' today caused by manipulations, mlsrepresentatlons, whatever,. forget,
SIPC. It does not come into play unless that broker goes bankrupt.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: - Okay.- ‘ |
MR. WILSON: I was going to suggest-- As I said earlier, I
“think strong enforcement is a necessary »ingredient to effective and
_ efficient administration of securities laws. = In the rarea of new
leglslatlon, notw1thstand1ng my earlier statement that we he31tate to
"comment on how states construct their state laws, I was going to
"suggest that perhaps some klnd of additional enforcement authority, in
addition to more severe penaltles, could ‘very well be an area the
- Committee mlght want to- explore -1 believe the SEC has started an
1n1t1at1ve on this point as well, and the State might want to consider
it, that is, a prohibition on individuals who have been subjected to
statutory bars under the securities act from participating in the
management of public firms. I think in some of the discussion I heard -
here today, “in almostqevery caSe, participants in.thOSe distribotions
_.Were people who Qere even then subject to securities bars. S0, it
oight be appropriate that legislation prohibit that'from,occurring. I
‘think you,would get at a lot of the deals you talked about today. |
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Mr.cWilson, maybe this is not pertinent,
but you‘compared penny stock to the hot issue market, and I believe you
made the statement that more often than not one firm becomes dominant
~in that hot issue market. Can yoo elaborate on that particular point?
MR. WILSON: I will let Mr. Pinto elaborate on it.
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_ MR PINTO Frank also mentloned somethlng about best efforts'
underwrltlngs with a heavy retentlon by the- broker/dealer who is ~doing
the actual underwrltlng.w Just»as an example,,lf a broker/dealer can'>
.vdiStribute ~an entire offering solely to 'his;’customers;' and doesn't o
~involve other broker/dealers around the cOUntry,y'as you get with
“lnatlonal syndications, where you may have several hundred flrms -around
T;jthe country dlstrlbutlng shares from one coast to ‘the other—- If you

~can concentrate a dlstrlbutlon of a low-priced penny stock Just to the

\t"customers of a spec1flc broker/dealer, and then couple that with theg‘

.,4fact that perhaps you- do not . dellver out the certlflcates, as we heard

:.'earller, which is a problem, you ‘have the securltles in- house, you have
‘the customers in-house, and it really creates an 1mmob111ty on the part'
of those customers ‘to go anywhere else to sell the stock. Other
*broker/dealers are»not going to want‘to-take that sale know1ng they

can't’get the stock because there are‘rules which’require them to do.

certain things aFter a certain amount of tlme -when they can't’ get
dellvery of securities. ‘

So, ‘customers are pretty much locked in to doing business .

~w1th the broker/dealer -from ‘whom. -they bought the shares. If that o

v broker/dealer happens to be a marketmaker 1n the stock, -and pretty much-
has control over the whole outstandlng float, you get to. a polnt where
he domlnates and controls that market. He dominates it because all of
the act1v1ty is flow1ng through that broker/dealer since he has all the
;customer base. You really have a market that totally h1nges upon that
one broker/dealer. Then when you have a 31tuat10n as was ‘described

earlier, where that broker/dealer goes out of business, that is where
you have the types of 31tuat10ns where the stock tradlng at four, all

bb,dof a sudden now has no market because, 1n effect there was only one,‘

gmarket, and that was the broker/dealer who went out of bu31ness.:
) ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: ~ This is prlmarlly because of the
vnon-release of. the stock.‘ This is one of the major factors.‘ o
' MR, PINTO One of the dlfflcultles 1f you dellvered stock
out theoretlcally anyway,‘ls that the customer could go. anywhere on.
sthe street and sell that stock. Whether everyone,would want to accept
stock of one cent, two cents;‘a’half‘a cent,tor whatever the price, is
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another question. But, yes, that customervcould,go_anywhere'to sell
that stock. S - ' |
_ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO. In vkeeping with rAssemblyman
Loveys' comment, a broker/dealer 1s a salesman, a NASD salesman, and
they have account reps? ' '

MR. PINTO: Yes. ‘ =

~ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATU They're licensed?

MR. PINTO: Yes. e

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO In the NASD they take'a cOurSe,

t"ftand the whole bit. Now, when ‘you have a situation where you have a

| l, controlled environment, to where you have your own NASD licensed people

selllng an in- house product that you have created, is that what you are
- ‘talking about? If you create an entlty,for distribution in New Jersey
- for instance, I'm told that there are situations where in New Jersey
rlght now, there 1s no flllng necessary for ‘anything. All they need is
ythe SEC. . They don t have to file anythlng, absolutely nothlng. They
‘don't even have to have an entity. They can have an idea on a piece of

paper, which is fine, and say, "Okay, now we are going to raise capital

o to promote something we might do. This is what we are going to do. We

;haven’t done ‘it yet; we don't have it yet; but, this is what we are
going to do." .And it's sold and controlled by that house, whlch may
" have officers, you know, wherever. ~ But it is not available to the
~ salesmen unless they are contolled oyvthat entity. Is that a fair
statement? In other words, just'because you have a license doesn't
"mean you can sell that product. Isn't that what is being said under
certain conditions? ” o

, MR. WILSON: It is not necessarily controlled by that entity,
- if by the entity you mean the broker/dealer. Rather, the broker/dealer
iwould have to be participating in that dlstrlbutlon, 1f it was a new
**offerlng, for his salesmen to sell it. Or, if it was an aftermarket
transaction -- a secondary market transaction -- ‘his’ broker/dealer
‘employer would have to authorize that transaction. In other words, if
I”understand your question correctly, he can't go out on the street
and, on his own, do anything he 'wants ~without the broker/dealer
member's imprimatur authority stamp of approval.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: . The thing I am confused about

llS the underwrltlng What 'is the_responsibility there? ‘ A
MR, PINTO.; Of the brokér/deéler or the individual salesman?

| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ~ ADUBATO: “I'm. talking about the‘
, underwrltlng itself. | , - ‘ .
o ~MR. WILSON:  In the underwrlting, the broker/dealer would
have to be a participant in the dlstrlbutlon in order for the
registered rep to sell those securltles. " He would have tov‘be' é
rrparticipant in the selling groﬁp, of the underwriter, of course. |
| ‘ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO -Assemblyman Loveys, do you have
fany ‘other questions? , T
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: No, thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Assemblyman LaRocca7
ASSEMBLYMAN LaRUCCA: No questions. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  Thank you both very much for
 'c0ming:here today.'vWe appreciate ‘it. '

We would appreciate it if Mr. Michael Unger and -Mr. Royce
Griffin'would Jjoin us cbllectively.‘tMr. Unger is the Director of the
. Massachusetts Securities Dlv131on, and Mr. Grlffln is the CommlSSloner
of Sécurities,of thevState of Colorado. The Chair would like to thank:
both of:*you gehtlemen, not only for coming here, but for ydur‘
batienée We are more than delighted that ‘you havevtaken’the time out

from your very, very busy schedules to come to New Jersey to help us
| with your information. ,
MICHAEL UNGER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We are delighted to be here.
The éubject"Whichf your Committee is looking at is one dear to our 
‘hearts,"and -our interest extends beyond - the ‘boundaries “of our-
'individUal states. Mr. Griffin and I are authorized to speak on our
ifbwh behalf Certainly, but also on behélf of our Association, the North
“American Securities Administrators Association, Inc. Our Board met
':over‘the weekend, discussed the matter of-ourrappearance today, and
authprized us to speak on their behalf as Well -

NASAA is an assoc1at10n of 65 state and provincial- securltles

admlnlstrators from the United States, Canada, and Mexico, charged with

the responsibility for admlnlsterlng and enforcing securities laws. I
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would also edd,'parentheticaliy, that T grew up right across the river
‘in" Washington Heights. My Family is still there; 'and substantial
‘, numbers of my family are citizens of your ‘great State So, I do have
some 1nterest as to what New Jersey does. ‘ ‘

, I would like to commend ‘the Committee for conducting this
| investigation.‘ I would like to commend‘you, Mr. Chairman,‘the Speaker
Cof the Assembly, Assemblyman Karcher, and Assemblyman Stephen Adubato
lfor ‘your interest and effectiveness in putting this matter before ~your
pCommlttee and the public. We believe this 1s'very 1mportant.

~ New Jersey,;as you‘no doubt‘havenheard;.is‘one of the seven

| :,so called "free states." That term‘generally means those which‘impose

no . registration standard beyond full dlsclosure requirements of the
Federal securltles laws. The question we must ask ourselves -- one

which I th1nk has been asked at this  meeting -- is, does full

' disclosure adequately protect 1nvestors from unscrupulous promoters and

“brokers? It is my opinion that it does not.
| Fullv disclosure is enough investor :protection only "if one
E believesy~that _prospective investors'vread, and understand"offering
;docuhentS'prior to investing. My experience is'that most often this is
"not the case. People, not prospectuses, sell securltles There is an
: old term that floats around Wall Street and other capltal markets of
the country, and it is essentially that: "Securities are sold and not
: bought.", ProspectUseS'_are ‘seldom read  because they are lengthy,
_written by lawyers, -and filled with boiler plate disclosure and
complicated financial statements. On the other hand, many persons who
'sellb securities,' particularly‘ penny stocks, are optimistic, highly
’ motivated,ncommissioned‘salesmen who illustrate their product as highly

'desirable, in great demand, and scarce. I would add with respect to

” - commenting on prospectuses, that over the years, because of the

~ evolution primarily of Federal securities laWs; these documents have
':vbecome rather archaic and esoteric documents which. oftentimes are
difficult to read. - In my opinion, in many ways they heve become
‘nothing more than insurance policies for the issuer of the securities,
the firm seiling the securities,‘.the underwriting syndicates, the

. lawyers who are compelled to give legal'opinions_before the securities
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‘are sold, and the accountants who are compelled to provide flnancial’

: Statements., I call them insurance policies s1mply because if there is
enough dlsclosed and there is a 11t1gant, an 1nvestor who subsequentlyiw
wants to lltlgate because money was- lost or he felt . somethlng wast
'wrong, ‘the defense ralsed by counsel w1ll be, "Here, turn to: page 47

‘we told you thlS was g01ng to ‘happen." ,

 Well, that may very well be true. They did tell hlm, but you'

k _flnd that one 31ngle sentence out of a 100-page prospectus filled w1th.”v

charts, graphs, and accountlng presentatlons. I thlnk most 1nvestors
" are really not in a p031t10n-— Even if they are sophlstlcated business
“i“people, it does not mean they are sophlstlcated securltles people. ,The»‘
purpose of the prospectus, whlle laudable 1n1tlally, has gone down the
"road of" b01ler plate and is not the klnd of document 1t was: orlglnally
wmeant to be, which was to disclose risks to 1nvestors.
» Weak laws and 1nadequate enforcement resources attract the
;_less scrupulous promoters who ‘realize, correctly, that they can make - -
money . even if the companies whose stock they sell ‘are ultlmately
unprofitable or -simply scams. A 1983 survey by Venture magazine
'revealed that in 1982,,almost half of the companles 901ng publlc with
‘-stock priced under $1 00 "had participants w1th histories of securltles
: 1nJunct10ns, v1olat10ns, fraud, or associations w1th reputed crime
figuresJ‘k ‘Many of these promoters make their money by selllng the
- :initial offering to unlnformed 1nvestors and by tradlng the stock while
its prlce rises. They rely on hard sell, cold calls to these
investors, or they tie sales of worthless stock to opportunltles to buy
more popular ones,v and you have heard 31m11ar testlmony from Mr.
‘Wilson.  This is often based on whatlls known' as the "greater fool"
'i‘theory, which is simply that, no matter how unrealistically high the
‘“prlces that I may have paidbfor'the stock, surely'somewhere, somehow, a
| greater fool can be found who will buy the stock at an even higher
price. The securities are often sold on that ba31s.' At‘some p01ntil

someone is a loser. Agaln, it is my opinion that the loser, more often

*ﬂt'than not, is the average investor who is not pr1vy to rapld market -

‘developments,»' inside 1nformat10n, or 31m11ar such “types ~of

information. However, before that happens, mllllons.of dollars may
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have been made by the brokers who marketed the securlty, as well as the
promoters of that- security, the officers who may pay themselves fat
salaries, bonuses, automoblles, condomlnlums, and all of .the other
‘ klnds of things that are generally associated with a corporate purpose,
but probably are not appropriate for a company going public for the
.. first time, one which has not really developed any sound business.

| It is impossible for the states'to,rely, nor should we, on
the Securities and Exchange Commission to protect our citizens from
. securities fraud 1n low-prlced stock offerlngs. These offerings
'1nvolve a llmlted number of 1nvestors, small amounts of money, and are
d?‘not often the type of abuses that are 1dent1f1ed as national
’enforcement priorities by the SEC or the Department of Justice. - Mr.
Smith, in his comments, said pretty much the same thing. Budget cuts
and staff reductions at the Commission have increased the likelihood
~that fraudulent offerings will not be caught because resources -are
" strained.  These enforcement voids at the Federal level are exploited
by promoters, brokers, and others to'the substantial-detriment_of the
~state and its citizens. '

‘ The state securities d1v131on must bear the regulatory burden
1»of prov1d1ng basic investor protection to the citizens of the given
‘state. An inordinate amount of securities and other investment fraud
in a state results in a‘ loss of confidence in lawful securities
markets; Every dollar of such capital that is invested in worthless,
fraudulent offerings -makes it that much more difficult for the
legitimate entrepreneur to raise needed funds. There is simply a

finite amount of capital available and, if it goes down the drain,'it
is not going to be there for people with legitimate business purposes.

o As I mentioned earlier, New Jersey is one of the seven
‘f so-called "free states." It ranks in the top five' in terms of
registered brokers and general securities activity. I think it is
important that you look at mevwith a certain'perspective5'because 1
come from a state that is often compared to New Jersey. ~In fact, when
our Legislature does bills, our states are compared. We have about‘six'
million people; we are_lboth Northeastern states; we are ’both old
industrial states which have moved into the‘high‘technology era; we
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. _have urban populations throughout our:states,'and we'are‘generallyv

;compared " You have probably seen that 1n other leglslatlon that has ,"

come before your: leglslatlve body. , . o

‘ Let me tell you what is happenlng and what has happened in

'tf\Massachusetts. We have a staff of 18 people., Ten of those people are
i_attorneys' one person handles . our broker/dealer/agent reglstratlon,.'
’,and,fdthe rest are clerical people. - ALl of our profe831onals are
"lawyers. Webdo'not have accountants. I regret ‘that, but . the salary
the state pays has generally made it very dlfflcult for us to hire

“accountants.‘ So,,we opted to hire attorneys because, as you have heard

"F'er. Smith say, the people generally on the other>31de of the regulatory '

dv:table when we are working are attorneys, ‘and generally among the
hlghest pald attorneys Having ' that kind of professional - help ist
‘crltlcally important to protecting inVestors in your State. We wouldi
~ encourage you to look at that issue very carefully."v k

The roles played by the staff people break down as follows
~'We have a general counsel, who is also‘my Asslstant Dlrector, we have
an attorney ~who serves as the Chief of Corporate Finances, whose
_responsibility is to review offerings that are filed with us and
supervise the staff who so do; and, we havela:Chief of Enforcement.

The staff attorneys under these people divide their time between
'»corporate finance and enforcement activity. We have cease and desist

“authority which enables us, very quickly, to stop unlawful act1v1ty
without the delay of lengthy court proceedings.. Hence, if we hear of a
situation that has come about which is 1llegal and which v1olates our
statute, we do not have to go to our Attorney General and wait until a
complaints is prepared and adequate evidence gathered for court

proceeding We need only make certaln that there is suff1c1ent

.‘t'ev1dence that would be sustainable in an admlnlstratlve proceedlng

t‘before we issue an order. We can react much more quickly than the

:: Federal authorities and the self- regulatory authorltles,,or even our
“own State Attorney General. ’

f Now, that may not seem to be a lot, but when you comblne that

iablllty to react swiftly to instances of fraud with an effectlve media

presentation-- You gained the confidence of your local media when you
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'_,askéd about” education when matters came up. I‘belieVe'thymedia is the
must element in investor. protection. We could issue ordcrs 1eft’and"
right all day 1ong.and, if the public did not know that; they would not

be aware of the kinds of scams that arc occurring, nor would,they know

’tnat we are there. 'That'is criticél However,'if you don't haVe

'tanythlng to tell the media because you don't have staff to put cases
~together, there is nothlng to- tell anyone. J
o “We have generally come to be known as’ a "merit regulatlon"
3state in Massachusetts, although we do not have w1th1n our statute the

5maglc words. "fair, just, and equ1table,"~whlch glve-me the authorlty to

:eyicw cffefingé. ‘Thefe has bEen‘a,great deal of dispute as to the

~length our office,hcs extended our authority, but, nevertheless, we
provide sufficient amounts of front-end protection.il We ‘have 24-1/2‘~
thousand: agents registered in our étate, and'wé have between 5,000 and

6,000 securities of ferings filed with us each year. One-third of those
/dfferings'tend to be mutuél,funds which are generally not enfofcement

: problems, and they do not get allot of attention. The restjdc.

‘ The tqucstion might  be faised, or may be suggeéted to you

 later, thatvif you have merit rcview,‘if you interpose the authority of

,government‘ for that of the marketplace of the investor, you are
interfering with capital formation. That is a rhetorical argument. It
is what has been said nany times in many places. tFrankly,-I dc‘not
believe in that argunent, and I will tell yoc why.  Number one, in
Massachusetts, though we have been the subject of criticism for our
style of regulation as being too  tough, f I firmly believe that the

front- end protectlon we have provided to our citizens has had an
enormous deterrent effect. We do not get the penny stock offerings .

- filed with us which haye caused penny stock problems. On occasion,

~ they are filed, but probébly by mistake because people have been

unaware of our regulatory system. But generally, ‘they are not flled
in MassachUsetts;’ I would like to belleve that that has an 1mp0rtant
“deterrent effect. That.w1ll not prevent a person from 901ng out and
participating in- the penny - stock market if hé wants to on "an
unsolicited basis. He can call someone and say, "I want to buy penny

stocks." '~ But, an initiél public offering of a company that would
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'quallfy as ‘a penny stock offerlng generally does not get flled. It
took a whlle for us to get around to that p031t10n through our,
~.regulatory efforts but generally that does not occur. '

The: next questlon mlght arlse,v "What about a guy in

'lifMassachusetts who is honest, has a legltlmate bus1ness 1dea, “and wants

' to raise a little bit of money with a low-pr1ced stock7" Well, we are

“ﬂ;'flex1ble,v and I'11 tell you why we are flex1ble. A firm in

‘Massachusetts,i or_ eyen within the New England area,"which is

o : geograph1cally small, ‘can be watched."‘ We can say, "Okay,. in this

‘lf{-lnstance we wlll let you start your company because you are from

‘t'Boston," but - we are able to walk in on a moment's notice and pull out

those books and records because we have the authorlty to do that, and
we can see what the company has done with the money it raised. I can't
“do that if someone from my colleague's Statevof Colorado wants'to sell
Aa"penny stock'in'Massachusetts; I couldn't afford people very much -
protectlon, but I can for local people. .What I am suggesting 1s,‘you
~ need not fear the argument that you w111"be hitting"on the small'guy by
settlng up a strong statutory scheme for the added protectlon of your
“:1nvestors because there are ways to do that so that the people in’ your_"
>State who you are concerned about, and the Jjobs in your State which you
are ‘concerned about " can . be adJusted ~ You can build in a system
whereby your Securltles Bureau can protect the public from out -of-state
’offerlngs that perhaps ought - not to be sold, without unjustly
_penalizing the local fellowr_ 1 submit to you that doing so is very
ilmportant 51mply because there has been a deregulatory phllosophy
which has grlpped the Federal government and - has weakened the ability
v:‘of the SEC to prov1de adequate 1nvestor protectlon. Much of the burden
gfor policing the secur1t1es markets has fallen to" the states, and
'Jf‘approprlately S0. ‘ , _‘k. B
: As I have JUSt 1nd1cated, we are closer- to ‘investors and are

" more famlllar with the local markets. = We can. weed out fraudulent

‘»'offerlngs before they are sold, and before 1nvestors have lost their

‘money. - Similarly, if they are local people, ‘we are able to watch
them. We are ‘generally ‘less burdened w1th bureaucratlc red tape, and
state regulators do have the ablllty to respond more qu1ckly to
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complaints - of misleading sales practices and threats of market
manipulation. , ' ‘ »

Utah has recently undergone a very similar introspective
exercise'subh as New Jersey is doing now. There was a task Force'pﬁt
together vbyV fhe‘ Governor = and they came up with specific.,
recommendations. Some of those are: prohi@iting blind podl of ferings
because they have a tendency to work a fraud updn’the public, and I
thihk Mr. Griffin will probably address that in his testimony;

‘_providing the securities division there with cease and desist
"éuthority, and I discussed that; permitting the Secﬁrities division to
retain a gréater percentage of the fees it derives from its regulatory
system so that canvbevput to staff use; and, hiring additional staff.

The trend in those states whose securities markets have
’historically been riddled with fréud, is to clean up the markets.and to
provide basic investor protection. In another "free state," Colofado,
' deernor Richard Lamm noted in his State of the State Message that a
good business climate and tough securities laws go hand-in-hand. He
suggested that a weak state securities law is an inyitation for the
unscrupulous  businessman to locate in the state.

The question before your Committee -- ‘and your entire
Legislature -- 1is, how much iongef can New Jersey"afford weak
securities laws and inadequate enforcement resources? I would only
add -- and this will be the conclusion of my testimony -- that my staff
has been given speéific instructions when reviewing broker/dealer
»applications,;thét is, before we let a broker/dealer or any of its
sales‘peréonnel sell in our state, to go over appliéations from four
states with a fine-tooth comb. Tﬁey are all free states; they are all
states where there havebbeenvenforcement problems in -the past. They
are Colorado, Utah, applications that come from the southern part of
Florida, and New Jersey. That is not by accident; that comes by
experience. ‘We are not picking on New Jeréey for any particularv
reason. It is simply that we know there are firms in New‘Jersey that
have had problems in the past. When a new firm springs up, oftentimes
the brincipal.of that firm will be someone who left a preVious firm, or

someone who was a principal in a previods firm that went SIPC, that wés
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nliquidated, and is getting back into the business again. My‘staff‘has
- been . instructed to review those ‘applications very carefully. The
" clerical person in chargevhas authority to clear aoplications,'but”notf
for these states. They must then go to my - Chief of Enforcement.
This may harm some of your legltlmate broker/dealers, 1F only

g because it takes longer for that appllcatlon to be processed and,

‘therefore, they w111 be cut out of the Massachusetts market for ‘that
- extra period of time.  But, that is’ what we feel is necessary to
‘ protect ‘our 1nvestors from some of the unscrupulous flrms and practices
~in certaln parts of the country.v Thank you.. v : :

| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Mr. Unger, agaln, thank you for
coming. I would agree with you that New Jersey ‘and Massachusetts are
-similar in_many ways as far as demogrephics go, and so forth. In fact,
“one of the states I used through the years whenumaking oompariSOns in
‘insurance was always Massachusetts. 1 understend that Massachusetts
recently changed its system and has adopted our new joint underwriting
‘association method with auto insurance. I am very glad to hear. that.
Maybe. we will adopt some of the things you are ‘doing now with ‘
- securities. Assemblyman Adubato? v
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO:  Maybe Mr. Griffin has a
- statement. . | ,
o ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: DOkay, we will wait for Mr.
Griffin's statement. I apologize. B R
- ROYCE GRIFFIN: Thank you; Mr. Chairman. Because Mr. Smith did such a
good job and the NASD has presented an unusually frank description of
‘what goes on in the penny stock market, it is really not going to be
- necessary for me to read my statement as written. That will eaVe more
time for questions, I hope. ‘ , | b_

| I am the Securities Commissioner in Colorado. 1 have been
there for four years.  Prior to that time, I was the Assistant
Securities Commissioner in the State of Arkansas. = Arkensas has a
“strong merit jurisdiction. Colorado is even freer than New Jersey,
inasmuch as we do not have a regulatory handle on the broker/dealer end
" of the business, as you have under your current law. I think I can
speak to both ends of the problem. I have seen regulation and I have
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- seen no regulation, and believe me, regulation is preferable if‘you
don't want to have a market that routinely. defrauds large numbers of
your!citizens; ; 7 . v
I brought a number of offering documents with me,
underwritten ‘by New Jersey brokers. I» think these  are - fairly
5"instruétiye énd I hope, at the éppropriate time, to:‘offer them as
“exhibits to my testimony. R | o
The fifst of‘theseviS”faifly well-known, the Lezak Grdup,
'Ihcorporated. On the front page of. the document it says: "This
'offerihg is ‘of securities of a start-up company with no operating
history and no plan of operation. The company will not engage in any
business, any business whatsoever, until aftér the completion of the
offering." Yet, on the back page it says: "The company is currently
leasing office space from its president" -- that'is‘to accomplish no
business -- "and major - shareholder on a month-to-month basis at
approximately $6,000 per month." The offering document gdés on to say:
"This is a_blind pool offering, and that means that the funds to be
raised are not at all»allocatéd except for the payment of salaries and
consqlting»feeé, and the expenses of this offering. - The company does
not know what business it will“éngage~ in. It has no plan of
operation." ’ :
‘ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Excuse me, is this a real thing
you are talking about here? ' ‘
| ' MR. GRIFFIN: Yes. It is offered by M. H. Meyerson and
Company, Inc. out of Jersey City, New Jersey. |
' ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATU: Wait a minute. Are you saying
this exists now? o ’ '
MR. GRIFFIN:* I think the company is bankrupt. now, but these
securities were sold in 17 days. - | o S ,
'ASSEMBLYMAN MiCHAEL ADUBATO: But, this ‘existed ~in New
Jersey? o S | '
 ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. I
don't know if that is correct. I think they are still doing business.
MR. GRIFFIN: Are they? | |
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Our information is that they

are still doing business in Jersey City.
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MR. GRIFFIN' " One of Mr.-LezaE's companies went bankrupt; I
am not sure whlch one. They sold $3'millionvworth of this stock in 17
days. | ' B ' o o
|  ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  In 17 days they sold $3 million

v'.fworth of stock7

" MR. GRIFFIN: That is correct.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO With no bu31ness, except to pay

'for salarles, consultant fees, and offlce space for someone, and maybe

. 'a yacht somewhere7v

, ~MR. GRIFF IN: That is correct. In that regard, Mr. Lezak is
."presently belng compensated at the rate of $125 00 per hour; that is to -
.do. no bu31ness, as well., It is understood that he wlll be compensated
'at the rate of $120,000 per year once the company goes 1nto exlstence,
| and he will not be obllgated to devote full- t1me employment to the
~company. o
‘ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO' Ewcuse me. What was the name -
‘of that outflt ‘again? ‘ R R _ ,
k MR. GRIFFIN That is - the Lezak Group, Incorporated
o ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATD Lezak7
'jMR GRIFF IN: Yes, - sir. o
, ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO How'do you spell -that?
MR. GRIFFIN: L-e-z-a-k.
:ASSEMBLYMAN:MICHAEL ADUBATO: In Jersey City now? - ,
MR. GRIFFIN Out of M. ‘H. Meyerson and Company,‘Jereey City,
New Jersey _ ” ‘ ‘ R
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO ~Okay, go ahead.
MR. GRIFFIN: - Another offerlng, Coal Technology Corporatlon-—
= _ ASSEMBLYMAN‘ MICHAEL ADUBATO: (1nterrupt1ng) . Would you‘
v'f“please spell that for us?. | ' . L
MR. GRIFFIN C-o0-a-1 Technology Corporatlon,'offered by the

”~W,now, defunct  Southeast Securltles of Florida,  Incorporated,

.E_"headquartered in Hoboken, New Jersey.

. ~ ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: (interrupting) Excuse me, Mr.
'Griffin. Through you, Mr. Chairman, that was the company where Mr.
Sheehan,’our second witness, was the lawyer app01nted by the courts

' when Southeast -Securities went into recelvershlp.
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MR. GRIFFIN: That is correct Coal Technology Corporation

-came into the offering 1nsolvent,'approx1mately $200, 000 in debt.v They

raised $762 061 afterv offerlng vexpenses. of that, $325, DUO,

approximately half, went to pay loans to the current insiders in the
l:company; So, 50% of this new offering, as'soon as you put your money

cu,down,'went‘back into the pockets ofrthe-gUys promoting the offering.

- Another‘offering -- Northern Arizona Gold and Silver Milling

~-and Mining Company -- listed the following risk factors: 'There was

- no feasibility study on‘whether or‘not they could, in fact, mine gold

. and silver in the mine. They,raieed inadequate proceeds'to,construct

,"the mill they were planning to put forward from this offering. The

S compaoy officers were allowed to receive substantial benefits from the

public 'offering, and I can confirm that.. There was a lack of any
operating mine associated with’ the company. - They had no alternative
business plan; they had substantial conflicts of 1nterest there was a
lack of a mill site; there was dependence on the precious metal prlces
in the metals market; it was untr1ed management who had never been in
_ the mining . ‘business  before; there was no. market for the company's '
-'common stock and, the offering pr1ce was arbltrarlly determlned,’whlch
1ndlcates ba81cally that they threw a coin up in the air and ‘it landed
on flfty cents a " share. The underwrlter was - Seaboard Plannlng
Corporatlon, 215 Main Street, Chatham, New Jersey.
‘ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: ‘What was the name of that
' outfit? | | -
MR. GRIFFIN: Sesboard Planning Corporation.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: In Chatham?

- 'MR. GRIFFIN: Yes, in Chatham. I'm sorry. I don't "have the
or1g1nal of this one, because this is the only full-color prospectus I
have ever seen. It is called "JoAnn's Ch1111 Bordello.ﬁ (laughter)

' ' ) ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO Say that again, please.‘
- MR. GRIFFIN: JoAnn's Chilli Bordello, Incorporated.
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Bordello? I thought that was
- what you said. Go ahead. _ o e , |
MR. GRIFFIN " This picture is much more exciting in color, I
assure you. B ’
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO We ougot to investigate that.
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7 ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: May we have a copy of those
pictures while yoU are talkihg?

MR. GRIFFIN: Yes.

'ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: This is for real now; this is
not a-- ' ‘ . - - o
MR. GRIFFIN: (interrupting) All of these are real security
offerings. | o
» ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: This is for.real, okay. I know
we are laughing because we have to keep our sense of humor, as serious
“as this is. h , . o _
‘ MR. GRIFFIN: The imperatives descfibed by other Sbéakefs are
preSeht in that prospectus as they are in the last two, which I will
not detail for you. ’
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Wait a minute. What happened
with that? ) ‘ '
| MR. GRIFFIN: The securities were sold.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: We want to give this the same
~amount of time we gave the others. | ' | ' '

MR. GRIFFIN: The securities were sold.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: I don't believe this; I don't
believe this. They were sold. Go ahead. ‘ g _
‘— “ MR. GRIFFIN: As to what has happened to the company, I don't
know. - I think it was about a 1983 offering.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: No, 1984; June, 1984. That is
incredible. Thank you. ,

MR. GRIFFIN: A secondary problem that New Jersey is goingvto v
*face’is not simply the fact that it doesn't register securities if they
are Federally registered. It is my understanding from reading your act
“that you also don't register securities if they are Federally exempt.
There is a large categofy of companies coming out of Colorado and Utah
~--"and I expect New Jersey will be next -- known as "Rule 504 Shell
Companies." ~ They are relying on a Federal exemption, and then they are
registering it in a state on an intrastate basis. They cannot prevent
fhe offering sale. Well, what happens is, essentially théy. take

companies public wifh,no net proceeds, net proceéds of $900.00. ' Then -
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they merge with a private company and, all of a sudden, you Vhave‘g
' totally evaded state. and Federal'securities laws on both levels. This
is a problem which has been ralsed-— - ,
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: (interrupting) Excuse me.
MR. GRIFFIN: Yes, sir.. | o
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Mr. Griffin, through you, Mr.
Chalrman, please explain why a company would be Federally exempt. Why
Federally exempt in the first place’7 - , . |
" MR. GRIFFIN: The Federal Securltles and Exchange Commission
has passed a regulation which is 1ntended to raise capital for small
' companies, to make small business financing slmpler. _As a part of .
that, for ,offerings 'under $500,000; _they. look primarily to state
regulation. Your law, obviously, is not intended to dovetail with
'that, inasmuch: as you exempt the same stock that they exempt. .‘
v ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: We make certaln assumptions in
‘New Jersey about the SEC laws in place -protecting the public and
k‘allow1ng for a free flow of capital formation. However, on the reverse
'end, the SEC has a certain'stipulation thatvsays certain;entities can
fgo‘through the proCess and not have an exemption."Their_353umption is
‘ that they are belng regulated on a state level.
- MR. GRIFFIN That is correct '
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Okay.
MR.  GRIFFIN: So, these offerings basically fall through the
cracks. o . : o
" ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: I know the people from NASD are
still here listening to that. Okay. | |
MR.. GRIFFlN: " You 'might ask, why would anyone buy an
investment of this sort? The penny stock market does not Tun on logic;
it runs on hype and manipulation. The atmosphere during a hot issue
market'is comparable to the feeding frenzy among ocean fish. Because
the pr1ce of the stock is so low, a few cents movement upward can mean
as much as 100% appreciation to the 1nvestor. Durlng the hot issue
" market in 1980 and 1981, people clamored to buy new issues because they
h.’belleved that new issues always go up. No purchaser intended to remain

the owner - of a particular stock for more than a few weeks or months,
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'~ and no one bought With investment intent. The Director of the Denver
Regional Office of the SEC described this phenomenon as ahvapplication
of the "greater fool" theory.  This theory states that no matter how
stupid I am to buy this worthless stock, I firmly believe there is
someone out there more stupid than I who will pay more for it than I
did. The essential point here is that the people who fall v1ct1m to
the penny stock market in this game of musical chairs, the person who
is ;eft without a chair, is typically not a sophisficated investor. He
or she is not an attorney, not an accountant, not an insidér in the
company, but an 6rdinary citizen; like Mr. Kvist, who was here this
morning, a bus‘driver, a secretary; a laborer. Thesé'are.the people
who cah invest'$200.00 or $500.00 fo buy a round lot of this stock, and
who are so embarrassed when the stock collapses that they don't
complain to you. Théy may complain to us on isolated occasions, but
that is why you don't hear about it. It is the perfect scam. If you
can steal $200.00 from'everyone in America and no one complains, you
are the richest man on earth. It is an ideal sort of scam that these
people operate. o N :

. It has also been stated by the Regional Admlnlstrator of the
NASD in the district I am a part of, that it is very dlfflcult to
retain your ethics as a penny stock broker if you are clearlng $40,000
a month. The amounts‘of_money made by the penny Stockbrbkérs'during
hot issue periods are astronomical . The commission structure is
different than in dthef' parts of the stock market. There is high
pressure on the salesmen to sell the new issue, but not to resell it in
the market after it is sold in the first place. The whole direction is
to get the stock out, though the certificates often will not be
‘dellvered because that would facilitate resale. In docqments filed in
Federal cqurt relating to the bankruptcy of UTC ‘Net, the largest pehny
stockbroker, I guess, in the history of the country, a former coach for
one of the school districts in the Denver area increased his net worth
by over $7 million in a two-year period, and this was essentially on
commission sales of the stocks. |
| Customer solicitation practices of penny stockbrokerages

during hot market periods have been described'by participants as those
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of boiler rows. Typically, an agent arrives at work and is given a
column of the phone book to cold call in an attempt to sell securltles
that the broker/dealer is pushlng that week. o

‘ Finally, there is abundant evidence that there is a clear
correlation between merit regulation and clean securities markets. ~Six‘
"states are commonly known in the industry as free states. These are:
“Colorado, Utah Nevada, Florida, New York, and New Jersey. It is not a .
coincidence that all six of these states have very lenient review
‘requirements, or «‘no‘ review reouirements at all, as you have in New
 Jersey, and;they“are”renowned’as havens for one form or another‘of ‘
securities related fraud. The best and most effective means of doing
away w1th the abuses you heard about today is to e11m1nate the product,
that is, the penny stock around which these abuses center. This stock
~cannot be sold in a state llke Massachusetts; it cannot be sold in
about 36 of the statesi because " they have ‘substitive standards the
stocks must.meet before it is legal to sell the stocks in that state.

_ ASSEMBL YMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: ~ Are you saying there are
~,approx1mately 36 states out of the 50 states rlght now where you would
' really have a problem trylng to sell penny stock?. .

_ ‘ MR. GRIFFIN: Absolutely, a problem, if not an 1mp0331b111ty
‘of- selllng ‘those stocks. . - oo o
',ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: ‘Thirty;six out of the 50
states? ol o _ _ o

"MR. GRIFFIN:  Thirty-six  states responded to the
questlonnalre put out by our Natlonal Association that they exercise

merit rev1ew in one form or another. Now, there are different forms

' .n,that that takes.

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO Obviously,vNew Jersey is not in
that category. S s " - R
‘ MR. GRIFFIN-' Obviously not. New Jersey is in the far end of

o the other direction.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATD We‘are,on‘thevother end of the
spectrum, okay. Please 90 ahead. ‘ ‘
MR. GRIFFIN:  Statutory prov151ons authorlzlng your State

securities administrator to prevent the initial offer or sale of any
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stock offerings, including SEC registered offeringé, which are unfair,
unJust, or 1nequ1table to New Jersey 1nvestors,‘or which tend to work a
' fraud upon them, would go a long way toward ellmlnatlng these
problems. Merit review works and, to my knowledge, it is the only -
1practiéal method for preventing securities fraud before the monéy
" changes hands. Thank you. :
" ' ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: I would ask those two cameramen
over there to please pan the audience. I would like to make sure I get
‘a pxcture of the audience here today for our . library.
I want to thank you again, Mr. Griffin. I don't know what to
" -say toxyou about your coming all the way from Colorado, and Mr. Unger
coming from Massachusetts. 1. appreciate Mr. Unger coming, but you
coming from Colorado is-- I just don't know what to say, except to
tell you that if you ever need anyone from New Jersey out there, I
will be happy to try to help you get whomever you need. '
MR. GRIFFIN: I may be on the phone next week.
"ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Well, I have been known to keep
. my wbrd. Assemblymah Adubato? ' : L
‘ ASSEMBLYMAN  STEPHEN - ADUBATO:  Mr. Chairman, again, in the
”same_vein as whener. Smith and Mr. Barry testified--  You know, if
this meeting has done anything so far, it has allowed us to at least --
~in . a Very clear fashion, and in a very frank fashion -- talk aboutbthe
>138ue that we came here to talk about today. - The only thing I can
‘raise on the issue of merit review as a question is what seems to me
to be a typical response from an industry representative -- and I know
‘we are going to be hearing from industry representativés later -- and
that would be that wé don't want to stop capital fbrmation in any way.
I gquess I am as concerned about that as ényone else. That is one of
the ‘things that comes to my mind in the issue of merit review. Mf..
‘Unger did talk about that in some sense, but I want ito ask,i in
’;Massachusetts, or in Colorado -- and, I know your laws are different --
have you in any way experienced any clear indicatibn that merit review.
’in your state has restricted capital formation? What indications have
: you had that it has or it hasn't? -
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MR. UNGER: The answer to that is no. I think the economic
sithation of Massachusetts, as strong as it is, points to that fact.
There are many companies that have‘gone‘public in Massachusetts -- The
Pollo Compufer, Automatics‘—- very strong companies that came public in
our state. They may have had a- few problems here or there that did not
strlctly meet our standards and gu1de11nes, but we were able to look at
those. We are not inflexible.. ~State regulators are human belngs, we

_are not robots. As far as inhibiting capital formation for legitimate
;entfeprenéurs, for companies with'legitimate ideas, and a legitimate
“basis for ex1stence, more often than not they are able to go forward.
I believe the argument about merit review restrlctlng capital formation
is really rhetorical, and I think you are going to hear that argument.
not so much from the business people'who try to bring companies public,
but you are going to hear it from -the bar. And, whatever your
legislative‘proposals are, if they have some type of merit review, you
vare going to be lobbied hard. - I want you to understand that. We have
been through this in variods states, and you will probably be lobbied
hardest by ‘the bar assbciation, ~whether it is your ‘State- Bar
Assoc1at10n or the American Bar Assoc1at10n, which does not have a
great feellng of warmth for merit review, and I will tell'you why .
B It is because their jobs are made a little more difficult
because of merit‘review. They have to keep a check list of the various.
states and the various state statutes and requiremenfs, and they. have
to make phone -calls. ‘Their job is to see, on behalf of the
'underwrifingbsyndicate more. often than not, that the issue is clear in
given sfafes. That is not easy. I am not going to say that we make
their job easier, but I don't think we are here to make their Jjob
easier. You have to confront a VEry, vvery “basic publlc policy

question. = You will-be lobbled, and you will be told aout the expense

- of additional regulations to issuers and how the money is taken away

from the purpose of the offering to build a factory, and it is going to
‘legal fees, and paper, and all of that. There is probably some truth
’ 1n that. There is a cost to it; there is certainly a cost to good
regulation. As legislators, as any legislator does on any bill, you
have to weigh where you feel the public benefit should be. We very
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strongly believe that the capital markets are better served, albeit
there is some cost, with strong up-front regulation that ultlmately is
to the benefit of the industry that is be1ng regulated.

H And, yes, it might cost a little bit more, but I think that
is a sound investment and a sound leglslatlve policy.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATU Did you say that Massachusetts

has the strongest merit review in the states?

_ MR. UNGER: We are among the four or five states that are
probably the strongest. We don't have the strongest statutory
langdage, but we have read our authority under the statute to give us
the kind of review that we feel is necessary to protect our citizens.
I think that is why we only need 18 people. If we did not have that,
we would probably need 40 or 50 people because we would have to be

cleaning up after the fact. There is a cost benefit to front-end
‘regulation. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Mr. Chairman, I withdraw my
question to Mr. Griffin because 1 forgot how bad their situation is.
I don‘t know if you can talk about merit review in your own state,
because obv1ously it doesn't exist.- | ' |

MR GRIFF IN: I have attended small business conferences,'and
as to small business relocatlons, where they are going to move, whether
or not a state has merit review is 1n31gn1f1cant What they really
look at is the educational environment in the state, the tax laws in
the state, and the availability of bank access. The questibn of
whether or not they have to have meritorious stock is not a concern to
them, because most of the legitimate businesses are going to try to
‘_etrueture-their deals so that they are meritorious in the first place.

In the second place, many of these companies are not raising
‘capital for any business purpose. When you'read the prospectuses that

I am going to provide you with, you will see that in a blind pool the
1money is going to be used to pay back loans to insiders. It is going
- to be used in salaries and consulting fees. We are not talking, in 95%
of the cases, about building a factory to produce computers. We are
talking about front-end ripoffs. |

| ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: I have no further questions,

Mr. Chairman.
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, ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL. ADUBATO: Assemblymen, questions?
(negative response) Again, thank you very -much. For the record, 1
’think the legitimacy'of'your last statement is theireal bottom line,
Mr. Griffin, and that is that the people who are accountable come into

a state because it is to their advantage that they. can ‘make a profit

- legltlmately, and absolutely everything about proflt is good Wlthout

. that, nothing happens. It is not a questlon of proflt, it is a

question of someone taklng the yacht before they produce the profit. I
2 don't mlnd if they buy the yacht, but first produce the profit.
, Thank you both- for coming. The next witness will be Mr.
- .William Fitzpatrick. We have Mr. Fitzpatrick listed as the .Vice
PreSident of tne Securities vIndustryb Association. "'19 that 'right?
(affirmative response) We naven't,been right on anyone's title today,
Mr. Fitzpatrick. ' | | ‘
WILLIAM J. FITZPATRICK: I am Senlor Vice President and General Counsel
of the Securltles Industry A33001at10n. ' '
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Thank you, Mr. Fitzpatriek.

. MR, FITZPATRICK: The Association is a trade association. It

,e_is not likettheuNASD; it is not a selffregulatory organi?ation. We

~have no regulatory - powers, nor do ~we have rules and regulations

~outlining the conduct of our members. - We are solely a trade

association; We represent our members. Our members are approxlmately
530 broker/dealers, and those broker/dealers represent most of the
major investment banking.firms and broker/dealere in the country who do
approximately 90% to 95% of all securities transactions in this
country. | | | |
‘I will try to be as brief as possible, and will conment first
on the merit regulation aspect of it. Secondly,-lvwill address the
penny stock portion.of it. They are two distinct separate questions,
':-although in- listening to the testlmony today I think there was a great
fudglng of the two. ,
I am 'sure that this panel, as well as many people in the
audience, are well familiar with the statistics ‘which‘ indicate that
nost of the new Jjob creations in this eountry come from small new

businesses, and that actually the creation of jobs, if it were left to
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the established corporations in the United States,\would be arfairlyA
static number. = But, ‘new jobs come ~from new businesses, new

"industries. I am sure that New Jersey has profited from this, as. well

= ‘as all of the other states.

‘,riofferings.

_ Not surprislngly,v one of the biggest problems for smallf
'companies is the matter of raislng capital. A company which chooses to
‘go public is undertaking a very expensive. proposition. There will -be
bills to pay from printers, accountants, and lawyers. Filing fees aref
7tanother expense. A SEC study determined that for certain types of
_ offerings‘ for ‘small bus1ness, the expense related to going public‘
absorbed‘approximately 18% of the total proceeds'of'thevoffering, In
‘\reCOgnition‘of'the very COnsiderable costs that regulation can impose |
‘upon  the process of capital 'formation, particularly for - small
. businesses, Congress hast attempted to help. For 1nstance, the
z}enactment of the Small Business Investment Incentive Act of 1980,led't0_
rthe recent‘adoption by the SEC ofAWhat is known as Regulation D. That
‘ regulation'is designed to assist small'bUsinesseS'to raise capital. by

‘,rellev1ng them of many of . the regulatory burdens placed upon public

f When Congress established the SEC and the national system for
:f,regulation of securities, it failed to address the interaction between
the Federal and state governments, and the state statutes governlng
securities act1v1t1es. As the marketplace has developed in the last 50.
. years since ‘the creation of the SEC, the need for uniform standards of
» regulation governing the offering of securities has become 1ncreasingly
vobvious. VA system of nationally consistent regulation can be brought
iabout by only two means: - One is by preemption, total prEemption'by,the»

Federal government over state regulation. But the second'alternative,
"“"and the much more desirable alternatiye,~ is" for states to become
"unifdrm*and‘coordinated~with‘the Federal system. The Federal laws, as

twe‘fhayev heard many. times before, are disclosure laws protecting

'.investors by requiring complete disclosure of”all‘material:facts about

' a company  and its offices. Approx1mately half of the states are

bdisclosure states, and New Jersey 1s one of - them.
All ‘50 states have their individual statutes and, although

they are modeled on what is called the Uniform Securities Act-—
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ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: (1nterrupt1ng) Let me.
interrupt you. You said you were Senior Vice Pre81dent or Executive
Vice President? :

B MR. FITZPATRICK: Senior Vice President.

v » ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: . I want to get vyour title
‘correct’ Senior Vice President. As a- Senior Vice Pre31dent dld you
‘JUSt make the statement that New Jersey has disclosure ‘laws?’

MR. FITZPATRICK. That is correct.” ;

_ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO In - what way do we have
‘ disclosure laws7 , . ’ Lo

‘MR, FITZPATRICK You folldw the'Federal system.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: ‘Well, let me ask this in a
udlfferent way. Who doesn't follow the Federal system'7 What state does
‘not. follow the Federal system? :

~ MR. FITZPATRICK: They .all 'have va' degree of disclosure
involved, but‘enly‘half of them have what is known as merit regulation.
e ASSEMBLYMAN: MICHAEL ADUBATO: No, let me'say it agaih. The

 disclosure laws you are talking about -are. not. laws that have been put

"55'0n the books by the states. |

MR. FITZPATRICK: Some of them are, yes. |
“ASSEMBLYMAN: MICHAEL ADUBATO Not New Jersey.
MR. FITZPATRICK: . Yes, you have a disclosure law
- ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: But, that is a--
MR.‘FlTZPATRICK. (interrupting) Either you register with .
the State of New Jersey or you register under the 1933 Act. | _
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Let me ask you a questlon. I
want to make sure I heard you properly.‘ You're saying that if someone
“wants to govout into the marketplaee to raise capital, there is a
'disclosure they have to make to the State of New Jersey._ ‘
’ MR. FITZPATRICK:  There is an exemption for those who have
"Filed under the Securities Act of 1933, which is a disclosure statute.
‘So, the Federal-- ~ . ’
’ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATD (interrupting) But, they don't

have to make a disclosure.
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_MR. FITZPATRICK: They do, Federally, and it becomes public
'?record, yes. That is the system under which securities are sold in
: thls country. - v | t o :

. ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO Ukay;v I'm confused, because I
~~ have been told by other people that in' New Jersey there exists, widely
'I'm told-- I am told that people are out there selllng stock, and the

. State of New Jersey doesn't even know who they are.

» MR FITZPATRICK:" Well, I can't testlfy for the State of New
-Jersey. _ A R : : B . '

 ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: They don t even know who they

o are. - ‘fhere is no record of anything anywhere. Where are they
disélosing? ‘Maybe you can help me. Where are‘théy dlsc1031ng? _Tell

”  me. What department in New Jersey are they disclosing to?

" MR. FITZPATRICK: Well, the sécurities Commission.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO- - They are d13c1031ng to Mr.

Smith? Mr. Smlth would you please’ JOln us now?

MR, FITZPATRICK May I-- o L

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: 'Excusé'még sir.

MR. FITZPATRICK: No, excuse me. R T |
. "ASSEMBLYMAN'MICHAEL ADUBATO: No, excuse mé; I will run the
‘meeting. . - v L o ' _‘1.t ‘
' 'MR; FiTZPATRICK: I am just‘asking‘for courtesy.
| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: It is a courtesy..

MR. FITZPATRICK' Everyone has testified here at full length
bland then questlons have come forth. ' B

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Excuse me, Mr. Fltzpatrlck, we
have cut people of f in the middle of . their testlmony. E ‘
' ' ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  Excuse me, Assemblyman. Mr.
~1fF1tzpatr1ck, I don't know if you werevhere,during‘the‘coursé%of the

| \meetlng . ,. o o L e
~ MR. FITZPATRICK: I have been here since ten o'clock as
" requested. o R ' S -
 ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  I'm very happy you were here,
“and we appreciate it. The point is thattthroughout the day we have

interrupted people's presentations, to be perfectly fair.
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MR. FITZPATRICK: But, it wasn't done in stereo with guest
speakers. You can ask me any quéstion you want. Mr. Smith has had
ample time to give his presentation. If you want to ask him a further
question, fine. ; -

» ASSEMBL YMAN - MICHAEL ADUBATO: ‘Excuse me, Mr. Fitzpatrick.

Mr. Smith, where and how do these people disclose whaﬁ.they are dbing'
to you? ’ . ‘ ' ‘
~ MR. SMITH: They don't. : :
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Thank you, Mr. Smith. = That is
all I wanted to ask. ; S |
MR. FITZPATRICK: - Wait a minute.  May I ask Mr. Smith a
question? | ‘ ", : '

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: ~ No, you may not.  Please
continue. o v
MR. ~ FITZPATRICK: In many states, statutes give the
commissioner the authority to refuse to approve an offering of

securities if he finds the terms of the offering are not "fair, just,.
‘ahdv.equifable." - This:' is called "heritv’review;" and is totally
different from disclosure, which is .the Federal system; You have to
understand that merit réview has’nothing to do with fraud. All we are
dealing wifh are the standépds of fair,'just, and eqditable., It has
nothing to do with fraud. | |

All 50 states, including New Jefsey, have - statutory
provisions permitting the state administrator to refuse to approve an

offering which would constifute a fraud upon the pufchaser. Only about
"half of the states have merit review. Under thé> broad discretion
granted by merit review statutes, the state administrators review an

foffering ~and are involved in deciding whether they are personally
satisfied with the amount and nature of the underwriting commissions,
the amount of étock issued to insiders and promoters in retdrn for
their efforts in organizing the company, the issuances of optibns and
.. warrants to key officers, the offering price to the public, shareholder

.vofing rights, and ihtérest and dividend coverage. While any‘oné of
_ these individual categories could,be‘the source of an abuse, taken as a

whole the net effect "is that the state securities commissioner is
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involved in each securities issue, not as -a regulator, but as a
'corporateffinancier. He actually structures theideal as if he had an
‘interest in the economic outcome. Of course, this adds substantially
to the time and cost involved in clearing an issue. |

Under the merlt review standard, an issue can admlttedly be

J *.gfree of fraud but unacceptable ‘in the subgect;ve judgment of the

- securities commissioner. . Therefore, it would not bekappr0ved,for sale
“to the public. Exercising their merit review authority, securities

-commissioners have refused to approve initial public offerings of such
f>'stocks as Apple Computer, U.S. Telephone,tand others you have all heard
about,, The subsequent performance of these conpaniesfhas revealed how
dubious was the initial refusal and how costly it was to potential -
investors. '

More importantly, broker/dealers are united in their belief
that the chilling effect on the raising of capital in those states that
are known as "tongh merit review jurisdictions" is significant.
: Without‘question, merit review adds cost to the issqance of securities,
”and the fact that the standardvyaries from state to state means an
issuer must run the”gauntlet'ef state'commissioners,‘each'appiying his
own“personal views of what is "fair, Just, and‘equitableﬁ'; Always
remember that all of this has nothing to - do with fraud. 'All‘states,,

agaln including New Jersey, can keep a fraudulent issue from being sold
within the state. The securities industry believes coordination of
state securities registration requirements with those of the Federal
’securities1 laws is essential. The rapid development of national
markets for securities cannot proceed  in the face of merit revien.
- Individual 'commissioners reviewing offerings act in ,good faith, but
without fully' understanding the increasing nationalization and
internationalization of our marketplace, and without . the staff,
training, funding, and other resources that do the type of 1n-depth
corporate  financial analyses that merit review requires.

, ~ Redirection of bu31ness away from states with obsolete
bregplatory SystemS>SUCh as merit review is a reality. These factors
~were considered by the'Legislatures of Illinois, Ilowa, and Michigan

- when, over the objection of their state securities eommissioners,‘they
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recently modi fied their statutes and eliminated‘almost all merit review
in Favor of a dlsclosure standard 31m11ar to that of the SEC. One need -
'only review the testimony glven recently in Illinois on this 1ssue,
particularly the testimony of the Honorable Jim Edgar, the Secretary of
State of Illinois, who supported and sponsored the elimination of merit
- review in his state as a result of personally w1tne331ng merit review
drive away new business from I1linois. = Texas is about ‘to ‘introduce
legislation which- would largely ellmlnate merit rev1ew. The States of
\Dhlo,_Indlana, Kentucky,vand Arizona elther have or .are considering
4b”abOlishing merit review. In‘faot, just as an aside‘on Arizona; that
State,vhast reoently been sued for $50 milliOn, ’together with the
securities' commissioner. 'The, theory is that this was done by an
inVestor because the State of Arizona did not exercise good judgment in;
its merit review, and allowed a securlty to be sold whlch later went
bankrupt | '
' ° In short, to suggest that New Jersey become a merlt State is
to. suggest that it alone buck an 1ncre381ng national trend toward
“eliminating wmerit Treview.  In the last year, three ,states have
A*eliminated merit review; no state has recently foroposed becoming a

7f“mer1t review state.

: The series of artlcles publlshed recently in your local
'tnewspaper d1d highlight several illustrations where . investors lost
money by investing in so—called_penny stocks. While there'is.nothing
. inherently wrong with low-priced stocks, these'sorts of securities are
recognized by‘ the broker/dealer community as very = speculative

investments which are not suitable for everyone. Many SIA members have
had long-established policies of discouraging selling penny stocks to

" members of the general public. - For instance, salesmen in many

“'_broker/dealers recelve no commission on the purchase or sale of a stock

‘i'whlch sells for less than $3.00. In addltlon, in many firms brokers
5 have to receive special perm1331on from their superlors before entering
an order for such securities, and almost none of SIA's members will
underwrite low-priced securltles

It should also be remembered, as Mr. Sm1th p01nted out that

more than 1 100 broker/dealers -- 1 thlnk he sald the number is now
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1,400 -- are licensed in New Jersey, but only about 50 of those are
actively engaged in the sale of penny stocks. New Jersey must be,Qery
careful not to discourage an entire industry from operating in the
State because of the occasional abuse by a small segmént, of that.
v'ihdustry. If the problem is fraud, we agree that the Chief of the
State Seéurities ‘Bureau should be given adequate staff to actively
- enforce the law. However, it must be realized thatvif New»Jersey opts
~ for merit review, it will require a much larger and a much more
sophisticated schrities staff, with the resultant budgetary demands,
“and without necessarily increasing the Bureau's ability to combat fraud
itself. - EE ‘ ‘
v If the laws of New Jersey -- and, obviously, it is up to you
good gentlemen to decide -- are to be changed, care should be‘taken to
assure uniformity with the other states so as not to single out New
~Jersey and isolate it from the mainstream of theAfinancial’industry.
With other states eliminating merit review, to become part of that
mainstream, New Jersey should heed the lesson of its large industrial
. sister states, such'aé Illinois and Michigan, and do nothing to make
this State appear reactionary. The Stétéfdf_New Jersey, with its hopes
of playing a méjor role in high technology, cannot afford such a giant
- step backward. Thahk_you. o
'  I have just a few brief comments on one thingfyou said, Mr.
Chairman, about casino employees.  You made a point that casino
employees in the State of New Jersey have to undergo considerable
" inspection  and investigation before they can,rplay blackjack, or
whatever, down at Atlantic City. I must also point out that people in
the securities industry must undergo as equally a scrutinizing
o inVéstigation, and that no one can become a regiétefed representative
-- which is the term of art for a salesperson -- register with the
NASD, the New York Stock Exchange, or any of the self-regulatory
brganizationSj without first undergoing a complete background check of
his entire business,‘professional, and schooling careers. He must be
fingerprinted, and those fingerprints are chécked with the FBI. There
is a considerable amount of scrutiny given to anyone before he or she
can sell securities.
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1 think that is aboutiit : Again, I thank you. I am sorry
for my 1ntemperate outburst before, but you must consider the fact that
I am Irish, and those things happen. Thank you. '

'ASSEMBLYMAN - MICHAEL ADUBATO:  Mr. Fitzpatrick, in your

'opinion, is it a fair commentary to say the perceptlon is that we
overlap in lumping everyone in the securltles bu51ness 1n one pot? Is
~ that what you are saying? F , :
' _.MR. FITZPATRICK No.'v' 1 think 'there was -an attempt,
'certalnly by Mr. Smith, to state that we are talking about a very small:

o m1nor1ty, an extremely small mlnorlty - I think it is your Job, and the

' Job of the Legislature, to make certain that because of ‘a problem, and
no one denies that there is a problem, and. belleve me, no one wants to
see the bad guys thrown out of this bus1ness any -more than SIA Or our
members, because they really constltute an unfair-- _ » _

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: - (interrupting) With that in
m1nd,er. Fltzpatrlck-- _

7 MR.’FITZPATRICK. (1nterrupt1ng) You hayekto_be certain not
to throw the baby out w1th the bath water. 1 thinkithat is“whatvwe are
saying. | e o .
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Well, you know, I won't use the
y word resent, but I do resent your attitude. You are trying to
1n51nuate, or 1nfer, or accuse us of trylng to throw the baby out with
’h:the bath water. I mean, that is a ‘tactic I am used to dealing with
1when 1 deal with insurance company types. FSee,,it‘just doesn't work as
a strategy. | | '

We are not throw1ng anyone out. - You know, this is free
Jenterprise at its best. =~ What we are trying to do is deal with the
. targeted area that was presented in the newspaper, which motivated the
‘,:resolution and ‘this meeting ~ Now, if you think your. people were

: _‘1dent1f1ed in those stories, that is your. problem

‘MR. FITZPATRICK: They weren't. : . -

~ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: That is not what we're saying.
If you are saying that, we will listen to you if. the people you
-represent are a part’of that ilk. See, we never sa1d that. What we

are dealing with is within that_framework.
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Let me ask you somethlng. Penny stock, hlstorlcally, and 1
_am throw1ng this out to the Committee and to you, is really a stock
which has what, maybe a $5.00 normal maximum? ‘ : “

' jMR.‘_FITZPATRICK: I think that might be very high} There are
~ many stoeksfselling on the American Stock Exchange, and certainly on
,iNASDAQ,awhich sell" for leas than $5.00. It‘is pretty tough to get a

grip on it. R : l :
1 : ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO I think to clarlfy the
LChalrman s p01nt what he is saying is between a penny and $5. 0o.
,ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  That is what I am saying.
l ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: It is a working definition..
MR. FITZPATRICK: It's tough. Five dollars would be awfully

high. o - - v ‘ k
- ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: It's hign, but that is not the
~ issue. They are the parameters. ' ‘
| MR. FITZPATRICK: It would have been vey hlgh, espec1ally in
" the market of last year, because PanAm was selling at three.
; ‘ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO That is,“thew classical
~;’def1n1t10n, accordlng to what I have been told, of a hlgh and a low,
talthough today we heard from someone who has stock that is worth less
than a penny. - : ’ '
ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO A lot less.
‘ - ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: It was",UOS or sonething,
whatever it was. So, it could be even less thanva penny The issue ‘is
that in those kinds of operatlons, settlng up what we call disclosure,

and what we call merit review-- In those 1nstances, why would you be
i

nupset about that7 : o , _
: " MR. FITZPATRICK: Well, if what the first witness described
,'vtbokkplace, and I have to assume that it did, I mean; he told his story
- as a truthful person, most certalnly there are plenty of laws on the
books rlght now to-- ‘ v N ;

» ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: (interrupting) Let me rephrase
'the'qUestion.»' I am not asking you to condone somethig. What I am
saying is, we are talklng about a merit review 31tuat10n,:and we are .

talklng about . a situation which deals with dlsclosure, we are not
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“ talking about going to Lehman Brethers. We.are not talking about going
~to Merrill Lynch, Where they may'haveHSOme broker/dealers;" Dotthey
have broker/dealers in those houses? ' |

MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes, they do. v _ e ‘

, ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATU Oh.  So, we are not talking

v‘about 901ng to Lehman. Okay? Let's get that out of the way. Let's
viget that myth that I think you are'trying to present’oet of the way.
~That is not what we are targeting on. That isvnet what we are talking -
tabeut.' We are talking about JoAnn s Chilli Bordeile; :That is what we
: are;talkihg,about; Now, if . you have a problem with that and you want
yifto‘defend it, 'that is okay. That is your pr1v1lege" That is the kind
"’of arena that we are talking about. You may be oversen81t1ve.

' - MR. FITZPATRICK: No, I don t thlnk we are talklng about
that. | e o
' * ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Okay. | |

MR, FiTZPATRICK:; Actually, wheneyou pass a merit statute,
.you -are affecting all. Lehman, although Lehman is no “longer in
existence—- | o : o . .
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATU (interrupting) How do you know
~what our statutes -are 901ng to be? . e ’

“MR. _FITZPATRICK I have no idea. o .
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: How do you know what our laws
are going to be? How do you know what'we are going to implement?‘

_ MR. FITZPATRICK: I know what merit is though. I know what
the merit statutes are. They are in existence and they are in place.
Mr. Unger has testified to them, and Mr. Grlffln.

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  The whole p01nt is that there

k"are'degfees of everything. I always equate it and come back to the

states you are talking about. You mentioned Illln01s, you mentloned

>0h10._ 1 am very familiar with ‘those states as they apply to 1nsurance,
'regulatlons and systems. Okay? I don't want to get 1nto that, except
1 to say that the more thlngs change in those systems, ‘the more ‘they stay
the same. It is like a circle. Those systems operated one way in
Iilinois, and now they are coming back another Way. " Now, you have
ilegislatioh in there calling forbcompulsory liability‘insurance. ‘The
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companies are goingloff the wall. And, you know, they were telling us
to follow Illinois -- State Farm and Allstate -- saying, "Hey, we don't
have any compulsory insurancé in Illinois. That is what you people
ought to do." Now their Legislature is pushing for compulsory
insurance. We should know what is happening, but that doesn't mean it
is the right thing to do, just because someone else is doing it.

' Assemblyman Adubato, do you have a question?

_ ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN» ADUBATO:' Yes, just a follow-up
“question. Mr. Fitzpatrick,(in‘your statement you said -- and I will
‘quote you if I may -- "Merit review has nothing to do with fraud."

MR. FITZPATRICK: That is correct. e

 ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Okay, let me ask you this.

Under disclosure review, with a promoter who has a prior conviction --
as we stated earlier -- which put someone out of business for a While
for securities violatidns, can you take a company public as long as the
conviction is disclosed?

MR. FITZPATRICK: That is correct. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: Shouldn't the State be able to

. _ say no to someone -- if Mr. Smith had that power becausé we chose and

the Governor chose to give it to him in his office through a merit
review system -- Who has prior convictions relating to SEC violations,
for example, Stock manipulation? Shouldn’t we have the right to say,
"No, we don't want you to do. business in New Jersey"? What problem
would you have with that?

~ MR. FITZPATRICK: Let me liken it to any precensorship by
"~ . government. Police power is not best exercised in the field of
literature by policemen sitting down and reading books, and saying,
"Yes, Agatha Christie can be sold, but Mickey Spillane cannot be sold."
Police power is beét exefcised -- ‘and remember, we are falking about
the police power of the State here -- by enforcing'laws againsf fraud
and throwing the rascals into jail. That is where the State of New
~Jersey, and all states, should be putting their money. |

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: How can New Jérsey; as a State,

stop an offering where we perceive there is fraud involved, if the

company is not even required to file or otherwise notify the State that
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the offering is even taking place? There is a misconception here. You
are making it sound as if they disclose in this State, and they do not
“‘disclose anything in this State. Mr. Smith did not know when JoAnn's
Chilli Bordello was going public. So, I would argue, from a law
~ enforcement point of view, that the best way to protect our citizens is
" by prevention. On the face of things, and based on thé information we

have seen here, I would say that we do not‘want JoAnn's Chilli Bordello -

'r to do business in our State, and Mr. Smith doesn't even know they are

doing" business in the State until it is too late, and until we have
péoplé' coming -before us telling us that they‘ lost a significant
o peréentage of their life'S’savings.‘ I would argue that that is no way
for government to conduct itself ‘as a way to protect people and
allow them to have a fair and legitimate opportunity to make an
1nvestment and earn a profit.

1 have no more questidns.

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: I just want to make a statement, not ask

‘a question. I think I heard correctly, and I feel there can be
- different types of merit review. I think I heard Mr. Unger say that in
MasSachusetts, as Director, he does not have the abilitybto allow orv
'dlsallow certaln securities to be sold in that state, as- the last say.
I think that is what I heard you say, Mr. Unger.

MR. UNGER. I have the ability to tell someone to sell their’
securities somewhere else. I said that we also have the ability to be
flexible, partiéUlérly for local or regional firms whére we are able to
more carefully keep an eye on their activities. I would feel moré

comfortable about a firm in Massachusetts going pubiic at $1.00 a
~share. I would be far more inclined to let them go because they were

local éoncefns, primarily because once they have taken the public's
: money; I wouldn't have to.spénd taxpayers' money to get on an aifplane
to check their books and records. I could just send my‘people out to
” check thelr books and records. _

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATU But, the whole key I got from
->y0ur presentation was that when you analyze the states that you go to
first to find out about whether firms have been there or not, and where
they came from, whether it is New Jersey, southern Florida, Colorado,
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or whatever-- What I'm saying is, if an entity is developed, say, in
one of our sister states-- We're all sister states, I guess; but we
consider our sister states to be Pennsylvania, Massachusetts, and New
York. They are more or leSs'out'sister states, if you will. In those
situations, we compare not ohly with Massachusetts, ws compare with New
York a little bit, and we compare with Pennsylvania a little bit. Now,
‘quite frankly, I don't know what the system is in Pennsylvania, and it
; hasn't been brought up here. But, frsm a standpoint of information, it
“would be stfange if someone were to develop a situation,-vsay, in
- Pennsylvania, the Pennsylvania system would not ‘allow them to sell
fthose securities in Pennsylvania, “and they would. sell them in  New
Jsrsey,‘or vice versa, if it was in New York. If it were a case where‘
the people in New York did not want them functioning in their state,
-they would come over -here and function and sell in New Jersey, for
~ something that is going to take place.in New York. I mean, that would
be comhon sense, I would think. I don't think that that has anytﬁing
to do with the restriction of trade. I don't think that has anythiug:
tujdo with suppressing the free market.,tThat is just being thoughtful,’
and - saying, "int a minute. - If they' are talking’ about putting a
_project in‘New York State, or in Pennsylvahia,,andvthose states will
not sllow them vto sell those sécurities,‘ or those stocks in thoSe
states, how'the hell ean we allow them to sell them here?" That is a
~ starting point, do you see? »Wé are familiar with situations like that,
which I am not going to get_into at this time because, quite frankly,
. we don't have the time. I intended to get into them, and maybe we will
at our next meeting. That meeting will probably take place after we
have drafted a bill, along with Assemblyman Adubato and the other

 people here. That is going to happen very soon.

Assemblyman LaRocca, do you have anythlng to say?

- ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: No, thank you. N

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Mr. Fitzpatrick, I want to
- thank you for coming. You know the excuse you used for your
 tempéfament,,the fact that you are Irish? Well, that is the excuse I
‘use, since I am Italian. I know what you are talking about, the Irish

temperament, because I have the good fortune of having lived with a
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Very goodllady; Who also has an Irish temperament, for 25 years. ‘So,bl

' do understand it. (laughter) . | ) '

o “MR. FITZPATRICK: Okay, good. Just tell me where you found

her. : ,‘7» - . o

 ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: I do wnderstand it.

'MR. FITZPATRICK: Thank you. . BT |

: ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO Excuse me, Mr. Chalrman. Just
‘as'a p01nt of clarlflcatlon, the Chairman is speaking about his wife,
and no one: elseT ‘(laughter) That is my aunt, so I Jjust want to make

_ that clear. ‘ : , e R ‘

“ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: ‘I"meanﬁ my wife; I'm not living

w1th anyone else. e , L

ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO 1 just wanted to get tHat on

the record. . ' L ‘ |

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATD Our next witness will be Mr.
~Joseph Krassy. Mr. Krassy, I;have no 1dea where you'aré from.
JOSEPH KRASSY: 1 am Joseph Krassy, an attorney,‘and‘l practice in New

- York. .1 have my own firm, Krassy and Helle_rr

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Okay, thank. yoﬁ{z

MR. KRASSY 1 spec1allze in state securltles laws. 1
-developed that specialty . over ' some 12' years,~ first wlth Cleary
Gottlleb, then with Wilkie Farr, and then last year I started my own
firm. - I understand we are running a little short on time, so I will
keep Mywremarks brief. As it turns out, Mr. Fitzpatrick has stolen a-
lot of my thunder. ‘ ‘ ’

What I was hoping to do was focus on the limitations of thé
merit reviews'I have.éxpérienced over many years. The broker/dealers I
. represented ‘were the Lehman Brothers, the Solomon Brothers, and the
Shearsons, and con31stently the 1mpact of merit rev1ew has been to
';delay pub11c_offer1ngs and generate‘51gn1f1cant addltlonal expense in -

the proéess’of'clearing certain difficult states. When you are dealing

" with a $50 million offering, or a $20 million offering, the additional -

$50,000 or $60,000 of expense may be a drop in the bucket, but

honetheless, ‘it comes out of the issuer's pocket.
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Some of the characteristics that Mr. Griffin attributed to
penny stock are characteristics that are typical of initial public
offerings, whether we are talking about Midway Airlines or Apple

Computer. You have the dilution that is typical of an initial public

- offering, where the investor puts his money in -- say it is $15.00 a
share -- and by the time it is completed, it is worth $2.00 a share.
‘That is even before a secondary market gets started. You have

typlcally cheap stock, that 1s, the insiders have reserved 70% or 80%
of the equity ownership in the company for themselves, and the publlc
investors, who contribute 80% of the capital, get 20% of the ownership
of the company. ' R s |

We have all heard stories abeut the gentlemen who brought
Apple Computer public, and they are all millionaires several times
over. I don't think we would characterize their profit as ill-gotten
gains, but these are still characteristics that have been maligned in
the case of the penny stock market.

I guess what I am saying is that some of the solutions which
have been so ea31ly recommended by people here are not easy solutions,

or perhaps not even appropriate solutions, unless you have some pretty

“elear idea of what it is you are trying to prevent. If you are talking
about limitihg people who have been convicted of fraudulent activities
in the past, that is a pretty fair guideline. I wouldn't have any
reservations about putting that into the statute or into the
5regulatiens adopted by the Chief of the Bureau of Securities. That
would be easy to administer, and would be easy to identify by the
underwriters who are selling the securities, the issuers who propose to
go publlc, and the attorneys who represent everyone. |

The problem with merit review, in a broad sense, has
"generally been its subjectivity. That is, you cannot distihguish, in
~any effective way, whether a company which has made loans to its
officers is ipso facto engaging in fraudulent activities or ripping off
public investors. - For example, you can't determine on the basis of
~subseduent performance whether the initial public offering was  a
fraudulent public offering. Any number of companies have gone public
and ‘have simply done poorly. They can't make money; the management is
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lousy; bdt; you cahnot‘accuse'them of'fraud. Some of them were penny,
stock when they went public; some of than are penny stock as they are
being traded .now on the stock exchanges.

- The issue I wanted to touch on more exten31vely was, agaln,
~ the one that Mr. F1tzpatrlck addressed and that is the track record of

v‘states which have’ hlstorlcally been characterlzed as "merit review"

'7v'states. Some are better than others, largely, as someone pointed out,

based on the sophlstlcatlon of the staffs whlch are called on to

u“:admlnlster these laws. So, the staffs which ‘have good accounting and’

Vf{ lawyer talents bu1lt in tend to do better, not 31mply because they can ‘

‘v1dent1fy.econom1c problems, but because they are 1ntelllgent enough- to
'hake discriminatihg distinctions.  That is a criticalb element.
Dlscrlmlnatlng dlstlnctlons have - to be there 1f you are talking about
merlt.‘rev1ew, and - most merit review states, I'm afraid, do not do
‘ that. They'focus on dilution at 70m, and they say,"That is excessive;

we can't allow you to go'public in our state." Ohe of my favorites

”7‘happened to be M1dway Airlines, which I lost several states on because

= 'of':cheap stock and, frankly, they had a negatlve net worth. The
‘vrcomoany was worth less if it went into bankruptcy than it was worth on -

o completion of the pUblic offering. - I lost several states because of

':'that negative net worth, but, obviously, you can appreciate that a
compahy whiehiboys airplahes is going to have a lot of debt outstanding
‘before it ever goes public. '

o The issues we have identified,'dl submit, cut across 'the
.graih, across the entire spectrum of the securities market. As to the

trend amohg'merit review states, we have already heard that Illinois:
and Iowa have substantially reduced their merit review. Texas has JUSt

’reported a statute out of 1ts house commlttee that 1 understand they
- are expectlng to vote on this week, which would likewise remove or
 eliminate merit review from the comm1381on. ~ Some states, l;kebs
' WaShingtoh,vhave‘adopted rules that distinguish between the $5‘d0 stock
:%that'is uhderwritten by severalvNASD‘member firms. They say, "Okay, we |
~ won't even worry'aboUt that. Maybe that is thelr legltlmate threshold

‘that everyone is prepared to recognize, and anythlng below that we will

.subject to addltlonal.levels of.scrutlny.ﬁ -Again, the questlon is, how
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is that scrutiny going to be applied? Is it going to be applied
woodeniy? Is it going to make economic sense? Frankly, the question
of economic sense is not one that even weli—meaning public servants are
always in a positioh to.determihe. v o ‘

| ~ Non-merit review states, likewise, have gone the opposite
- road in reducing the regulatory impact of state regulation. Hawaii is

one etate that hasn't been mentioned but Hawaii has a ‘provision

h’] similar to that of ‘New Jersey, in whlch any securlty that is registered
o with the SEC need not be registered at the state level.

_ ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: - Would you please repeat your

'=.last statement?

MR. KRASSY About Hawaii?
» ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: Yes, about Hawaii being like
“New Jersey. 1 think that is what you said. ' ‘
‘ MR. KRASSY: = That's right, except that Hawaii's is a new
entrant. New Jersey has -had that provision since, I guess, 1967.
, ASSEMBLYMANVMICHAEL ADUBATO Oh, yes, I realize that, but
"'JUSt for clarlflcatlon, did you say that if you. flle with the SEC, ‘you
“don't have to file with New Jersey? ' ,',
] MR. KRASSY: In 1984, Hawaii enacted a prov131on. - There is
no flllng requirement in Hawaii, and the security ‘may be offered and
sold subject to SEC effectiveness only. , ' : |
| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: As it is in New Jersey7
_ MR. KRASSY: Correct. The one difference, of course, is that
in a mechanical way, the Hawaiian provision is an  exemption from
securities registration, whereas the New Jersey one seehs to be an
‘exclusion from all of the requlatory provisions.

I left some of my recpmmendations with Assemblyman Adubatov"

yesterday. I would draw‘your attention to the goal of these meetings.
"If your goal is additional access to documents so that the Chief of the

Bureau of Securities has a mechanism for determining when an offering

'~H is be1ng sold, and takes steps in ant1c1pat10n of fraudulent activities

to prevent that sale, then one can take the Colorado approach, the
Georgla ~approach, or the Florida approach,. which provide for an

exemption mechanism subject to a filing. There is a fee associated
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with that, S0 you would address ‘the economic issue of paylng or -
'sub31d121ng the Bureau. , } ;

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO ' I don' t want to out you off,
vbut we were supposed to be out of here by two o clock, and we have 30
‘seconds to go. T JUSt want everyone here to know that all
»-documentatlon and all ‘statements - that were presented to the Commlttee ‘

will be. off1c1ally a part of thlS Commlttee session, so whether they

‘7jvwere stated fully on the record or not, our staff w1ll review them -

ff:,thoroughly.'

, 1 .want to thank you for comlng, Mr. Krassy.e " The only

f'questlon I have is, again, for clarlflcatlon. You know, we all agree
v"that the overwhelmlng majority of the people in the industry are more
than reputable, and as honest as anyone in any industry. 1 do not
think that is our_concern. ‘That is not what we are about today. But,
© you made a statement and, whether it is aliowed today, or it is not

k allowed today, I think you said you would not wantlto have people inf

v"the securltles business who have already been convicted of fraud 1n the

- securltles bu31ness.- Is that a fair- statement7'

el restrlctlon.

o MR,' KRASSY' : I have no reservatlons about that klnd of a

ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO. vSo}yin'other words;vyou’do‘not
think it would be unfair if New Jersey had a law that‘said you oould
not sell securities in this State if you haddbeen}convicted of fraud?
MR. KRASSY: I wouldn't characterize that as fair or unfair,
‘but rather as a legltlmate standard you would obJectlvely be able to
enforce. : o ‘
ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL - ADUBATO: Okay. I would say it was
n;fair} Assemblyman Adubato, any questions? o : S
' | ASSEMBLYMAN STEPHEN ADUBATO: No questions. _ .
o ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO ‘Assemblyman LaRocca, any
:QUestlons7 7 : BT
ASSEMBLYMAN LaRUCCA; No queStions;u
 ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO:  Assemblyman Loveys, any
. questions? ' '
| ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: No questions.
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| ASSEMBLYMAN MICHAEL ADUBATO: = 1 want to thank everyone for

':coming. . If anyone has additional information you did not have an .

»Qpportunity to present today, whether or not you knew aboutvthe meeting

or did not ask to be heard today, we would appreciate it if you would

-~ mail any information to the State Capital in Trenton, in care of the

~Assembly Banking and Insurance 'Cdmmittee, ‘attention Mr. ‘Spiros J.
- Caramalis. - If you are interested, let us know about it, and we will be-
;’happy to share that infofmationVWith’you.-vThank‘you.' Thisimeeting is

- now adjourned.

(MEETING CONCLUDED)
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TESTIMONY OF FRANK J. WILSON,
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND GENERAL COUNSEL OF
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SECURITIES DEALERS INC.

BEFORE
THE ASSEMBLY BANKING AND INSURANCE COMMITTEE OF
, ' THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

- February 20,k1985

My name is FrankkJ.'Wilson and I am Euecutive Vice

J{'President and General Counsel of the Nationai Assoclation of
:SeCUrities Dealers,’Inct (the NASD). With:me today are John E.
- Pinto, - Senior Vice President,"Compliance,b and. Raymond Cocchi;
VVice,President'Congressional and State Liaison. The NASD is
,rregistered with the Securities .and Exchange Commission as a

national securities association pursuant to the provisions of the

i%“ Maloney Act which was a 1938 Amendment to the Securities Exchange

o Act. of 1934 and is the only Association so_ registered. - The

'5?;NASD'S purpose is to provide for self-regulation of the over-the-

- counter securities market and employs over 1 000 people »to
.‘achievelits.purposes. At this time,. the NASD has over 5,700
_broker/dealer_ members bemploying oyer 330,000 salespersons and
carriesvout‘its examination, disciplinary and other regulatory
"iresponsibilities’,through its Washington headquarters and: 14
?DiStrict Offices 1ocated in major cities throughout the country.

| In. addition, thevAssociation operates two wholly owned
subsidiary corporations, NASDAQ, Inc. and NASDbmarketFServices;
’,Inc. NASDAQ, Inc. maintains and operates ‘the NASDAQ automated
quotation systemf ‘This system, which 1s more fuliy_described

later, 1s a state of the art computerized system by which NASD
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vmembers exchange lquotations‘ for securities traded over-the-
“anUnter. -~ NASD Market Servicee, Inc.  enables NASD.members to
enhance their‘capabilities in the areas of transaction execution,
trade‘reporting and clearance of transactions through the use of
facilities offered by the Corporation. ‘ | |
_. As we understand it, the purpose of theee hearings 1is
vto allow the legislature to gather information relating to the
-"penny stock" market in the state‘of New Jersey. At the outset,
;l it 1is important to understand that there 1s no inherent evil in
bringing to'the capital marketplace a low priced public offering
- of securities. Such-offerings are frequently the only neans by
‘.uhich the ideae and entrepeneurial aspirationsv;of}ldevelopmentF'
ﬁfstage companies'may be»fulfilleda‘ Invyour'invitation to testify,'
"1t was indicated;that the hearing seeks-to obtainvinformation
relatinggto adequacy to.New Jerseyvlaw to deal with the "penny
stock" ‘market; market‘maker.and sales practices in the'penny
-stock ‘marketplace and publlic education with respect to "penny
stocks"l We do not believe that 1t is appropriate for the NASD to
take a positlon with respect to the type of regulation provided
”‘;byvthe state 1egislatures and the NASD will, therefore, focus:'
‘tnie; morning:vprimarily upon 1ts regulatory activities with

, respect,to*the over-the-counter marketplace and, in particular,

;‘~-the more speculative lower priced end’of that marketplace.

Any examination of potentlial abuses 1in the '"penny
stock" market must almost inescapably also look to the related

concept of a "hot issue" market. The Association defines a "hot
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issue“rin its Interpretation’With Respect to "Free Riding and_
Withholding" as "securities of a public offering which trade at a
“‘premium in the secondary market whenever such secondary market,

‘f'begins."f, In general, “hot_issues" involve the initial public'

'7,gloffering (IPO) of an issuer., The reason that ‘the "penny stock™

'ﬁe'and "hot issue" concept are 'so closely interrelated is the fact

‘r;~a that public interest in purchasing low priced securities will not

long survive unless potential for dramatic gains»is evidenced in
the marketplace.‘ "Hot issue" markets ‘have become a cyclical phe—

“nomenon involving low priced and at times higher priced stocks. -
'Such a market existed shortly after the end of World War II, was

“arepeated during the period of 1959 through 1961 and again in the"

”ﬂfglate 19603 and eaply 19705,, The problem has been addressed by

':fthe Securities and Exchange Commission both in the Special Study

~of Securities Markets delivered to Congress in’l963 (the "Specialh,
”">Study").and"inwthe Commission's-Hot Issue Study iﬁ.1971.'

The most recent "penny stock" "hot issue" market and
‘ ione which was typical of most such markets occurred in Denver in
©1980-1981. In that market, of the 134 init‘ial; public offerings
nt‘of securities which traded at atpremium in theISecondary market;

-all of ~which were closely scrutinized _by~ routine NASD

',fsurveillance and regulatory programs, 86 or 64% were issues with

public offering price of under $5. 00 per share and, 52 of those
-‘86_ sold for $1. OO" or under when initially offered to the
,~public. In addition, 67 of the 134 hot offerings had 25 or fewer
broker/dealers participating in the distribution and over 20 of

‘these involved 10 participants or less.
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The 1980-1981 Denver»hot«issue market occurred'in a

generally negative market environment where the potential existed‘

'Li’for utilization of improper sales practices because substantial

"”fselling efforts were required to create initial interest in ‘new

'h;issues among ‘the public. However, once the existence of a hot

1f;‘issue market is- established in the investing community, customers

F‘V‘-"jjactively solicit broker/dealers demanding a share of the next

'offering.‘ ’In addition,,.a relatively limited number'_of
'lbroker/dealer firms involved in the distribution of low—priced,

~speculative issues increased the possibility that ‘one or more of

| ’the participants in the market will be in a sufficiently dominant

B ’f,position to exert control over the marketplace in 'order to

| lVﬁartifically establish or maintain prices which may be unrelated'

i to. the actual value Cof the’ securities. : The following ‘are

'fexamples of the market abuses which can be supported by such a

1'market(

o 1:best . efforts i~underwritingsr ,with | heavy
| retention by thevmanaging underwriter to the
extent that 1t will sell elther all or a sub-
stantial'majority of the‘shareslto 1ts own
customers; | | |
'fo - domination and contrcliof‘the‘markethutilized 5

to manipulate the price of the- shares in the

aftermarket'
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"tie-in" sales where a customer is requiréd
to’purchase a "cold" new issue in order to

purchase a "hot" issue;

"tie-in" sales requiring customers to buy
shares of other i1ssues in the aftérmabket at
premium prices if they are to receive a "hot"

issue allotment;

brbker/dealer commission schedules ﬁhich give
extra cbmpensation for sales to customers_of'

favored stocks  while ° providing = no
vcompensatioh - for liquidétionsv of those

securities;

tactics designed to avoid the delivery of
certificates to customeprs thereby allowing
the broker/dealer to maintain the customer's
ﬂpositidn. Other broker/dealers ére réluctant
‘to‘ accept a custémer's sell order without

presentation of the certificate;

use of nominee accounts, sales to favored

customers and controlled accounts;

5x
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o companies_going’public having 1little or no

opehating_experience;

o ' salesmen making forecasts ahd price
projections,=w1thout  a reasonable basis 1in

fact;

In addition, a willing public that views the market for
“low priced speculative 1issues more as gambling than as investing
is an important faétor to be taken into account in determining

.énd evaluating the causes of a Denver type f“penny - stock"

" ‘market. C&séomerS" avaricious 'attitudes toward - this type of

’fmérket creaté'ét least two sﬁbstantiated problemsvin’regulating
ﬁhe’market. First, customers have little;vif any, 1nciihation to
come forward'with complaints of improper donduct by brokers since
’they wish to cbntinué]to participate in the market and "whistle
blowing"™ would preciude such participation. To the contrary,
,custbmers- complain that they could»bnqt ‘obtain vshares in an
o offéringb_or’ that theif .orders Were filled fof‘_less than the
'.desired‘amounf;' Second, customefs either do not read or pay
,iittle-heéd to the prospectus, irrespective of whether the 1ssue
X,.1s.1ow or high priced. Indeed, the Associatibn has hoted that‘in
such markéts SOme cﬁstomers foliow the unlque practice of opening
accounts with a large humbef of firms so théy may receive an

allotment of as many new offerings as possible.
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: This 1is not inconsistent with discussions by the
Special Study which noted that hot 1ssue markets, even,those

‘fwunrelated “to general market performance,« tend to develop' a

momentum of their own so that improper sales practices and

if:jactivities by professionals which may have been' utilized to

ffgengender initial interest in the issues may be less necessary as

"'5the market progresses and the speculative fervor of the investing

,public increases. Such intense interest was seen in the 1981
Denver market,“where customers».and potential customers of

jabroker/dealer firms were vying for shares of almost any 1ssue

‘,,_which was offered. The particular public danger, of course, in

‘ '_‘the low price speculative market is that at some point the cycle

”[comes to a close, the fervor is diminished and prices for the

1f;isecurities which have reached artifically high levels fall ‘back

?-to a level more nearly reflecting their actual: worth. -At thisv
.-fpoint, those holding the securities are faced with the potential
of substantial losses. In a market comprised of more broadly
distributed issues of}securities by more substantial 1ssuers, the
"‘dangerv of such:-is- substantially‘*lessened though, of course,
;f?declines doyoccur. | | - | | ‘,‘ |
- :,As‘ evidence of 'the broad ,ramifications 'off the
dfi"downside" of a speculative, low priced market, one need onlyb
‘flook to the fact that in Denver in the latter part of 1981
‘through early 1982 ‘there was a sharp decline 1in the number of
'new‘ issue‘,offerings of low-priced speculative stocks and a

general reduction 1in market prices and after-market trading in

=
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such stocks. 1In reaotion t0~this, ‘the NASD and the SEC during.
February vand March, ;1982,‘ combined in a Joint Task Force to
,'conduct' special‘ financiai_ and operational' examinations of 41

firms in the Denver area to determine the effect this had on
Tﬂthese fipms and theirFCustomers{ In the DenVer'market many of
‘Elthe‘-firms :engaged exClusively in"the ‘underwriting of, .and
secondary'Amarket .trading in, 1ow—priced speculative issues.
Notwithstanding the ‘Associlation's ongoing and intense monitoring
of sales practices in this area, when investor interest in these
hissues.ceased,/so did.the only or at ieast primary source of

income forithese;firms; Faced‘With‘extremely high oVerhead and

L monthly#fixed‘expenses, what had been comfortable capital bases

7‘quickly eroded. i The Association assigned 32 of- 1ts most
l‘experienced examiners, plus supervisory personnel ifrom 10
different offices and from 1ts Executive Office 1in Washington,
D.C. to assist its Denver staff and the SEC in a massive three-
week effort. These ’examinations disclosed financial ~and
operational problems of varying degrees and severity in Zi‘of.the
41 firms examined, and 9 of these firms were referred to the
Securities Investor Protection Corporation under Section 5(a) of
if»the Securities‘vInvestor Protection Act as inv or approaching
-fgpfinancial ,difficulty. vMost of the 41 firms agreed with the

,NASD's-recOmmendations to take'somefform‘of corrective action

feither through reduction of business or other restrictions on

.‘their scope and type. of activity. | Ten firms went out of

husiness. However,'only three required that a SIPC trustee be

8x
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appointed. Tne remaining seven firms were self-liquidatedfunder
NASD supervision_ utilizing the firm's own assets to satisfy
’outstanding obligations with the'result tnat there were no losses
- to cuStomers, other broker-dealers or the‘SIPC fund as a result
of the demise of these firms. |

One problem which can affect the market involving low
'ﬂpriced securities especially when public interest is on the rise
is that of free-riding and withholding, an area in which_the NASD
has the primary enforcement responsibility. Free-riding and
uitholding results 1in a failure by broker/dealers participating
in a public offering of securitiles to make a bona fide public
fdistribution of those securities. Withholding'is the practice of .
‘ retaining in the broker/dealers own accounts or those in which 1t
has a beneficilal interest a portion of an offering which rises
to a premium‘in the aftermarket rather than selling such shares
- to members'of thekinvesting public. Free-riding is the practice
" of selling shares of such an offering to select individuals and
in particular persons affiliated with the broker/dealer community
or to certain favored customers for the purpose of securing
'future' business for. the broker/dealer by allowing those
individuals to partake in the short term profits available in the
aftermarket. Free-riding and withholding practices may, in some
instances, form a part of a scheme'of manipulative activity with
respect to a particular issue, but such is‘not necessary to make
:'the practices inconsistent with the Jjust and equitable principles

of trade expected of NASD member broker/dealers. The fallure to

. 9%
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make an actual public distribution of the securities constitues a

sufficiently serious impairment of the marketpiace to warrant a
proscription of the practices. |

The Securities and Exchange Commission noted the

impropriety of these’practices as early‘as 1946 and the NASD has

~ “had an Interpretation with Respect to Free-Riding and Withholding

as a part of 1ts Rules of Fair Practice since 1950. This
Interpretation has been modified a'number of times over the years
and today contains either absolute or conditional prohibitions on
the sale of hot issues to eight different categories_of accounts,
primarily focusing on the broker/dealers "insiders" and certain
,‘1nstitutional type accounts from whom the broker/dealer may wish

- to curry favor. ‘ v g
| - -Before describing the specific regulatory programs
which are in place at the NASD, somevoackground on the over-the-
‘counter marketplace which is reguiated by'the Assoclatlion, is in
order. . ‘Essentially,k the over-the-counter market involves alle
securities actlvities not taking place on the floor of a stock
Hexchange. - This includes the' publicv‘diStribution of all new
'iSSues._ Secondary or .aftermarket‘ trading in ’overjtheecounter
SecuritieS' is: conducted throqgh a system' of market vmakers,
bbroker/dealers ‘who standb ready"tok bdy or sell for their own
:"‘account on a.vcontinuing basis; Untilk 1971, over-the-counter
quotations were disseminated only in written form via the so-
called "pink sheets" and were frequently out of date by the time

they were recelved. This marketplace has dramatically changed

10x
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since that time with the advent of the Association's automated

’ ’quotatiOns system called NASDAQ. With NASDAQ, market makers are

'f*able to display the quotations nationwide and update then "on-‘

line" through computer terminals in their offices_by way of the
leASDAQ communication system;' This system galso-kenables' the
Z'finvesting -pubiic to receive up to the second ‘quotations for
“securities in which they are interested. Share‘volume'on NASDAQ
is second. only to that on the New York Stock Exchange. At this
,time, there are in excess of 4700 securities quoted in the NASDAQ
| System. A growing part of the system which 1is ‘part of thei
“implementation of the National Market System mandated by Congress
in the 1975 amendments to the federal securities laws is the the
qﬂNASDAQ/National Market System, a group. of securities meeting
}certain criteria" for - Which hroker/dealers ’report fnot 'only‘
iquotations, but actual transactionsrin a manner- similar to the
major stock exchanges. | |
The NASDAQ System generates a wealth of information
which the NASD utilizes in monitoring the OTC marketplace. A
,ﬂrreview‘of the initial public offerings of equity securities for
S1984 shows in excess of 2200 offerings. Veryvfew'v of these
»iofferings have initially listed on a national securities exchange
J‘rather thanvbeing traded over-the-counter. Almost all of the
’1;remainder ,are quoted through the NASDAQ System. 'The market
ffinformation'collectedlby the NASD from theVSystem, therefore,
represents trading in virtually all recent new over-the-counter

issues.

11x
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The‘NASD's activity in the areas of market maker and
‘ sales ‘practiCe ‘regulation 1s concentrated primerily in four
ereas. 'The focus’ef the firstvprogram; whieh is exclusively on
new issues 'inuelves' enforcement of vthe Free-Riding and With-
helding-Interpnetation, | |

|  The :AsSOciation's' regulatofy> pfogram in this area
fpeduires that eVery'public offe:ing of seeUrities underWritten by
'NASD'members be'reviewed; including ail_primary and secondary
effebings..' All such new issues, including NASDAQ, listed and
otherrover-the-counter securities; are monitored te determine the

:priee at which each security 1s quoted in the after market

EwheneVer secondary trading begins. Those issues which the
"tnssociation "determines tbadeu :at' pnemiums above the public
Ekoffering‘pricevare made the subject of»questionneiresluhich ere
_issued »te | ali underwriters - and selling, greup " members
‘partieipating in the particular vdistribution. As previously
noted, the pnimafy purpose of free-riding cemplianee is to ensure7
a bona-fide public distribution of securities for which there'is
substantial public demand. Prohibited sales by a member afe‘ggg
se violations of the NASD's Rules of Fair Practice.

| Each questionnaire'seeks detailed information about how
| the shares Were alloted'by the managing underwriter and requires
‘disclosurebofiell sales other than those made to bona-fide public
‘customer8>at the pubiic offering‘price,(i.e., those sales to
restricted accounts). Members are subject to separate

disciplinary action by the NASD for failure to accurately and

12x



-13 -

truthfully resbond to the questionnaire; 1Comp1eted question-
1naires are then forwarded to the Districtv office having
Jurisdiction over the member s activity and any restricted sales
"are subject to an investigation by the District. Throughout the
1_course of 1its monitoring for free-riding activity, the'Associa—
”"tion gathers 1arge amounts of information about trading in new
’eissues which can reveal the possibility of the existence of other
yiolations which are then investigated by the Assoclation's field
examination staff. |

- All questionnaires and reports of investigations are
presented for> review to District Business Conduct Committtees

"within each District and disciplinary action 1is .taken where

!',f appropriate._ During the period from January, 1983 through

fNovember,‘1983fWhich constituted -the most recent “hot“ new issue
market (althouéh not prinarily in low priced issues); a»total of
v7367‘questionnaires were‘forwarded to members in the review of
i26 public ~fferings that went to an immediate premium in the
aftermarket. As a part of:the Aseociation?s field ekaminationk
- program of NASD memhers, whereby ahout 3,400 fieldbexaninations_
Tf“ofy broker/dealer member  firms are vconducted annually 1in
’Tﬂaccordance with prescrihed frequency cyclee, Association
‘examiners rOUtinely conduct reviews, among many other areas, for
°_comp11anCe'w1tn the Free-Riding and Withholding Interpretation.
el As a result of the Association's_Free-Riding program,
its District Business Conduct Committees have brought a

substantial number of disciplinary actions against members or

13x
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persons aSsociéted with members for violations of the Free?Riding
Interpretation.

- 'vAnother aspect of the~Associéﬁion's régulatory program
'that monitors aétivity,in new 1s$ues aé well as trading in all
. NASDAQ‘ securities 1s 1its Mérket Survelllance _Sectibn. This

2act1vity embodies.a fully automated and centrally-operated market
‘surveillance system which -cbmbines the state'vof the ‘art
technologicalbresources of the NASDAQ System with surveillance
procedures.aimed at deterriﬁg a‘variety of potential abuses.

| First among these market SUpveiliance capabllities 1is

NASDAQ'S cbmputerizedvOn—Line.Stogkwatch System. =~ This provides
‘léontinuous ’on-line ménitoring fbf 'all: NASDAQ  sequr1ties and
"prbvideé Eealft1me alerts to significant'grice fiuctﬁétioné as
7théy occdf during the tfadiné day. Ih 1mmediate.fééction to
theée pricevalerts, ﬁhe.MArkét SUrveillance Secﬁioh‘initiates a
review of the security to determine the natufe'of the activity in
question. In responding tqlthese situations, Market Sufveillance

-uses a full complément of on-line CRT retrieval devices which
~provide corporate énd market—related news,:histor;cal price and

gvolume'data for the previous day, week,’month and year to daté
' 'and company financial information. These on-line early warning

.Systehs together with the interviews of members of broker/dealer

- firms trading departments 1nitiated Sy 'Mabket ~Surveillance
provide the Assoclation with the ébility'to 1mmédiately identify

and react to problems in need of immediate attention.

14x
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A complement to the on-line stockwatch program is the
Market Information Data Access System (MIDAS). This on-line
“compﬁterized system.provides instantaneousvaccess ~to ‘as much as

el60 days ‘of historical market quoatations in any NASDAQ security'

.[_displayed on a CRT in a time sequence 1dentical to the way “they

*{%appeared on the actual trading day.‘ Thus, MIDAS_provides an

“;llautomated‘"instant-replay," showihg on a secsndfby—second basis a

recohstruction of 'all market maker quotation upticks and
[downticks'as recorded in the NASDAQ market. Obviously, these on-
‘line sytems are invaluable when considering the need for detailed

_market information usually associlated with the investigation of

e market manipulatibnslas wellras othervtrading~abuses._

‘The. detection and _analysis of :SuSpicious ~price
‘movements and/or volume abberations occurring over 'a longer

- period of time are also ‘closely monitored by the Market

‘l»Surveillance Section through a series of automated off-line stock

,monitoring:systemsvand reports. Again using the technological
‘adventages,of‘the NASDAQ system, specially designed computefized
1 ¢#§eptiOn reports-ere in place toltrack longer tefm,price'and

1volume patterns as  well as concentratiOnstOf, trading by
:sparticular firms.ilkBy programming pre4set paraﬁeters into the,
’NASDAQ system,» stocks exceeding one or mere Qfl,severalv such

«,psfemetebs'will'triggef’exception reports'that.are‘reviewed by

'-A;MarketISurveillance to determine whether further investigation of

7lthe trading pattern is needed. Other surveillance reports provide

~ daily, weekly, and monthly recaps of high, low ‘and closing price'
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information, purchases and sales volume by market maker as well
| as other trading data.‘ In total, over 15 separate off-line
gj reporting systems are in‘place,bspecifically designed to monitor
vtrading in NASDAQ securities. |
| ‘ | A further aspect of the 'Association s regulatory
- framework for dealing with hot issues are its 14 District Offices
referenced earlier. : Briefly,Aalmost H,OOO»routine and special
eiaminations are conducted each year by the examiners ‘located
across the country. An important aspect of these examinations is-
ya comprehensive review of a member's fairness in dealing with its
customers, and its overall sales practices. Examinations include
a‘revieu of newwissue activity, such as hot issues, distribution
"'practices and- possible manipulative activity.,, Examinations of
NASD membert firms are also instituted by the Association in
response to complaints filed by members of the investing
puhlic. Each NASD district office s ‘equipped to receive
_ customer complaints of any nature but in particular, those
- relating‘ to sales. practices which may, be encountered by the
‘:customer in dealing with member firms. Customer complaints are

'Lanj.integral part of the NASD's regulatory programs, and

k"Vespecially important to the Association in the sales practice

area. ~In this regard, the NASD maintains a computerized central
customer complaint file in Washington, D.C. which contains
'rsubStantiali amounts of information‘ about all such complaints

recelved from the public .by ,the NASD | as well as complaints

involving sales practices matters'received by the SEC. Every

16x
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customer complaint received‘by the Association is‘reviewed by one-
of its district offices. Further, notices of alleged misconduct '
by registered representatives required to be filed with the NASD
;are ‘also reviewed and follow-up investigations and disciplinaryr
‘vactions.taken wherever necessary. The State of New Jersey is
;served by two NASD district'offices to which'yourtcitiZensvmay
‘turnfto'for assistance. The’district‘office located in New York
City has responsibility for the counties‘ ofb Bergen, Essex,
Hudson, Passaic and Union and an office in Philadelphia has
Jurisdiction over the remainder of the state.
~ As a result of examinations, both routine and customer

-initiated, the NASD brought some 385 formal disciplinary actions
.?cduring l984--involving both member’ firmsr,and - 1ndividuals
"fregistered'with’thosebfirms{' buringgl98ﬂ, lO‘member‘firms were
empelled and 58.individuals barredkfrom further assoclation with
'any NASD member. ln addition, 3 member firms and 54 individuals
were suspended for varying periods of time. Because of recent
: amendments . to. the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 which with
Ujlimited excetlons eliminated the ability of federally registered
- brOker/dealersv to function without becoming NASD members,
‘fsuspension or expulsion by the NASD effectively terminates'the
1,‘abi1ityloflan individual or firm to function in the‘securities
":,industry. 6ver and above these sanctions, the‘Association during
1984 imposed fines upon 153 firms and 219 representatives and
'censured 155 firms and 396 representatives. It is, therefore,

obvious that the Association plays an extremely active role{in

17x
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‘;regulating~the activities of its members wich engage 1in the over-
: the-counter securities. markets. | | |
| In addition to the ~on-site examinations conducted byr
: the ﬁistrict Offices' examiners the Association also has an Anti-
thraud Unit to deal with abuses in ‘the marketplace.-'The unit,
iwhich‘ is 'comprisedr;of experienced senior ‘staff vmembers andk
”fimanaged’,out' ofdrwashington, is available to‘tsupplement the
’activities of the Districts invpursuing complex casestinvolving
apparentvsubstantialiabuses. The AsSociation, through its Anti-
_Fraud'dnit,ihas conducted a'numher of investigations both on its:
own and Jolntly with  the SEC and"various state securities
_departments. Recent examples of these efforts have included task
vforces and special examination groups investigating hot issue
‘hsmarkets in Denver,_Los Angeles, New York and Salt Lake‘Cityr
- lIn addition to the foregoing :activities, the
Association has recently received approval from'the Securities
and Exchange Commission to create in addition to the 14 District
Committees, -a specialized market surveillance committee as a
standing committee of the Association.» This committee, the first
”lmembers of which were appointed by the Board of Governors only
“ilast month, 1s a disciplinary cOmmittee with Jurisdiction to
T',oversee .the‘_Market Survelillance Section of the ‘Association's
‘ffsurveillance department and "to_‘handlef'all- market—related
violatiOns. flowing from that section including allegatlons of
' insiderk . trading, trade reporting , violations, market

manipulations, and other market related violations which will be
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of particular importance in enhancing the Association's ability
_ to_ deal with abuses involving low-priced securities. This
’committee will have authority comparable to that of the District
r Business Conduct Committee with respect-to all market related
"matters. The committee will review investigations conducted by
'the market surveillance section and may authorize all forms of
’edisciplinary actions v currently available to the Districtd
Committees.  The committee will be empowered tovconduct hearings
and to render declsions comparable_ to those of the District'
- Business Conduct Committees. The committee is composed of
individuals with particular expertise inbthe areas of trading,
options,; corporate financing, and vcompliance as‘4Well as .
'> representatives of NASDAQ issuers, current'and former members of
.thefDistrict-Business Conduct Committeeshand’former members'of
the,NASD Board of Governors. The Association belleves that this
specialized committee'andrthe enpertise which 1t will bring to
bear upon market related 1issues willl constitute a substantial
nenhancement to the Association s regulatory capabilities.

The ultimate object for this panel and forv the
;ilegislature 1s ‘a determination of .theb needl for] or the
iadvisability of legislation to. address abuses which may exist
with respect to low priced or "penny" stock offerings. TherNASD
?!Sbelieves» that, on the federal 1level, current law and _rules
provide adequate enforement capability. and thatv state
legislatures should attempt to ensure the fact that the resources

available to the state securlties commissioners will be utilized
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’ 1n a manher which will provide the most efficient allocation of

the state's resources.

| The NASD’does not believe that specific legislation 1is
' reQuired ‘to address the probiems 'presented by the low-priced

"-Securities 1ssues‘being qffered within the State of New Jersey.

‘_Thé Aséociati§n does not believe‘that it wou1d~be practical to
'attembt ﬁo institute. legislation to insulate prospectivé
" investors from losses as a result of the ,purchasé of highly

Speculative' issues ‘when' those 1nvestors‘ themselvesv many times

choosé to ignore thé disclosures which have been provided to them

in conjunction with those 1issues. However, the Assoclation is

o -fuliy supportive of  substantial . sanctions fof _ViOIationS’ of

eiisting~1éws4and'ruies. The Association belieVéé ﬁﬁét exist1ng
_provisions such és“ the 'Free-Riding'kahd Withholding Inter-
prétaf1§n,rfhe general anti-fraud provisions Qf'the‘federal and
states securities laws‘and the rules and regulations thereunder
including those of the Association provide‘an adequate,basis for
hregulating improper activitiles with respéét to speculative 1low
"priée securities in the same mannervas they do for other aspects
of thé_secuﬁities business. It 1s the Assoclation's belief that
fthe'combined resources of the state securities administratofs,

- the NASD ‘and the Securities and Exchange Commission provide

"7fade§uate safeguards to the investing public if those provisions

" are properly enforced.
The Assoclation 1is pleased to have been provided the

 opportun1ty to present its views to this committee and would be
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more thaan1111ngato prov1de any further information which the

‘committee or the legislature may find useful.
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NEW JERSEY ASSEMBLY

" Banking and Insurance Committee

Testimony of Williamld. Fitzpatrick

'My nametis wWilliam J. Fitzpatrick,vand I am a Senior Vice
President and General Counsel of tnerSecurities Industry
Association ('SIA'). ‘The SIA is a trade association
representing more tnan»SBO brokeredealers and investment
bankers. oOur members are engaged in all aspects of the:
secur1t1es 1ndustry, and collectlvely account for approx1mate1y
‘90 -95% of all of the securities transactlons conducted in the
-Unlted states and Canada. I apprec1ate the opportunltyato
present to you our views on the State of New Jersey's Biue.Sky
Law, and prospects for amending it; |

I am sure that we have all seen the statistics indicating
~ the amount of new employment and growth in the economy

"generated by new small bu31nesses, of whlch New Jersey must

""r;?qutely gct iits shareg Not surpr1s1ngly, one of the bxgoest

73; problems of small companies is the matter of raising capltal

B \ company which chooses to go public is undertaklng a very
~expensive proposition. _There_W1ll be bills to pay from

vprinters, accountants, and lawyers, Filing fees are another

2



-expense. An SEC study'determined that for certainftypes of
- offerings by small business the’expenses related to going
'pubiic absorbed an average of over 18% of the total proceeds of
:”the offering v | | |
| In recognition of the very con51derable costs that
’regulation can 1mpose upon the process of capital formation,
Jparticularly for small bus1nesses, Congress has attempted to
help. For 1nstance, the enactment of the Small Business
'inveStment Incentive Act of 1980 lead to the recent adoption of
Regulation D by.the SEC. That regulation iS~designed to assist

small businesses to raise capital by relieving them of many of

:g;the'regulatory burdens placed upon public offerings.

When Congress established the Securities and Exchange

Comm1SS1on and a national system of regulation for securitiesk

“f'_offerings,rit failed to address the 1ssue of 1nteract10n w1th

_state statutes governing the same activities., As the
'bmarketplace has developed in the 50 years s1nce.the creation of
_the SEC, the need for uniform standards of regulation governing
thevoffering of securities has'become increasingly obvious. 2
e;”system ofvnationally'conSistent regulation can he_brought about
”‘fonly in one'of-two ways;' One is for'the‘state laws goVerning
the,issuance of securities to be‘preemptedvand‘the power

vcentralized'in the SEC. The second and more desirable

alternative is for state laws to become uniform and coordinated

'with the federal systemnm. ’The-federai‘securities laws are:

1/ An Analysis of the Use of Regqulation A for Small Public
Offerings, p. 65 (1982).
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*disclosure" laws protecting inveétors bykrequiring the
complete disélosure of ail material facts about a company gnd
vitsbofficersvand directors. Approximately half of the sﬁates
| héve 'disdlosure"istatutes; and New Jérsey is one of them.z/
»'All 50 states have'their individual'securitieé'statute, and
. aitﬁoughvmany are modeled on_ﬁhe Uniforﬁ'Securities Act, each
1C,s£athté»is uhiqué'and'requirés an'understandingkof its
éubtletiés aé'interpreted by its Seéuritiesvcomhissioner.. In
‘shorﬁ;‘there are ‘as many systems ofbsecurities regulation in
‘the states as there are states. | |

| In manY“stétes the securities statute gives the
’commiséioner'authority tobrefusglto apérovevan offering of
'sécurities.if‘he findé the terms Qf the offerihg-aré,not ‘fair,
‘njust‘éhd eQuiﬁable.'v This is called "merit feQiew,' Please
_- ﬁbti¢efthat Lhiéiis QQE an antifraud provisibn;.ail sd'states,
including New Jersey, have étatutbry provisions’perﬁitting the
. state administrator to £ake actionvagainst anyone engaged in
the distribution of an offeringkwhich would constitute a fraud
upon purchasers.é/ »

Only about half the states have merit
 review. |
‘;~Undé§‘the‘br0ad discretion granted by merit review

~ statutes, -a state administrator in reviewing an offering is

2/ Non-exempt securities may not be offered or sold in New
Jersey unless registered under the federal Securities Act
of 1933 or registered under the New Jersey Uniform
Securities Law., N.J. Rev., Stat. §49:3-60 (1967). A filing

-under either statute is a public record and available to
anyone for inspection.

3/ N.J. Rev. Stat. §§49:3-52, 49:3-69 (1967).
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involved in deciding whether he is persohally satisfied with
the amount ahd nature of the underwriting‘commissions, the
_amount of'stock issued to insiders and prohoters in return for
‘their efforts in organizing the coﬁpahy; the issuancevof
options and warrants to key officers, the offering price to the’
Q:public, shareholder voting rights, and 1nterest and diVidend
'fcoverage. While any‘one of thesebind1v1dual categories could
be the source Of an abuse, taken as abwhole the net effect is
‘that the state securities commissioner-is.involved in each
securities issue not as a regulator but as a corporater
financier. He actually structures the deal as 1f he had an
1nterest in the economic outcome. of course, this adds

}substantially to the time and cost involved in clearing" an

"”'issue. This is all the more so because of the lack of

hd uniforﬁity in applying'such a subjective standard,by»different
rstates and is true even Withih’the same state. |

| Under.a ﬁerit review standard, an issue can admittedly'be
ifree of fraud but be unacceptable'in‘the subjective judgment of
the securities commisSioner, and therefore not be'approved for

‘sale to the public. 'Exercising-merit‘review authority,

o securities commissioners-have refused to approve the initial

:public,offering of, among others, Apple Computer;oGenentech,
and U;S.LTeleohone; The subsequent performance of those
'icompanies has revealed how dubious vere those refusalsland
t'vcost'iy'to potential investors.

| More‘importantly; broker-dealers are united in their belief
that the chilling effect on the raising of capital in those

states that are known as "tough” merit review jurisdictions is



significant. Withou£ question merit review addé costs to the
issuance of securities, and the féCt that thekstandard varies
from state to state means an issue must‘ruh a gauntlet of state
 commissioners, each applying his own per#onal view of what is
*fair, just, and equitable'. And pléase remember, all of this

-~ has nothing to do with fraud. - All the statés,.including New

:Jersex, can keep a fraudulent issue‘ffom beingjéold.
The:seéuritiesbindustry believes coordination of staﬁe
‘securities iegistratibn requirements with those of the federal
v seéurities laws is essential. The rapid developement of
nétional‘markets for securities can not procéed»in the face 6f
) metit review. 1Individual commissioners reviewing offerings act
in good‘faith.but without full’undefstandiné of the increasing
‘natiohélvand interhationa1ization of our marketplaées} and
Vwithoutsthe staff,;training, funding and otherviesources to do
the type of in depth corporate fihancial’anéinis tha£ merit
review requires. |
Redirection of business away from states with obsolete

'regulatory systehs such as merit review is a reality. These
factors were considered by the legislatures of=Illin0ié; Iowa
; and Wiscénsin-when,_over the 6bjection’of their state
‘securities cbmmissioners, and NASAA, they'recent1y7modified
their statutes and eliminated almost ali merit feview in favor
of diéclosure standafd-similar to those of the SEC. One need
'oniy review the testimony recently given in Illinois on this
'issué, particularly that of the Hohorable James Edgar, the
Secretary of’State of Illinois, who supported and sponsored the

elimination of merit review in his state as the result of



personallvaitnessing_merit review drive auay new businesses
from Illinois. | - B

aTexas is about to introduce_legislationjwhich will largely
.eliminate merit’review; and the states of:OhiO/.Indiana,b
s Kentucky; and Arizona either are ordhave considered abolishing
“{merit review;‘ In short, to suggest that New Jersey become a
,merit state is to suggest that it alone buck the increaSingly
national trend towards eliminating merit reView.‘ In the last
- year three states eliminated merit,reView; no statedhas.
recently proposed becoming a merit state.

With regard to the perceived problem in»New Jersey of
”abuses of the‘penny stock market, we_believe the securities
‘ laWSdin‘this state provide the'commissioner'withdadequate
’iauthority to address'frauds that are perpetratedion'the public.

' The series of'articles published recently in the Newark
StaréLedger did highlight several illustrations/where investors
lost money‘by investing in so called “penny’stocks", While
there is nothing'inherently wrong with low—priCed’stocks, these
sorts of securities are recogniaed_by the broker-dealer

“;communitv a7 very speculative investmentsvwhich»are not

"ﬂ..suitaole for everyone. Many of SIA's members have long

'established poliCies of discouraging selling penny stocksl to
emembers of the general public. For instance, salesmen in many
broker—dealers receive no commission for buying or selling a

'stock with a price of $3 or less. In addition,rin many firms a

broker has to receive special permission from his superiors
before entering an order for such securities, and almost none

~of SIA's members will underwrite a lowepriced security. It



. shoulad alsefbe»remembered, as commissioner Smith pointed out,

-

that more than 1100 broker-dealers are licensed in New Jersey}

»on1Y>50 actively deal in penny stocks. New Jersey must be very

‘ Careful not to‘diSCOUrage an entire industry from operating in

the state because of the occas1onal abuse by a very small

S segment of that 1ndustry.

If the problem is fraud, we. agree that the state securltles

comm1s51oner,should be given adequate staff to actively enforce

“the law. However, it must be realized,that.if New Jersey epts
} for'merit‘review'it Will require a much larger and more

, sophisticated securltles staff with the resultant budgetary

demands. Although thls would be requlred by the adoptlon of

merit review, 1t would not enhance the commissioner s.ablllty

'toﬁcomhat7fraud.‘,

N sn_:. -

ij the laws of New Jersey are to'be'Changed, care should be

taken to ensure unlformlty w1th other states s0 as not to

' 1solate New Jersey from the malnstream of the f1nanc1al

industry. Other states are e11m1nat1ng merit review. To

remain in the malnstream, New Jersey should heed the lesson of

'1ndustr1al states such as Illinois and W1scon51n and do nothlng

vto mdhe 1tse1f appear rea“tlonary. The'state of hew Jersey,

w1th'1ts.hopes,of playlng'a major role in the field of high

ctechnology, cannotvafford such a,giantrstep backwards.
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